
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
FOR THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION (MGNWC) 

TO BE HELD ON FRIDAY, APRIL 27, 2018 AT 9:30 AM 
AT THE NILES VILLAGE HALL ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING 

1000 CIVIC CENTER DRIVE, NILES, ILLINOIS 60714 
I. Call to Order 

 

II. Roll Call 
 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

IV. Approval of Minutes  
a. Regular Meeting, March 22, 2018 

 
V. Approval of Warrants  

a. 2018-4: $647,912.86 
 

VI. New Business 

a. Resolution 18-44: Authorizing the Approval and Execution of Change Orders for 

Construction Contracts for the Morton Grove Niles Water Commission Water Transmission 

Main and Facility Improvements Project  

 

b. Resolution 18-45: Authorizing the Approval and Execution of a Professional Service 

Agreement Between the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission and True North 

Consultants Inc. For Demolition and Asbestos Abatement Consulting Services at 2525 

Church Street, Evanston, Illinois  

 

c. Resolution 18-46: Authorizing the Approval and Execution of an Agreement for Demolition 

and Asbestos Abatement and Removal Services for Structures Located at 2525 Church 

Evanston, Illinois 

 

d. Resolution 18-47: Authorizing the Approval and Execution of a Professional Service 

Agreement Between the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission and True North 

Consultants Inc. to Prepare A Baseline Study Required by the MWRD for the MGNWC 

Easement Premises located in Skokie and Evanston, Illinois  

VII. Old Business - None 
 

VIII. Superintendent’s Report 
a. Construction Update 
b. Financial Report for March 2018 

 
IX. Other Business 

 
X. Public Comment 

 
XI. Adjournment  



Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission (MGNWC) 
 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION 
HELD IN THE VILLAGE OF NILES VILLAGE HALL ADMININSTRATION BUILDING 

1000 CIVIC CENTER DRIVE, NILES, ILLINOIS 60714 THURSDAY, MARCH 22, 2018 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER - Commissioner Steven C. Vinezeano called the meeting to order at 
3:05 p.m. 

 
II. ROLL CALL - Commissioner Vinezeano called the roll.  Present were Commissioners 

Steven Vinezeano and John Pietron.  There is no Commissioner appointed by Cook 
County at this time.  Quorum is present. 

 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Commissioner Vinezeano led the assemblage in the Pledge 

of Allegiance. 
 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  
 

a. Regular Meeting, February 22, 2018 
b. Special Meeting, February 26, 2018 
c. Special Meeting, March 1, 2018 

 
Commissioner Pietron called for motion and Commissioner Vinezeano seconded it.  
Pietron voted Aye and Vinezeano voted Aye to approve Special Meeting Minutes for 
February 22, 2018, February 26, 2018, March 1, 2018.  
 

V. APPROVAL OF WARRANTS – Warrants Dated March 22, 2018 ($67,872.22).    
 
Superintendent Balling stated that these warrants will be drawn down now from the 
bond in MB Financial. 
 
Commissioner Pietron called for motion and Commissioner Vinezeano seconded it.  
Pietron voted Aye and Vinezeano voted Aye to approve Warrant dated March 22, 
2018.   
 

VI. NEW BUSINESS –  
 

a. Resolution 18-41. A Resolution Approving and Adopting Rules Allowing 
Attendance at Meetings of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission by 
Audio or Video Conference. 

 
Commissioner Pietron called for motion and Commissioner Vinezeano 
seconded it.  Pietron voted Aye and Vinezeano voted Aye to approve 
Resolution 18-41. 

 
b. Resolution 18-42. A Resolution Authorizing the Approval and Execution of 

Contract No. 6 entitled “MGNMC Intermediate Pump Station, Water 



Transmission Main and Facility Improvements Project” for the MGNWC Water 
Transmission Main and Facility Improvements Project.  
Superintendent Bill Balling stated that this was a bid opened today.  There 
were two bids for the project and the low bid is qualified and has the 
recommendation of Stanley Thomas to approve. 

 
Commissioner Pietron called for motion and Commissioner Vinezeano 
seconded it.  Pietron voted Aye and Vinezeano voted Aye to approve 
Resolution 18-42. 

 
c. Resolution 18-43. A Resolution Authorizing the Approval and Execution of 

Contract No. 10 entitled “North Shore Channel Transmission Main Crossing, 
Water Transmission Main and Facility Improvements Project” for the MGNWC 
Water Transmission Main and Facility Improvements Project . 

 
Superintendent Bill Balling stated that this was a bid opened today.  There 
were three bids for the project and the low bid is qualified and has the 
recommendation of Stanley Thomas to approve.   

 
Commissioner Pietron called for motion and Commissioner Vinezeano 
seconded it.  Pietron voted Aye and Vinezeano voted Aye to approve 
Resolution 18-43. 

 
VII. OLD BUSINESS – NONE 

 
VIII. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 

 
a. Report that the Village Managers will be meeting weekly starting April 5, 2018 

to watch construction of project.  These village manager briefings will last 
until a date determined in the future.  The meetings will start at the Howard 
office at 2:00 p.m. 

 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT – NONE 

 
X. ADJOURNMENT - Commissioners approved unanimously 2-0 to adjourn at 3:15 p.m.   

 
 













































































































































































































RESOLUTION 18-44 
Authorizing change Orders for Construction Contracts 
Page 1 of 4 

RESOLUTION 18-44 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF CHANGE ORDERS FOR 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS FOR THE MORTON GROVE NILES WATER COMMISSION  

WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN AND FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT  
 

WHEREAS, the Morton Grove Niles Water Commission, located in Cook County, Illinois 
(“MGNWC”), has been established to operate a public water supply system (the "System") by an 
intergovernmental agreement adopted by the Village of Morton Grove and the Village of Niles 
pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11-135-1 et seq., and the MGNWC further operates in accordance with the 
provisions of Article VII, Section 6 of the Illinois Constitution;  

 
 WHEREAS, the MGNWC Board of Commissioners has determined that it is advisable, necessary 
and in the best of the MGNWC to acquire property and construct water transmission mains and facility 
improvements including new water main lines, pump stations and a water storage standpipe, and to 
rehabilitate certain existing water main lines to construct and operate a public water supply system 
that connects the Villages of Morton Grove and Niles to the MGNWC’s future water supplier, the city 
of Evanston (“the MGNWC Water Transmission Main and Facility Improvements Project” or the 
“Project”) ; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the estimated cost of construction and installation of the Project, including 
engineering, legal, financial and other related expenses is $96,200,000.00; and 
 

WHEREAS, a substantial portion of the Project  will be financed with for low interest loans from 
the Illinois Environmental Agency (“IEPA”)’s Public Water Supply Loans State Revolving Fund pursuant 
to that loan agreement between the IEPA and the MGNWC dated March 2, 2018 for Project Loan No. 
L175513; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the MGNWC Board has approved and the MGNWC has entered into the following 
contracts relating to the Project: 
 
Contract 
No. 

Contractor Contract Title Contract Amount 

1 Berger Excavating Contractors, Inc. East Segment MGNWC 30-Inch Water Supply  
Transmission Main 

$15,288,636.65 

2 DiMeo Brothers, Inc.  West Segment MGNWC 30-Inch Water Supply  
Transmission Main 

$14,069,630.00 

3 Bolder Contractors, Inc. MGNWC 20-Inch Water Supply Transmission Main $11,566,613.00 
4 Michels Corporation Morton Grove Existing 20-Inch Transmission Main 

Maintenance 
$4,368,691.00 

5B DeZurik APCO Hilton Procurement of MGNWC Water Supply Transmission 
 Main Large Valves 

$318,743.62 

6 Joseph J. Henderson & Son, Inc. MGNWC Intermediate Pump Station,  Water  
Transmission Main and Facility Improvements Project 

$2,974,000 

7 Joseph J. Henderson & Son MGNWC Nagle Avenue Pump Station $7,437,000.00 
8 DN Tank, Inc. MGNWC Standpipe $8,292,500.00 
9 IHC Construction Companies Fiber Optic Cable $349,990.00 
10 Bolder Contractors, Inc. North Shore Channel Transmission Main  

Crossing, Water Transmission Main and  
Facility Improvements Project 

$1,789,534.50,*  



RESOLUTION 18-44 
Authorizing change Orders for Construction Contracts 
Page 2 of 4 

* plus an additional amount not to exceed the greater of $200,000 or $50,000 for each 24” valve which installation is 
delayed for circumstances beyond Contractor’s control. 

 
 WHEREAS, it is reasonable to expect unforeseeable underground conditions as well as 
other conditions and events may require the approval of change orders to timely complete the 
construction of the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, time delays associated with formal approval by the MGNWC Board of necessary 
change orders to the contract may undesirably increase the cost of the Project, as well as the 
duration of the work and inconvenience to the public; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is reasonable to expect the cost of additional measures could add up to three 
percent of the original contract amount; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the IEPA has approved contingencies of up to three percent of the contract 
amounts approved by the IEPA; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the MGNWC management team has recommended that the MGNWC Board 
authorize the approval of change orders for the construction contract for the Project without the 
formality of MGNWC Board approval for amounts not to exceed three percent (3%) of the original 
contracts, provided the MGNWC Superintendent, the Village Manager of Niles and the Village 
Administrator of Morton Grove unanimously approve the change order and agree that requiring 
the MGNWC Board to approve the change order will cause an unreasonable delay or will result in 
additional expense to the Project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission has 
the authority pursuant to Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, the 
Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1, et seq.) and the Illinois Municipal Code 
(65 ILCS 5/1, et seq., including 65 ILCS 5/11-135-1, et seq.) to approve this Resolution and find that 
approving this Resolution is in the best interests of MGNWC, the Village of Morton Grove and the 
Village of Niles. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE MORTON 
GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1:  Each Whereas paragraph above is incorporated by reference into this Section 1 
and made a part hereof as material and operative provisions of this Resolution. 
 
 SECTION 2: The Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission 
(“MGNWC Board”) authorize the chair of the MGNWC to execute change orders for the 
construction contracts for the Project up three percent (3%) of the original price of the respective 
construction contract provided  the MGNWC Superintendent, the Village Manager of Niles and the 
Village Administrator of Morton Grove unanimously approve the change order and agree that 
requiring the MGNWC Board to approve the change order will cause an unreasonable delay or will 
result in additional expense to the Project.  
  
 



RESOLUTION 18-44 
Authorizing change Orders for Construction Contracts 
Page 3 of 4 

 
 

SECTION 3:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 
approval as provided by law.  
 
 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

AYES:  John Pietron and Steven Vinezeano  
NAYS:  None 
ABSENT: None (Cook County Appointee not appointed yet) 

 
 PASSED by the Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission, Cook 
County, Illinois on a roll call vote at a Regular Meeting thereof held on the 27th day of April, and 
approved by the Chair, and attested by the Clerk on the same day. 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Steven Vinezeano, Chair 
 
       ATTEST: 
       ________________________________ 
       John Pietron, Clerk  



RESOLUTION 18-44 
Authorizing change Orders for Construction Contracts 
Page 4 of 4 

STATE OF ILLINOIS )  

   )  SS 
COUNTY OF COOK ) 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATE 
 
I, John Pietron, Clerk of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission, Cook County, State of Illinois, 

certify that the annexed and foregoing is a true and correct copy of that certain Resolution now on 

file in my office, entitled: 

RESOLUTION 18-44 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF CHANGE ORDERS FOR 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS FOR THE MORTON GROVE NILES WATER COMMISSION  

WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN AND FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT  
 
which Resolution was passed by the Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water 

Commission at a Regular Meeting on the 27th day of April, at which meeting a quorum was 

present. I further certify that the vote on the question of the passage of said Resolution by the 

Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission was taken by Ayes and 

Nays and recorded in the minutes of the Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles 

Water Commission, and that the result of said vote was as follows, to-wit:  

AYES:  John Pietron and Steven Vinezeano  
NAYS:  None 
ABSENT: None (Cook County Appointee not appointed yet) 

 
 
I do further certify that the original Resolution, of which the foregoing is a true copy, is entrusted 

to my care for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful keeper of the same. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 27th day of April. 

        
_________________________ 

            John Pietron, Clerk 
Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission 



RESOLUTION NO 18-45 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF  PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION AND TRUE 

NORTH CONSULTANTS, INC. FOR DEMOLITION AND ASBESTOS ABATEMENT CONSULTING 
SERVICES AT 2525 CHURCH STREET, EVANSTON, ILLINOIS  

 
\\WHEREAS, in 2017, the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission (“MGNWC” or “Commission”) 

was established by the Village of Morton Grove, a home rule Illinois municipal corporation 
(“Morton Grove”), and the Village of Niles, a home rule Illinois municipal corporation (“Niles”), by 
the adoption of ordinances pursuant to Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 

ILCS 5/11-135-1, et seq.) (“Division 135”). The establishing ordinances are Morton Grove 
Ordinance 17-5, which was adopted on March 13, 2017, and Niles Ordinance No. 2017-19, which 

was adopted on March 14, 2017; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the MGNWC was established for purposes of constructing and operating a public 
water supply system consisting of water transmission mains, pumping, storage, and other related 
water delivery and receiving infrastructure between a connection point on the Evanston water 
system and existing water receiving points of Niles and Morton Grove and 

 
WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago (“the “District”) 

is the fee simple owner of real estate located within the North Shore Channel Park Area (“the 
Property”). The District and the MGNWC  have entered into Easement Agreements for the purposes 
of granting certain temporary construction easement rights and permanent easement rights to 
allow the MGNWC to construct and operate a water distribution system pump station and related 
infrastructure improvements on the Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District has leased part of the Property commonly addressed as 2525 Church 
Street, Evanston, IL (the “Shore Property”) to the city of Evanston (“Evanston”) and Evanston intends 
to develop the Shore Property by demolishing the existing school and constructing an athletic field, 
splash pad, picnic shelter, public restrooms, and parking lot; and  

 
WHEREAS, Evanston and the MGNWC have negotiated a Memorandum of Understanding 

(“MOU”) which sets forth terms for the construction and operation of the MGNWC’s intermediate 
booster pump station on the Shore Property; and  

 
  WHEREAS, the MOU provides that MGNWC will contract and pay for engineering services 

and construction work to demolish and remove the existing school building and north parking lot 
from the Shore Property and Evanston will reimburse MGNWC for its reasonable costs associated 
with this work; and  

 
 WHEREAS the MGNWC Superintendent solicited and obtained proposals from True North 

Consultants, Inc. of Naperville, Illinois for demolition and asbestos abatement consulting services at 
2525 Church Street, Evanston, Illinois and the Superintendent has negotiated a Professional Service 
Agreement with True North Consultants, Inc. based on its proposal attached hereto as Exhibit A; 
and  



RESOLUTION NO. 18-45 
Agreement w/ True North for Demolition  2525 Church  
 

2 

 
 
WHEREAS, True North Consultants, Inc. has satisfactorily provided engineering and 

consulting services for the MGNWC in the past and is qualified and capable of providing these 
services in a timely manner, and the Superintendent recommends that the MGNWC Board enter 
into an agreement with True North Consultants, Inc., based on its proposal (the Agreement); and 

 
WHEREAS, the MGNWC Board has the authority to enter into the Agreement pursuant to 

Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, the Illinois Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1, et seq.) and the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/1, et seq., including 
65 ILCS 5/11-135-1, et seq.), and finds that entering into the Agreement is in the best interests of 
MGNWC, the Village of Morton Grove and the Village of Niles. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE MORTON 

GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:  Each Whereas paragraph above is incorporated by reference into this Section 1 

and made a part hereof as material and operative provisions of this Resolution. 
 
SECTION 2: The Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission 

(“MGNWC Board”) authorizes the approval of the economic terms and the attached form of the  
Agreement entitled “Professional Services Agreement by and Between the Morton Grove-Niles 
Water Commission and True North Consultants, Inc for Demolition And Asbestos Abatement 
Consulting Services at 2525 Church Street In Evanston, Illinois” for the purposes set forth in the 
Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit A. The MGNWC Board authorize and direct the Chair, or 
his/her designee, and the Clerk to execute the final version of the Agreement, which may contain 
certain non-substantive and non-financial modifications that are approved by the Village Manager 
of Niles and the Village Administrator of Morton Grove, and to execute and deliver all other 
instruments and documents and pay all costs that are necessary to fulfill MGNWC’S obligations 
under the Agreement. 

 
SECTION 3:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 

approval as provided by law.  
 
ADOPTED this 27th day of April 2018, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 
 

AYES:  John Pietron and Steven Vinezeano 
  

NAYS:  None 
 

ABSENT: None (Cook County Appointee not appointed yet) 
 
 
 
 

  



RESOLUTION NO. 18-45 
Agreement w/ True North for Demolition  2525 Church  
 

3 

PASSED by the Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission, Cook 
County, Illinois on a roll call vote at a Regular Meeting thereof held on the 27th day of April 2018, 
and approved by the Chair, and attested by the Clerk on the same day. 

 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Steven Vinezeano, Chair 
 
 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       John Pietron, Clerk  



RESOLUTION NO. 18-45 
Agreement w/ True North for Demolition  2525 Church  
 

4 

Exhibit A 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER 
COMMISSION AND TRUE NORTH CONSULTANTS, INC. FOR DEMOLITION AND ASBESTOS 

ABATEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES AT 2525 CHURCH STREET, EVANSTON, ILLINOIS  
 

(attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 1 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER 
COMMISSION AND TRUE NORTH CONSULTANTS, INC. FOR DEMOLITION AND ASBESTOS 

ABATEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES AT 2525 CHURCH STREET, EVANSTON, ILLINOIS  
 

THIS AGREEMENT is dated as of the ___ day of April 2018 (“Agreement”) by and between the 
MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION, an Illinois municipal corporation (“MGNWC”) 
and True North Consultants, Inc.,  (“Consultant”). 
 
IN CONSIDERATION OF the recitals and the mutual covenants and agreements set forth in the 
Agreement, and pursuant to the MGNWC’s statutory and home rule powers, the parties agree 
as follows: 
 
1 PARTIES:  

The parties to this Agreement and the address and contact information for each is as 
follows: 

MGNWC:  Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission 
   6101 Capulina Avenue 
   Morton Grove, IL 60053 
 
 Contact: William Balling,  

MGNWC Superintendent (“MGNWC Representative”) 
   847-863-7101 
   bill@wrbllc.com 
 

Consultant: True North Consultants, Inc.   
1000 East Warrenville Road,  Suite 140  
Naperville, IL 60563 
 

 Contact: Ryan M Ladieu 
(630) 717-2880  or  (224) 387-6063  
rladieu@consulttruenorth.com 

 
2 PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES 

2.1. Project Description.  Consultant will provide all necessary services to perform the work 
in connection with the project identified in and consistent with the Proposal dated April 
19, 2018, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit A to this agreement (hereafter referred 
to as “services”). In the event of an inconsistency between the Schedule of Terms & 
Conditions appended to the Consultant’s proposal and this Agreement, this Agreement 
shall be controlling. The Consultant represents that it is financially solvent, has the 
necessary financial resources, and is sufficiently experienced and competent to perform 



 2 

and complete the services set forth in Exhibit A in a manner consistent with the 
standards of professional practice recognized by the industry providing services of a 
similar nature. 

 
2.2 Time of Performance. The Consultant’s provision of Services shall commence on upon 

execution of this Agreement (the “Commencement Date”). The Consultant shall 
diligently and continuously prosecute the Services until the completion of the work in 
accordance with deadlines established for particular tasks from time to time (“Time of 
Performance”) The Time of Performance of this Agreement, unless terminated pursuant 
to the terms of this Agreement, shall expire on August 31, 2019. A determination of 
completion shall not constitute a waiver of any rights or claims the MGNWC may have 
or thereafter acquire with respect to any breach hereof by the Consultant or any right of 
indemnification of the MGNWC by the Consultant.  

 
2.3 Early Termination. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the MGNWC may 

terminate this agreement at any time upon 14 days prior written notice to the 
Consultant. In the event that this agreement is so terminated, the Consultant shall be 
paid for services satisfactorily performed and reimbursable expenses actually incurred, if 
any, prior to termination, not exceeding the value of the services completed as 
determined as provided in this agreement. 

2.4 Suspension of Services. MGNWC may, at any time, with or without cause, suspend all or 
any portion of services for a period of up to 90 days (“suspended services”).  Consultant 
shall immediately stop the performance of the suspended services, until such time as 
MGNWC issues direction to Consultant to resume the suspended services.  Consultant 
shall take such action as is reasonably necessary to protect the suspended services and 
take such additional action as directed by MGNWC. 

2.5 Force Majeure. MGNWC shall not be responsible for delay in the performance of its 
obligations under this agreement caused by a force majeure event.  To the extent that 
Contracted Services are delayed by a force majeure event, Consultant will be entitled to 
an equitable adjustment of the time for performance.  For purposes of this agreement, a 
“force majeure event” is an occurrence or circumstance beyond the control of the 
claiming party and may include, but is not limited to extraordinary weather conditions, or 
other natural catastrophes, war, riots, strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances.  

2.6 Assignments; Coordination; Reporting. Assignments and tasks will be assigned to the 
Consultant by MGNWC Representative. Consultant shall regularly report to and will 
coordinate all work through MGNWC Representative or his designee.  



 3 

2.7 Quality Control Plans. When required by the Exhibit A, Consultant shall execute a quality 
control plan acceptable to MGNWC that ensures the quality of its work products and 
activities.  Prior to starting the performance of the services, Consultant shall submit its 
quality control plan for the services.  Submission of the quality control plan to MGNWC 
will not replace in any way Consultant’s responsibility for quality control or for its work 
products and activities.  Notwithstanding any review by MGNWC, Consultant shall be 
responsible for the quality of the Services. 

2.8 Warranty of Services. The Consultant warrants that the services shall be performed in 
accordance with the highest standards of professional practice, care, and diligence 
practiced by recognized consulting firms in performing services of a similar nature in 
existence at the Time of Performance. The warranty expressed shall be in addition to any 
other warranties expressed in this agreement, or expressed or implied by law, which are 
hereby reserved unto the MGNWC. 

2.9 Mutual Cooperation. The MGNWC agrees to cooperate with the Consultant in the 
performance of the services, including meeting with the Consultant and providing the 
Consultant with such non-confidential information that the MGNWC may have that may 
be relevant and helpful to the Consultant’s performance of the services. The Consultant 
agrees to cooperate with the MGNWC in the performance of the services and with any 
other Consultants engaged by the MGNWC. 

2.10 Amendment. No amendment or modification to this agreement shall be effective unless 
and until such amendment or modification is approved in writing by the MGNWC 
Administrator and the Consultant. 

2.11 No Additional Obligation. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the MGNWC is under 
no obligation under this agreement or otherwise to negotiate or enter into any other or 
additional contracts or agreements with the Consultant, or with any vendor solicited or 
recommended by the Consultant. 

 
3 COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT  

3.1 Agreement Amount. The total amount billed by the Consultant for the Services under this 
Agreement shall not exceed fifteen thousand six hundred and seventy-five dollars 
$15,675.00) in total without the prior express written authorization of the Village 
Manager of Niles and the Village Administrator of Morton Grove. Said amount includes 
reimbursable expenses.  

3.2 Invoices and Payment. The Consultant shall submit invoices to the MGNWC in an 
approved format for those portions of the Services performed and completed by the 
Consultant. The MGNWC shall pay to the Consultant the amount billed for completed and 
approved work within 30 days after its receipt and approval of an invoice for same. 



 4 

3.3 Records. The Consultant shall maintain records showing actual time devoted and costs 
incurred, and shall permit the authorized representative of the MGNWC to inspect and 
audit all data and records of the Consultant for work done under the Agreement. The 
records shall be made available to the MGNWC at reasonable times during the 
Agreement period, and for three years after the termination of the Agreement. 

3.4 Claim For Additional Compensation. If the Consultant wishes to make a claim for 
additional compensation as a result of action taken by the MGNWC, the Consultant shall 
provide written notice to the MGNWC of such claim within 7 days after occurrence of 
such action, and no claim for additional compensation shall be valid unless made in 
accordance with this Subsection. Any changes in the agreement amount shall be valid 
only upon written amendment of this agreement approved by the MGNWC 
Administrator. Regardless of the decision of the MGNWC relative to a claim submitted by 
the Consultant, the Consultant shall proceed with all of the services required to complete 
the services under this agreement as determined by the MGNWC without interruption. 

3.5 Taxes, Benefits and Royalties. The agreement amount includes all applicable federal, 
state, and local taxes of every kind and nature applicable to the services as well as all 
taxes, contributions, and premiums for unemployment insurance, old age or retirement 
benefits, pensions, annuities, or similar benefits and all costs, royalties and fees arising 
from the use on, or the incorporation into, the services, of patented or copyrighted 
equipment, materials, supplies, tools, appliances, devices, processes, or inventions. All 
claim or right to claim additional compensation by reason of the payment of any such tax, 
contribution, premium, costs, royalties, or fees is hereby waived and released by 
Consultant. 

 
4 PERSONNEL AND SUBCONTRACTORS 

4.1 Key Project Personnel. Key Project Personnel identified in Exhibit A shall be Ryan M 
Ladieu  who shall be primarily responsible for carrying out the Services on behalf of the 
Consultant. The key project personnel shall not be changed without the MGNWC’s prior 
written approval. 

4.2 Availability of Personnel. The Consultant shall provide all personnel necessary to 
complete the Services including, without limitation, any Key Project Personnel identified 
in this Agreement. The Consultant shall notify the MGNWC as soon as practicable prior to 
terminating the employment of, reassigning, or after receiving notice of the resignation 
of, any key project personnel. The Consultant shall have no claim for damages and shall 
not bill the MGNWC for additional time and materials charges as the result of any portion 
of the Services which must be duplicated or redone due to such termination or for any 
delay or extension of the Time of Performance as a result of any such termination, 
reassigning, or resignation. 



 5 

4.3 Approval and Use of Subcontractors. The Consultant shall perform the services with its 
own personnel and under the management, supervision, and control of its own 
organization unless otherwise approved by the MGNWC in writing. All subcontractors and 
subcontracts used by the Consultant shall be acceptable to, and approved in advance by, 
the MGNWC. If any personnel or subcontractor fails to perform the services in a manner 
satisfactory to the MGNWC, the Consultant shall immediately upon notice from the 
MGNWC remove and replace such personnel or subcontractor. The Consultant shall have 
no claim for damages, for compensation in excess of the amount contained in this 
agreement or for a delay or extension of the time of performance as a result of any such 
removal or replacement. The MGNWC’s approval of any subcontractor or subcontract 
shall not relieve the Consultant of full responsibility and liability for the provision, 
performance, and completion of the services as required by the agreement. All services 
performed under any subcontract shall be subject to all of the provisions of this 
agreement in the same manner as if performed by employees of the Consultant. For 
purposes of this agreement, the term “Consultant” shall be deemed also to refer to all 
subcontractors of the Consultant, and every subcontract shall include a provision binding 
the subcontractor to all provisions of this agreement.  

 
4.4 MGNWC Authority. Notwithstanding any provision of this agreement, any negotiations or 

agreements with, or representations by the Consultant to any subcontractor, vendor or 
third party shall be subject to the approval of the MGNWC. The MGNWC shall not be 
liable to any subcontractor, vendor or other third party for any agreements made by the 
Consultant, purportedly on behalf of the MGNWC, without the knowledge and approval 
of the MGNWC. 

4.5 Lien Waiver. Consultant shall promptly pay for all services, labor, materials and 
equipment used or employed by Consultant in the performance of the services and shall 
maintain all materials, equipment, structures, buildings, premises and property of 
MGNWC free and clear of mechanic’s or other liens.  Consultant shall, if requested, 
provide MGNWC with reasonable evidence that all services, labor, materials and 
equipment have been paid in full. 

4.6 Safety and Hazardous Materials.  
A. Consultant acknowledges that there may be hazardous substances, wastes, or 

materials as defined by applicable law (“Hazardous Materials”) at the project site or 
otherwise associated with the services. In such cases, Consultant shall take 
appropriate precautions to protect and shall be solely and continuously responsible 
for the health, safety and welfare associated with its employees, subcontractors, 
agents and those people under the supervision and control of the Consultant with 
the performance of the services.  
 



 6 

B. Consultant’s employees, agents, subcontractors and all employees of Consultant’s 
employees, agents, subcontractors who perform the services shall be experienced 
and properly trained to perform the services under such conditions and shall take 
adequate precautions to protect human health and the environment in the 
performance of the services. 

 
C. In the event that Consultant observes a potentially hazardous condition relating to 

the services, Consultant shall bring such condition to the attention of MGNWC. 
 

 
5 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES 

5.1 Independent Contractor. The Consultant shall act as an independent contractor in 
providing and performing the services. Nothing in, nor done pursuant to, this Agreement 
shall be construed: 

A. To create the relationship of principal and agent, employer and employee, partners, 
or joint venturers between the MGNWC and Consultant; or  

B. To create any relationship between the MGNWC and any subcontractor of the 
Consultant. 

5.2 Conflict of Interest. The Consultant represents and certifies that, to the best of its 
knowledge: 

A. No employee or agent of the MGNWC is interested in the business of the 
Consultant or this agreement;  

B. Neither the Consultant nor any person employed or associated with the Consultant 
has any interest that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance 
of the obligations under this agreement; and  

C. Neither the Consultant nor any person employed by or associated with the 
Consultant shall at any time during the term of this agreement obtain or acquire 
any interest that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of 
the obligations under this agreement. 

5.3 No Collusion. The Consultant represents and certifies that the Consultant is not barred 
from contracting with a unit of federal, state or local government as a result of: 

A. A delinquency in the payment of any tax administered by the Illinois Department of 
Revenue unless the Consultant is contesting, in accordance with the procedures 
established by the appropriate revenue act, its liability for the tax or the amount of 
the tax; or  



 7 

B. A violation of either Section 33E-3 or Section 33E-4 of Article 33E of the Criminal 
Code of 1961, 720 ILCS 5/33E-1 et. seq.  

C. The Consultant represents that the only persons, firms, or corporations interested 
in this agreement as principals are those disclosed to the MGNWC prior to the 
execution of this agreement, and that this agreement is made without collusion 
with any other person, firm, or corporation. If at any time it shall be found that the 
Consultant has, in procuring this agreement, colluded with any other person, firm, 
or corporation, then the Consultant shall be liable to the MGNWC for all loss or 
damage that the MGNWC may suffer, and this agreement shall, at the MGNWC’s 
option, be null and void. 

5.4 No Personal Liability. No elected or appointed official or employee of the MGNWC shall 
be personally liable, in law or in contract, to the Consultant as the result of the execution 
of this agreement. 
 

6 INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

6.1 Insurance. Contemporaneous with the Consultant’s execution of this agreement, the 
Consultant shall provide certificates and policies of insurance, all with coverage and limits 
acceptable to the MGNWC, and evidencing at least the minimum insurance coverage and 
limits as set forth in Exhibit B to this agreement. For good cause shown, the MGNWC 
Administrator may extend the time for submission of the required policies of insurance 
upon such terms, and with such assurances of complete and prompt performance, as the 
MGNWC Administrator may impose in the exercise of his sole discretion. Such certificates 
and policies shall be in a form acceptable to the MGNWC and from companies with a 
general rating of A-, and a financial size category of Class X or better, in Best's Insurance 
Guide. Such insurance policies shall provide that no change, modification in, or 
cancellation of, any insurance shall become effective until the expiration of 30 days after 
written notice thereof shall have been given by the insurance company to the MGNWC. 
The Consultant shall at all times during the term of this agreement, maintain and keep 
the insurance coverage provided above in force, at the Consultant’s expense. 



 8 

6.2 Indemnification. The Consultant shall, without regard to the availability or unavailability 
of any insurance, either of the MGNWC or the Consultant, indemnify, save harmless, and 
defend the MGNWC, and its respective officials, employees, agents, volunteers and 
attorneys against any and all lawsuits, claims, demands, damages, liabilities, losses, and 
expenses, including attorneys’ fees and administrative expenses, that arise, or may be 
alleged to have arisen, out of or in connection with, the Consultant’s performance of, or 
failure to perform, the services or any part thereof, whether or not due or claimed to be 
due in whole or in part to the active, passive, or concurrent negligence or fault of the 
Consultant, except to the extent caused by the sole negligence of the MGNWC. The 
Consultant further agrees that to the extent that money is due the Consultant by virtue of 
this contract as shall be considered necessary in the judgment of the MGNWC, may be 
retained by the MGNWC to protect itself against said loss until such claims, suits, or 
judgments shall have been settled or discharged and/or evidence to that effect shall have 
been furnished to the satisfaction of the MGNWC. 

 
7 USE AND DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION 

7.1 Confidential Information. The term “confidential Information” shall mean information in 
the possession or under the control of the MGNWC relating to the technical, business or 
corporate affairs of the MGNWC; property of the MGNWC; user information, including, 
without limitation, any information pertaining to usage of the MGNWC’s computer 
systems, including and without limitation, any information obtained from server logs or 
other records of electronic or machine readable form; and the existence of, and terms 
and conditions of, this agreement. MGNWC confidential information shall not include 
information that can be demonstrated: (i) to have been rightfully in the possession of the 
Consultant from a source other than the MGNWC prior to the time the MGNWC disclosed 
said information to the Consultant under this agreement (“time of disclosure”); (ii) to 
have been in the public domain prior to the time of disclosure; or (iii) to have become 
part of the public domain after the Time of Disclosure by a publication or by any other 
means except an unauthorized act or omission or breach of this agreement on the part of 
the Consultant.  

7.2 No Disclosure of Confidential Information by the Consultant. The Consultant 
acknowledges that it shall, in performing the services for the MGNWC under this 
agreement, have access to or be directly or indirectly exposed to confidential 
information. To the extent allowed by law, the Consultant shall hold confidential all 
confidential information and shall not disclose or use such Confidential Information 
without express prior written consent of the MGNWC. The Consultant shall use 
reasonable measures at least as strict as those the Consultant uses to protect its own 
confidential information. Such measures shall include, without limitation, requiring 
employees and subcontractors of the Consultant to execute a non-disclosure agreement 
before obtaining access to confidential information. 



 9 

7.3 Illinois Freedom of Information Act (FOIA). FOIA applies to public records in the 
possession of a party with whom the MGNWC has contracted.  The MGNWC will have 
only a very short period of time from receipt of a FOIA request to comply with the 
request, and there is a significant amount of work required to process a request including 
collating and reviewing the information.  Consultant will comply with all requests made 
by the MGNWC for public records (as that term is defined by Section 2(c) of FOIA) in the 
Consultant’s possession and will provide the requested public records to the MGNWC 
within two (2) business days of the request being made by the MGNWC. The undersigned 
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the MGNWC from all claims, costs, penalty, losses 
and injuries (including but not limited to, attorney’s fees, other professional fees, court 
costs and/or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to its 
failure to provide the public records to the MGNWC under this agreement. 

7.4 GIS Data. The MGNWC has developed digital map information through Geographic 
Information Systems Technology (“GIS data”) concerning the real property located within 
the MGNWC. If necessary to the performance of the services and if requested to do so by 
the Consultant, the MGNWC may supply the Consultant with access to the GIS data. In 
such case the Consultant agrees as follows:  

A. Limited Access to and use of GIS data. The GIS data provided by a MGNWC shall be 
limited to the scope of the work that the Consultant is to provide for the MGNWC, 
and the Consultant shall limit its use of the GIS data to its intended purpose of 
furtherance of the work;  

B. Trade Secrets of the MGNWC. The GIS data constitutes proprietary materials and 
trade secrets of the MGNWC and, shall remain the property of the MGNWC;  

C. Consent of the MGNWC Required. The Consultant will not provide or make 
available GIS data in any form to anyone without the prior written consent of the 
MGNWC Administrator;  

D. Supply to MGNWC. At the request of  the MGNWC, the Consultant shall supply the 
MGNWC with any and all information that may have been developed by the 
Consultant based on the GIS data; 

E. No Guarantee of Accuracy. The MGNWC make no guarantee as to the accuracy, 
completeness, or suitability of the GIS data in regard to the Consultant’s intended 
use thereof; and 



 10 

F. Discontinuation of Use. At such time as the Services have been completed to the 
satisfaction of or terminated by the MGNWC, the Consultant shall cease its use of 
the GIS data for any purpose whatsoever; and, upon request, an authorized 
representative of the MGNWC shall be afforded sufficient access to the 
Consultant’s premises and data processing equipment to verify that all use of the 
GIS data has been discontinued. 

7.5 Ownership. Designs, drawings, plans, specifications, photos, reports, information, 
observations, calculations, notes, and any other documents, data, or information, in any 
form, prepared, collected, or received by the Consultant in connection with any or all of 
the services to be performed under this agreement (“documents”) shall be and remain 
the exclusive property of the MGNWC. At the MGNWC’s request, or upon termination of 
this Agreement, the Consultant shall cause the documents to be promptly delivered to 
the MGNWC. 

7.6 News Releases. The Consultant shall not issue any news releases or other public 
statements regarding the Services without prior approval from the MGNWC 
Administrator.  

8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND GRANTS  

8.1 General Compliance. Consultant shall give all notices, pay all fees, and take all other 
action that may be necessary to ensure that the services are provided, performed, and 
completed in accordance with all required governmental permits, licenses, or other 
approvals and authorizations that may be required in connection with providing, 
performing, and completing the services, and with all applicable statutes, ordinances, 
rules, and regulations, including without limitation the Fair Labor Standards Act; any 
statutes regarding qualification to do business; any statutes prohibiting discrimination 
because of, or requiring affirmative action based on, race, creed, color, national origin, 
age, sex, or other prohibited classification, including, without limitation, the Americans 
with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., and the Illinois Human Rights Act, 
775 ILCS 5/1-101 et seq. Consultant shall be solely liable for any fines or civil penalties 
that are imposed by any governmental or quasi-governmental agency or body that may 
arise, or be alleged to have arisen, out of or in connection with Consultant’s, or its 
subcontractors’ performance of, or failure to perform, the services or any part thereof. 
Every provision required by law to be inserted into this agreement shall be deemed to be 
inserted herein. 

8.2 Grant Compliance. Consultant shall also comply with all conditions of any federal, state, 
or local grant received by the MGNWC or consultant with respect to this agreement or 
the services.  



 11 

8.3 Sexual Harassment Policy. The Consultant represents and warrants  that it has and follows 
a written sexual harassment policy in full compliance with Section 2-105(A)(4) of the 
Illinois Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/2-105(A)(4). 

8.4 Patriot Act Compliance. The Consultant represents and warrants that neither it nor any of 
its principals, shareholders, members, partners, or affiliates, as applicable, is a person or 
entity named as a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person (as defined in 
Presidential Executive Order 13224) and that it is not acting, directly or indirectly, for or 
on behalf of a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person. The Consultant further 
represents and warrants that the Consultant and its principals, shareholders, members, 
partners, or affiliates, as applicable, are not, directly or indirectly, engaged in, and are not 
facilitating, the transactions contemplated by this agreement on behalf of any person or 
entity named as a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person. The Consultant 
hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the MGNWC, its respective 
corporate authorities, and elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents, 
representatives, engineers, volunteers, and attorneys, from and against any and all 
claims, damages, losses, risks, liabilities, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' 
fees and costs) arising from or related to any breach of the representations and 
warranties in this subsection.  

8.5 Equal Employment Opportunity Compliance.  During the performance of this agreement, 
Consultant as follows: 

A. That it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment on 
the basis of race, age, marital status, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, physical 
or mental handicap unrelated to ability, national origin or ancestry or an 
unfavorable discharge from military service; and further that it will examine all job 
classifications to determine if minorities or women are underutilized and shall take 
appropriate affirmative action to rectify any such underutilization. 

B. That, if it hires additional employees in order to perform the services or any portion 
hereof, it shall determine the availability (in accordance with the MGNWC’s rules) of 
minorities and women in the area(s) from which they may reasonably recruit, and it 
will hire for each applicable job classification for which employees are hired in such 
manner that minorities and women are not underutilized. 

C. That, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by it or on its behalf, 
it will state that all applicants will be afforded equal opportunity without 
discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin or 
ancestry, marital status, age physical or mental handicap unrelated to ability or an 
unfavorable discharge from the military. 



 12 

D. That it shall submit reports as required by the MGNWC’s rules and furnish all relevant 
information as may from time to time be requested by the MGNWC or the MGNWC, 
and in all respects comply with the Illinois Human Rights Act and the MGNWC's Rules. 

E. That it shall permit access to all relevant books, records, accounts and work sites by 
personnel of the MGNWC and the MGNWC for purposes of investigation to ascertain 
compliance with the Illinois Human Rights Act and the MGNWC’s rules. 

F. That it shall include verbatim or by reference the provisions of this clause in every 
subcontract it awards under which any portion of the contract obligations are 
undertaken or assumed so that such provisions will be binding upon such 
subcontractor.  In the same manner as with other provisions of this agreement, the 
Consultant will be liable for compliance with applicable provisions of this clause by 
such subcontractors; and further it will promptly notify the MGNWC or the MGNWC 
in the event any subcontractor fails or refuses to comply therewith.  In addition, no 
Consultant shall utilize any subcontractor declared by the Illinois Human Rights 
Commission to be ineligible for contracts or subcontracts with the State of Illinois or 
any of its political subdivisions or municipal corporations. 

G. If the Consultant has not complied with all provisions of the Illinois Human Rights 
Act, or the Rules and Regulations of the Illinois Department of Human Rights 
“MGNWC”, the Consultant may be declared ineligible for future contracts or 
subcontracts with the MGNWC and this agreement may be cancelled or voided in 
whole or in part, and such other sanctions or penalties may be imposed or remedies 
invoked as provided by statute or regulation. 

 
9 DEFAULT AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

9.1 Default. If it should appear at any time that the consultant has failed, refused or delayed 
to perform, the services any other requirement of this agreement with diligence at a rate 
that assures completion of the services and full compliance of this agreement, (“event of 
default”), and fails to cure any such event of default within ten business days after the 
Consultant’s receipt of written notice of such event of default from the MGNWC, then the 
MGNWC shall have the right, without prejudice to any other remedies provided by law or 
equity, to pursue any one or more of the following remedies:  

A. Cure by Consultant. The MGNWC may require the Consultant, within a reasonable 
time, to complete or correct all or any part of the services that are the subject of 
the event of default; and to take any or all other action necessary to bring the 
Consultant and the services into compliance with this agreement. 



 13 

B. Termination of Agreement by MGNWC. The MGNWC may terminate this agreement 
without liability for further payment of amounts due or to become due under this 
agreement. 

C. Withholding of Payment by MGNWC. The MGNWC may withhold from any 
payment, whether or not previously approved, or may recover from the Consultant, 
any and all costs, including attorneys’ fees and administrative expenses, incurred by 
the MGNWC as the result of any event of default by the Consultant or as a result of 
actions taken by the MGNWC in response to any event of default by the Consultant. 

9.2 Dispute Resolution. Any dispute related to this Agreement shall, upon request by either 
party, be submitted to a panel consisting of at least one representative of each party who 
shall have the authority to enter into an agreement to resolve the dispute.  In the event 
that the panel is unable to reach a mutual resolution of the dispute, or has failed to 
convene within two weeks of the request of either party, either party may refer the 
matter to a court of appropriate jurisdiction. All communications between the parties or 
their representatives in connection with the attempted resolution of any dispute shall be 
confidential and deemed to have been delivered in furtherance of dispute settlement and 
shall be exempt from discovery and production, and shall not be admissible in evidence 
whether as an admission or otherwise, in any arbitration, judicial or other proceeding for 
the resolution of the dispute. 

9.3  During the dispute resolution period, or if litigation ensues, pending any final judicial 
decision or settlement, Consultant shall proceed diligently with the services. 

 
10 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

10.1 Notice.  

A. Any notice or communication required or permitted to be given under this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered (i) personally to an authorized 
representative of the party; (ii) by certified mail addressed to the contact person 
listed in Section 1 of this agreement, return receipt requested, and deposited in the 
U.S. Mail, postage prepaid; (iii) by facsimile to a number provided by the contact 
person listed in Section 1 of this agreement, and deposited in the U.S. Mail, postage 
prepaid the recipient; or (iv) by electronic internet mail (“e-mail”) addressed to the 
contact person listed in Section 1 of this agreement, and deposited in the U.S. Mail, 
postage prepaid.  

B. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, notices shall be deemed 
received upon the earlier of actual receipt or three business days following deposit 
in the U.S. mail.   



 14 

C. By notice complying with the requirements of this Subsection, each Party shall have 
the right to change the address or the addressee, or both, for all future notices and 
communications to such party, but no notice of a change of addressee or address 
shall be effective until actually received. Notices and communications to the 
MGNWC shall be addressed to the party listed in Section 1 of this agreement.  

10.2 Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by the MGNWC or by the Consultant 
without the prior written consent of the other party. 

10.3 Third Party Beneficiary. No claim as a third party beneficiary under this agreement by 
any person, firm, or corporation other than the Consultant shall be made or be valid 
against the MGNWC. 

10.4 Provisions Severable. If any term, covenant, condition, or provision of this agreement is 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the 
remainder of the provisions shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be 
affected, impaired or invalidated. 

10.5 Time. Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. 

10.6 Governing Laws. This agreement shall be interpreted according to the laws of the State 
of Illinois. 

10.7 Binding Effect. The terms of this agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the 
Parties hereto and their agents, successors, and assigns. 

10.8 Entire Agreement. This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties and supersedes any and all previous or contemporaneous oral or written 
agreements and negotiations between either of the MGNWC and the CONSULTANT with 
respect to the Proposal and the Services. 

10.9 Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this agreement shall be deemed to or constitute a 
waiver of any other provision of this agreement (whether or not similar) nor shall any 
such waiver be deemed to or constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly 
provided in this Agreement. 

10.10 Remedies. No remedies or rights conferred upon MGNWC by this agreement are 
intended to be exclusive of any remedy or right provided by law or equity, but each shall 
be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy or right given herein or 
now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. 

10.11 Survival of Terms. Articles on Indemnity, Confidential Information and Rights in Data 
shall survive termination of this agreement.  



 15 

10.12 Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this 
agreement shall not affect the other provisions, and this agreement shall be construed 
in all respects as if any invalid or unenforceable provision were omitted.  

10.13 Exhibit. Exhibits A (Consultant’s proposal dated January 8, 2016) and B (insurance 
requirements) are attached hereto, and by this reference incorporated in and made a 
part of this agreement. In the event of a conflict between the Exhibit and the text of this 
agreement, the text of this agreement shall control. 

10.14 Rights Cumulative. Unless expressly provided to the contrary in this agreement, each 
and every one of the rights, remedies, and benefits provided by this agreement shall be 
cumulative and shall not be exclusive of any other such rights, remedies, and benefits 
allowed by law. 

10.15 Counterpart Execution. This agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of 
which, when executed, shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

_________________________________ 
MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION 
By: Steven Vinezeano, Chair  

 
_________________________________ 
True North Consultants, Inc.,   
By: Ryan M Ladieu, its President  



 16 

Exhibit A 
PROPOSAL OF TRUE NORTH CONSULTANTS, INC DATED APRIL 19, 2018   

FOR DEMOLITION AND ASBESTOS ABATEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES AT 2525 CHURCH 
STREET, EVANSTON, ILLINOIS  

 
 

  



 

    

 
April 19, 2018 
 
 
Mr. William Balling 
Superintendent 
Morton Grove – Niles Water Commission 
1000 Civic Center Drive 
Niles, IL 60714 
 
RE: Proposal for Demolition & Asbestos Abatement Consulting Services 
 Former Shore School 

2525 Church Street, Evanston, Illinois  
TNC Proposal #:  T18-172 

 
Dear Mr. Balling: 
 
True North Consultants, Inc. (True North) is pleased to provide this proposal to the Morton 
Grove-Niles Water Commission (Owner) to perform technical oversight for the demolition and 
asbestos abatement at the former Shore School located at 2525 Church Street in Evanston, 
Illinois (Site). 
 
The following sections of this proposal present scope of services, estimated costs, schedule, and 
limitations. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Task 1:  Demolition & Asbestos Abatement Oversight 
 
True North shall provide an EPA accredited/IDPH licensed Asbestos Project Manager (APM) 
and Air Sampling Professional (ASP) during the removal and disposal of identified asbestos-
containing materials.  The asbestos abatement contractor shall be contracted directly by the 
Owner.  Project Management and Air Sampling Professional duties will be performed as a dual 
role by one individual for the duration of abatement activities.  Duties of the ASP shall consist 
of area sampling and analysis.  Monitoring shall be performed in accordance with the 
requirements of applicable federal and state regulations.  Daily air sample analysis and 
clearance air monitoring shall be performed by Phase Contrast Microscopy (PCM) to ensure the 
quick detection of elevated fiber concentrations.   
 
Duties of the PM shall include the enforcement of all applicable regulations for the proper 



 

Demolition Consulting Services Proposal  >  Proposal # T18-172  >  04/19/2018  >  Page 2 

removal and disposal of asbestos-containing materials (ACM); requisition, review, and 
maintenance of contractor submittals; inspection and approval of barriers and decontamination 
enclosure systems observation of activities during abatement; meeting with the contractor to 
review work progress; inspection of the work area; reporting of abatement activities to the 
Owner or agent of; recording on-site observation in a daily log; and authorization to stop any 
abatement activities not performed in accordance with applicable regulations for the proper 
removal and disposal of ACM. 
 
True North shall provide a qualified technician to oversee the demolition of the structure.  The 
demolition contractor shall be contracted directly by the Owner.  The technician shall perform 
frequent visits to the Site to verify that the demolition is being performed in accordance with 
the specifications and local regulatory requirements.  The contractor shall be required to provide 
disposal documentation for all C&D material removed from the Site. 
 
Task 2:  Geotechnical Oversight 
 
True North shall provide a geotechnical engineer to oversee the installation of backfill at 
locations designated within the specification.  The engineer shall ensure the Contractor is 
meeting the backfill specifications and perform Modified Proctor testing to verify compliance.  
At the completion of backfill placement, True North shall provide a summary report 
documenting the placement of backfill on the site. 
 
PROJECT COSTS 
 
True North proposes to conduct the above scope of services in accordance with the following 
lump sum and estimated costs:   

 

Service  Quantity  Units   Rate  Total 

Task 1: Demolition & Asbestos Abatement Oversight1         

Asbestos Abatement Project Management (estimated)  8  Shifts  $680.00  $5,440.00 

Asbestos Air Clearance Samples (estimated)  10  Samples  $25.00  $250.00 

Demolition Project Management (estimated)  6  Shifts  $820.00  $4,920.00 

Field Vehicle, Expendables, etc.  6  Shifts  $175.00  $1,050.00 

Summary Reporting  1  Lump Sum  $900.00  $900.00 

Task 2: Geotechnical Inspection1         

Geotechnical Evaluation (estimated)  3  Shifts  $900.00  $2,700.00 

Modified Proctor   1  Test  $215.00  $215.00 



 

Demolition Consulting Services Proposal  >  Proposal # T18-172  >  04/19/2018  >  Page 3 

Service  Quantity  Units   Rate  Total 

Geotechnical Summary Report  1  Lump Sum  $200.00  $200.00 

Total Estimated Cost        $15,675.00 

NOTES: 
1 Estimated quantities ‐ actual number of shifts and samples shall be based on requirements of the project.    In the event that additional time is 

required per the request of the Owner, True North shall bill any additional time on an hourly basis per the attached fee schedule.  

 

Should the Owner request a change in the scope-of-work, or should circumstances render the 
current estimate invalid, a new estimate will be prepared and mutually agreed to in writing 
before further work proceeds.  Our Schedule of Terms and Conditions shall apply to the proposed 
work and is attached for your review.  Written authorization to proceed will form a binding 
contract and indicates your acceptance of our Terms and Conditions.  Any changes to our Terms 
and Conditions must be agreed to in writing by both parties prior to your authorization to 
proceed. 

 
SCHEDULE 
 
True North can initiate oversight services within two weeks of authorization.  Asbestos 
abatement and demolition reporting shall be completed within two weeks of demolition 
completion.    
 
LIMITATIONS & QUALIFICATIONS 
 
It is assumed for purposes of this estimate that access to the property is available during normal 
working hours and that records relating to the properties are reasonably ascertainable.  In 
addition, there are no encumbrances on the property that may limit observations. 
 
True North is not responsible for the location, identification or abandonment of any 
underground utilities at the Site. 
 
This proposal does not include additional evaluations, including hazardous material, or lead 
based paint, beyond the scope of work specifically identified herein.   
 
True North is not responsible for the means and methods of which the Owner’s contractors 
perform their work.  True North shall only be responsible for verification of scope of work 
completion and compliance with the bid specifications. 
 
This proposal does not include permit fees, or other fees that may be assessed by local, State, or 
Federal government agencies during the performance of environmental work on-Site. 
 
Field work, laboratory testing and engineering analysis will be performed in accordance with 



 

Demolition Consulting Services Proposal  >  Proposal # T18-172  >  04/19/2018  >  Page 4 

generally accepted soil and foundation engineering practices.  Samples are retained for 30 days 
from date of report and then destroyed unless other disposition is requested.  The data reported 
applies only to the soils sampled and the conditions encountered at each boring location.  This 
does not imply or guarantee that soils between borings will be identical in character.  Isolated 
inclusions of better or poorer soils can be found on any site.  The geotechnical engineer will not 
be liable for extra work or other consequences due to changed conditions encountered between 
borings.   
 
This proposal is valid for a period of 45 days from the date of this proposal.  In the event that 
authorization is received after 45 days from the date of this proposal, True North reserves the 
right to resubmit a new cost estimate for approval to reflect any additional costs associated with 
the proposed scope of work, if necessary. 
 
TERMS OF AGREEMENT 
 
If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign the attached service agreement and return 
it to our office via mail, fax or e-mail.  This agreement for professional services represents a 
contract between True North Consultants, Inc. and the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission.  
Our Terms and Conditions are hereby incorporated as part of this agreement.  
  
True North appreciates the opportunity to offer this proposal for demolition and asbestos 
abatement consulting services.  If you have any questions, please contact me at 224-387-6063. 
 
Regards, 
TRUE NORTH CONSULTANTS, INC. 
 
 
 
Ryan LaDieu, P.E. 
President 
 
 

  



 

Demolition Consulting Services Proposal  >  Proposal # T18-172  >  04/19/2018  >  Page 5 

Professional Services Agreement 
 

Proposal for Environmental Consulting Services 
Former Shore School Demolition & Asbestos Abatement 

Proposal No. T18-172 
 

The Client accepts the attached proposal in the amount up to fifteen thousand six hundred 
and seventy-five ($15,675.00) dollars and hereby authorizes True North to proceed with 
proposed services in accordance with the noted scope of work, project costs and fee schedule, 
schedule, limitations and qualifications, and the attached Terms and Conditions. 
 

Client Authorization  True North Consultants 

Signature: Signature:  

Name: Name:            Ryan LaDieu 

Title:  Title:              President 

Date:  Date:             April 19, 2018 



SCHEDULE OF TERMS & CONDITIONS 
 
1.0 PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE 
 

The following terms and conditions ("Terms") shall apply to and are an 
integral part of the attached proposal between True North Consultants, 
Inc. (True North) and the Client named in the attached proposal 
("Client"). Client's acceptance of the proposal includes acceptance of 
the Terms and any terms and conditions proposed by the Client will be 
deemed to materially alter the Terms and are hereby objected to and 
rejected by True North. Acceptance of this proposal, including 
acceptance of the Terms, shall occur upon the notification of True North 
by Client, in writing or orally, to commence performance in 
accordance with the proposal and the Terms. 
 
2.0   WARRANTY 
 

The Client recognizes that subsurface conditions may vary from those 
observed at locations where borings, surveys or explorations are made, 
and that site conditions may change with time.  Data, interpretation, 
and recommendations by True North will be based solely on information 
available to True North. True North is responsible for those data, 
interpretations, and recommendations, but will not be responsible for 
other parties' interpretations or use of the information developed.  Client 
acknowledges that whenever a Project involves hazardous or toxic 
materials and/or investigations of chemicals in the environment, there 
are inherent uncertainties involved (such as limitations on laboratory 
analytical methods, variations in subsurface conditions and the like) 
that may adversely affect the results of the Project, even though the 
services are performed with skill and care. True North shall perform the 
services consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by 
other professional consultants under similar circumstances at the same 
time the services are performed. No other warranty, expressed or 
implied, is made. 
 
3.0   SUBCONTRACTED AND OTHER SERVICES 
 

3.1 True North will select reputable subcontractors for test borings 
and/or other explorations or services based on oral or written 
competitive prices. The contractor's invoices shall be billed in 
accordance with our proposal. Nothing in this paragraph shall 
require that services or equipment be obtained through 
competitive bidding or be available from multiple sources. 

3.2 On occasion, True North engages the specialized services of 
individual consultants or other companies to participate in a 
project. When considered necessary, the cost of such services 
will be billed in accordance with our proposal. 

 
4.0   SITE ACCESS AND SITE CONDITIONS 
 

Client will grant or obtain free access to the site for all equipment and 
personnel for True North to perform the work set forth in this Agreement. 
The Client will notify any and all possessors of the project site that Client 
has granted True North free access to the site. True North will take 
reasonable precautions to limit damage to the site, but it is understood 
by Client that, in the normal course of work, some damage may occur 
and the correction of such damage is not part of this Agreement unless 
so specified in the Proposal.  The Client is responsible for the accuracy 
of locations for all subterranean structures and utilities. True North will 
take reasonable precautions to avoid known subterranean structures, 
and the Client waives any claim against True North, and agrees to 
defend, indemnify, and hold True North harmless from any claim or 
liability for injury or loss, including costs of defense, arising from damage 
done to subterranean structures and utilities not identified or accurately 
located. In addition, Client agrees to compensate True North for any 
time spent or expenses incurred by True North in defense of any such 
claim with compensation to be based upon True North's prevailing fee 
schedule/expense reimbursement policy. 
 
5.0   BILLING AND PAYMENT 
 

Invoices shall generally be submitted every four weeks for services 
performed during the previous four weeks. Payment shall be due within 
30 days of invoice date. If Client objects to all or any portion of any 
invoice, Client will so notify True North in writing within fourteen (14) 

calendar days of invoice receipt, identify the cause of disagreement, 
and pay within thirty (30) days that portion of the invoice, if any, not in 
dispute. The parties will immediately make every effort to settle the 
disputed portion of the invoice. In the absence of written notification 
described above, the balance as stated on the invoice will be paid. 
Invoices are delinquent if payment has not been received within thirty 
(30) days from date of invoice. Client will pay an additional charge of 
1-1/2 (1.5) percent per month (or the maximum percentage allowed by 
law, whichever is lower) on any delinquent amount, excepting any 
portion of the invoiced amount in dispute and resolved in favor of 
Client. Payment thereafter will first be applied to accrued interest and 
then to the principal unpaid amount. All time spent and expenses 
incurred (including any attorney's fees) in connection with collection of 
any delinquent amount will be paid by the Client to True North per True 
North's current fee schedules. In the event Client fails to pay True North 
within thirty (30) days after invoices are rendered, Client agrees that True 
North has the right to suspend this Agreement, without incurring liability 
to Client, after giving seven (7) days written notice to Client. 
 
6.0   DOCUMENTS AND ELECTRONIC FILES 
 

6.1 Written Documents:  Any letters, reports, or documents prepared 
by us for Client, are the instruments of our consulting and 
engineering services. These services provided by us are solely for 
Client's use for the project and site described in our proposal.  
Any documents prepared by us for the client shall not, in whole 
or in part, be disseminated or conveyed to another party, nor 
used by another party in whole or in part, without prior written 
consent from True North.  The Client shall, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, waive any claim against True North, and 
indemnify, defend, and hold True North harmless for any claim or 
liability for injury or loss allegedly arising from any third-party 
reliance on True North’s instruments of service without True 
North’s specific authorization to do so.   

6.2 Electronic Files:  The Client hereby grants permission for True North 
to use information and data provided by the Client, including 
electronic records produced or provided by the Client in the 
completion of the project.  The Client also grants permission to 
True North to release True North documents electronically to 
Consultants, Contractors, and Vendors as required in the 
execution of the project.   

 
7.0   INSURANCE 
 

True North maintains Workmen's Compensation Insurance as required 
by State law and General Liability Insurance for bodily injury and 
property damage with an aggregate limit of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence. True North will furnish certificates of such insurance upon 
request. In the event the Client desires additional coverage of this type, 
True North will, upon the Client's written request, obtain additional 
insurance (if possible) at the Client's expense. Our liability to the Client 
for bodily injury or property damage arising out of work performed for 
the Client for which legal liability may be found to rest upon us, other 
than for professional errors or omissions, shall be limited to our General 
Liability Insurance coverage. 
 
8.0   ALLOCATION OF RISK 
 

8.1  Limitation of Liability: Client agrees to limit True North's liability to 
Client, and to any other person or entity, for any claim arising 
from, or alleged to arise from any acts, errors or omissions in the 
performance of services under this Agreement whether such 
claim sounds in negligence, breach of contract, strict liability, or 
other legal theory, except for willful misconduct or gross 
negligence and including any legal fees or costs awarded under 
this Agreement, to an aggregate limit of the amount of fees paid 
to True North under this Agreement, or $50,000, whichever is 
greater. If Client prefers not to limit our professional liability to this 
sum, we shall waive this limitation upon Client’s written request, 
provided that Client agrees to pay for this waiver at a negotiated 
fee. Client’s request for this option must be made at the time 
Client accepts our proposal. In the event Client makes a claim 

Page 1 of 2 
 



SCHEDULE OF TERMS & CONDITIONS 
 

against us for any act arising out of the performance of our 
professional services, and fails to prove such claim, then Client 
agrees to pay all legal and other costs incurred by us in defense 
of such claim. 

8.2  Waiver of Consequential Damages: True North and Client agree 
to waive any claim against each other for consequential 
damages. 

8.3  Indemnification: True North shall indemnify and hold harmless 
Client from and against any and all claims, damages, or liability 
arising from the negligent performance of services under this 
Agreement by True North, including injuries to employees of True 
North. Client shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless True 
North from and against any and all claims, damages, or liability 
arising from or related to Hazardous Materials existing at the 
Project Site prior to the commencement of True North’s services 
under this Agreement, unless caused by the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of True North. 

8.4  Continuing Agreement: The obligations of this section shall 
survive notwithstanding termination of this agreement. In the 
event that Client requests that True North provide additional 
services, Client's obligations under this section shall apply to such 
additional services as if such additional services had to be 
performed as part of this Agreement. 

 
9.0   CHANGES 
 

9.1  Unforeseen Site Conditions: Client reserves the right to make 
reasonable changes in the work to be performed after 
acceptance of this Agreement. Client understands that 
unforeseen site conditions may require changes in the Scope of 
Work to be performed. 

9.2  Unauthorized Changes: If changes are made in True North’s work 
products by Client or persons other than True North, and these 
changes affect our work, any and all liability against True North 
arising out of such changes is waived and Client assumes full 
responsibility for such changes unless Client has given us prior 
notice and have received from us written consent for such 
changes. 

9.3  Client Requested Changes: Upon receipt of a change 
requested by Client, True North will obtain price quotations from 
our subcontractors and shall provide Client with a quotation of 
the cost of having the change performed, and any increase in 
contract time caused by the change. Client shall authorize the 
requested change by amending the contract price and 
contract time. 

 
10.0   NOTIFICATION OF HAZARDS 
 

It is Client’s duty to notify True North of any information Client has with 
respect to the existence or suspected existence of Biological Pollutants, 
Hazardous Materials, oil, or asbestos in the environment, including but 
not limited to the air, soil, and water at the site. Client will advise True 
North immediately of any information which Client receives regarding 
the existence of any such Hazardous Materials or conditions at the site 
which might present a threat to human health and safety or the 
environment or impact True North's work products. 
 
11.0   BIOLOGICAL POLLUTANTS 
 

True North’s scope of work, unless specifically outlined in our written 
scope of services, does not include the investigation or detection of the 
presence of any Biological Pollutants in or around any structure. Client 
agrees that True North will have no liability for any claim regarding 
bodily injury or property damage alleged to arise from or be caused by 
the presence of or exposure to any Biological Pollutants, in or around 
any structure. In addition, Client will defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless Consultant from any third party claim for damages alleged to 
arise from or be caused by the presence of or exposure to Biological 
Pollutants in or around any structure, except for damages arising from 
or caused by True North’s sole negligence. 
 
 
 

12.0   SITE CONTROL, CONFIDENTIALITY AND DISCLOSURE 
 

True North does not assume, by virtue of performing work on or near the 
site, the responsibility or liability for any aspect or condition of the site 
that may now or later exist to be discovered. In particular, we do not 
assume the responsibility to report to any governmental or regulatory 
agency the existence of any conditions of the site that may present a 
threat to human health, safety or the environment. True North will not 
intentionally divulge information regarding the proposal, our services or 
the report, and which is not in the public domain, except to Client or 
those whom Client designates. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Client 
understands that we will comply with judicial orders and applicable 
laws and regulations regarding the reporting to the appropriate public 
agencies of potential dangers to the public health, safety or the 
environment. 
 
13.0   RCRA COMPLIANCE 
 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted 
as requiring True North to assume the status of a generator, storer, 
treater, transporter, or disposal facility within the meaning of the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended, or 
within the meaning of any similar Federal, State, or local regulation or 
law. 
 
14.0   DELAYS 
 

Delays not the fault of True North or contractors shall result in an 
extension of the schedule equivalent to the length of delay. If such 
delays result in additional costs to True North, the total project cost shall 
be equitably adjusted by the amount of such additional costs. 
 
15.0   DISPUTE RESOLUTIONS 
 

Any claims or disputes between the Client and True North arising out of 
the services provided by True North or out of this Agreement shall be 
submitted to non-binding mediation as a condition precedent to 
arbitration or the institution of legal or equitable proceedings by either 
party.  The Client and True North agree to include a similar mediation 
agreement with all contractors, subconsultants, subcontractors, 
suppliers and fabricators, providing for mediation as the primary 
method of dispute resolution among all parties.  The laws of the State of 
Illinois will govern the validity of this Agreement, its interpretation and 
performance.  
 
16.0   MISCELLANEOUS 
 

16.1  Controlling Law: The law of the State of Illinois will govern the 
validity of these Terms, their interpretation and performance, as 
well as the contract entered into between the parties to which 
these Terms relate. If any part of this Agreement shall be held 
illegal, unenforceable, void, or voidable by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, each of the remainder of the provisions 
shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect as a separate 
contract and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or 
invalidated. 

 
16.2  Severability/Integration/Modification: This Agreement, including 

attachments incorporated herein by reference, represents the 
entire Agreement and understanding between the parties, and 
any negotiations, proposals, or oral agreements are intended to 
be integrated herein and to be superseded by this Agreement. 
This Agreement may not be modified or altered, except by an 
Agreement in writing and signed by authorized representatives 
of both parties hereto, which specifically refers to this 
Agreement. 

 
16.3  Waste Manifests: If during remedial construction activities waste 

manifests are required, Client shall provide an authorized person 
to sign manifests or agrees to provide True North with a written 
limited power of attorney to sign manifests. 

 
END OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
REVISED: January 19, 2015 

Page 2 of 2 
 



 17 

EXHIBIT B 
INSURANCE COVERAGES 
 
A. Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability with limits not less than: 

(1) Worker’s Compensation: Statutory; 
(2) Employer’s Liability: 
$500,000 injury-per occurrence 
$500,000 disease-per employee 
$500,000 disease-policy limit 
Such insurance shall evidence that coverage applies in the State of Illinois. 

 
B. Comprehensive Motor Vehicle Liability with a combined single limit of liability for bodily 
injury and property damage of not less than $1,000,000 for vehicles owned, non-owned, or 
rented. All CONSULTANT employees shall be included as insureds. 
 
C. Comprehensive General Liability with coverage written on an “occurrence” basis and with 
limits no less than: 

$2,000,000 Bodily Injury and Property Damage Combined Single Limit Coverage is to be 
written on an “occurrence” bases. 
Coverages shall include:  
- Broad Form Property Damage Endorsement 
- Blanket Contractual Liability (must expressly cover the indemnity provisions of the 
Contract) 

 
D. Professional Liability Insurance. With a limit of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate and covering CONSULTANT against all sums that 
CONSULTANT may be obligated to pay on account of any liability arising out of the Contract. 
 
E. Umbrella Policy. The required coverages may be in any combination of primary, excess, and 
umbrella policies. Any excess or umbrella policy must provide excess coverage over underlying 
insurance on a following-form basis such that when any loss covered by the primary policy 
exceeds the limits under the primary policy, the excess or umbrella policy becomes effective to 
cover such loss. 
 
F. MGNWC as Additional Insured. The MGNWC shall be named as an Additional Insured on all 
policies except for: Worker’s Compensation and Professional Liability. Each such additional 
Insured endorsement shall identify the MGNWC as follows: Morton Grove-Niles Water 
Commission, including its Board members and elected and appointed officials, its officers, 
employees, agents, attorneys, CONSULTANTs, and representatives 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-45 
Agreement w/ True North for Demolition  2525 Church  
 

5 

STATE OF ILLINOIS )       
   )  SS 
COUNTY OF COOK ) 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATE 
 
I, John Pietron, Clerk of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission, Cook County, State of 

Illinois, certify that the attached and foregoing is a true and correct copy of that certain Resolution 

now on file in my office, entitled: 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-45 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF A PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION AND TRUE 
NORTH CONSULTANTS, INC. FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES RELATED TO THE ASBESTOS REMOVAL 

AND DEMOLITION OF STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 2525 CHURCH STREET, EVANSTON, ILLINOIS  
 

which Resolution was passed by the Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water 

Commission at a Regular Meeting held on the 27th day of April 2018, at which meeting a quorum 

was present. 

I further certify that the vote on the question of the passage of said Resolution by the Board 

of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission was taken by Ayes and Nays and 

recorded in the minutes of the Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water 

Commission, and that the result of said vote was as follows, to-wit:  

 
AYES:  John Pietron and Steven Vinezeano 

  
NAYS:  None 

 
ABSENT: None (Cook County Appointee not appointed yet) 

 
I do further certify that the original Resolution, of which the foregoing is a true copy, is 

entrusted to my care for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful keeper of the same. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 27th day of April 2018. 

 

       _____________________________ 
                            John Pietron, Clerk 
 



RESOLUTION NO 18-46 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION AND ____________ FOR 

DEMOLITION AND ASBESTOS ABATEMENT AND REMOVAL SERVICES FOR STRUCTURES LOCATED 
AT 2525 CHURCH EVANSTON, IL 

 
WHEREAS, in 2017, the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission (“MGNWC” or 

“Commission”) was established by the Village of Morton Grove, a home rule Illinois municipal 
corporation (“Morton Grove”), and the Village of Niles, a home rule Illinois municipal corporation 
(“Niles”), by the adoption of ordinances pursuant to Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois 
Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-135-1, et seq.) (“Division 135”). The establishing ordinances are 
Morton Grove Ordinance 17-5, which was adopted on March 13, 2017, and Niles Ordinance No. 
2017-19, which was adopted on March 14, 2017; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the MGNWC was established for purposes of constructing and operating a public 
water supply system consisting of water transmission mains, pumping, storage, and other related 
water delivery and receiving infrastructure between a connection point on the Evanston water 
system and existing water receiving points of Niles and Morton Grove and 

 
WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago (“the “District”) 

is the fee simple owner of real estate located within the North Shore Channel Park Area (“the 
Property”). The District and the MGNWC  have entered into Easement Agreements for the purposes 
of granting certain temporary construction easement rights and permanent easement rights to 
allow the MGNWC to construct and operate a water distribution system pump station and related 
infrastructure improvements on the Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District has leased part of the Property commonly addressed as 2525 Church 
Street, Evanston, IL (the “Shore Property”) to the city of Evanston (“Evanston”) and Evanston intends 
to develop the Shore Property by demolishing the existing school and constructing an athletic field, 
splash pad, picnic shelter, public restrooms, and parking lot; and  

 
WHEREAS, Evanston and the MGNWC have negotiated a Memorandum of Understanding 

(“MOU”) which sets forth terms for the construction and operation of the MGNWC’s intermediate 
booster pump station on the Shore Property; and  

 
  WHEREAS, the MOU provides that MGNWC will contract and pay for engineering services 

and construction work to demolish and remove the existing school building and north parking lot 
from the Shore Property and Evanston will reimburse MGNWC for its reasonable costs associated 
with this work; and  

 
WHEREAS, on or about April 11, 2018, the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission 

(MGNWC), issued a Request for Proposals, entitled “Demolition and Asbestos Abatement  
Specifications and Request for Bid” (the MGNWC RFP), to provide services relating to the demolition, 
asbestos abatement and removal  of structures at 2525 Church Evanston, Illinois; and  

 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-46 
Agreement w/ ________ for Asbestos Removal & Demolition  2525 Church  
 

2 

WHEREAS,____________________, submitted the lowest bid for the demolition, asbestos 
abatement and removal of the building at 2525 Church Evanston, IL (the “Services”); and  

 
WHEREAS,____________________ was deemed qualified by the MGNWC’s environmental 

consultant, True North Consultants, Inc. to provide the Services; and   
 
WHEREAS, MGNWC and ____________ have negotiated an agreement for the Services for 

the not to exceed price of $_______________ pursuant to terms and conditions in substantially the 
same as the agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof (the “Agreement”); 
and  

 WHEREAS, the MGNWC Board has the authority to enter into the Agreement pursuant to 
Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, the Illinois Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1, et seq.) and the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/1, et seq., including 
65 ILCS 5/11-135-1, et seq.), and finds that entering into the Agreement is in the best interests of 
MGNWC, the Village of Morton Grove and the Village of Niles. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE MORTON 

GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:  Each Whereas paragraph above is incorporated by reference into this Section 1 

and made a part hereof as material and operative provisions of this Resolution. 
 
SECTION 2: The Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission 

(“MGNWC Board”) authorizes the approval of the economic terms and the attached form of an 
Agreement entitled “An Agreement Between the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission and 
____________ for Demolition and Asbestos Abatement and Removal Services for Structures 
Located at 2525 Church Evanston, Il” (the “Agreement”) for the purposes set forth in the Agreement, 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. The MGNWC Board authorize and direct the Chair, or his/her designee, 
and the Clerk to execute the final version of the Agreement, which may contain certain non-
substantive and non-financial modifications that are approved by the Village Manager of Niles and 
the Village Administrator of Morton Grove, and to execute and deliver all other instruments and 
documents and pay all costs that are necessary to fulfill MGNWC’S obligations under the Agreement. 

  
SECTION 3:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 

approval as provided by law.  
 
ADOPTED this 27th day of April 2018, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 
 

AYES:  John Pietron and Steven Vinezeano 
  

NAYS:  None 
 

ABSENT: None (Cook County Appointee not appointed yet) 
 
 
PASSED by the Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission, Cook 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-46 
Agreement w/ ________ for Asbestos Removal & Demolition  2525 Church  
 

3 

County, Illinois on a roll call vote at a Regular Meeting thereof held on the 27th day of April 2018, 
and approved by the Chair, and attested by the Clerk on the same day. 

 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Steven Vinezeano, Chair 
 
 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       John Pietron, Clerk  



RESOLUTION NO. 18-46 
Agreement w/ ________ for Asbestos Removal & Demolition  2525 Church  
 

4 

Exhibit A 
 

AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION AND 
____________ FOR DEMOLITION AND ASBESTOS ABATEMENT AND REMOVAL SERVICES FOR 

STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 2525 CHURCH EVANSTON, IL 
 
 

(attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 1 

AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION AND ____________ FOR 
DEMOLITION AND ASBESTOS ABATEMENT AND REMOVAL SERVICES FOR STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 2525 

CHURCH EVANSTON, IL 
 
 
This agreement ("Agreement") is made this ___ day of __________, 2018, by and between ______________, 
an Illinois ___________, whose mailing address is ______________ (the "Contractor") and the Morton Grove-
Niles Water Commission, whose mailing address is 1000 Civic Center Drive, Niles, Illinois 60714 ("Commission" 
or the “MGNWC”). The Contractor and the Commission are at times referred to herein individually as a “Party” 
and collectively as the "Parties." Morton Grove and Niles are at times referred to collectively as the “Villages”. 

RECITALS 
WHEREAS, on or about April 11, 2018, the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission (MGNWC), issued a 

Request for Proposals, entitled “Demolition and Asbestos Abatement Specifications and Request for Bid” (the 
MGNWC RFP), to provide services relating to the demolition, asbestos abatement and removal of structures at 
2525 Church Evanston, Illinois; and  

WHEREAS, ____________________. (the “Contractor”) submitted the lowest qualified bid in response to 
the MGNWC RFP; and  

The MGNWC and the Contractor further negotiated and refined the final Scope of Services that are to be 
performed by the Contractor under this Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof (the 
“Services”), and 

WHEREAS, the MGNWC agrees to retain the Contractor to perform the Services in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor agrees to perform the Services in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, mutual covenants and representations set forth in 
this Agreement, the Parties mutually agree that the Contractor shall perform the Services described below, 
and the MGNWC shall pay the Contractor for said performance, under the following terms and conditions: 
 
SECTION 1. INCORPORATION AND DEFINITIONS. 

Each of the above Whereas paragraphs are incorporated into this Section 1 as material provisions of this 
Agreement. 

Whenever used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated and the singular shall 
be read to include the plural and vice versa, and pronouns stated herein shall be construed to include all 
genders. 

A. The term "Agreement" includes the Recitals set forth above, which are incorporated into Section 1 of 
this Agreement, and shall mean this Agreement and its attached Exhibits as entered into by the 
Contractor and MGNWC setting forth the terms and conditions governing the Services.   

B. The term “MGNWC Affiliates” means MGNWC’s and the Villages of Morton Grove and Niles’ former, 
current and future appointed officials, officers, commissioners, employees, engineers, attorneys, 
Contractors, authorized representatives and volunteers. 

 
C.  The term “Scope of Work”, “Services” or “Work” means the services and work included in Scope of Services 

attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

H.  The terms "sub-consultant" and “sub-contractor” mean the person, independent contractor, partnership, 
corporation, joint venture or other business entity (including its employees, agents or others performing or 



 2 

supplying on its behalf, or at its direction) having a contract with the Contractor for the performance of any 
portion of the Services. 

I.  The term “MGNWC Working Group” means the respective staff and Contractors employed by Morton 
Grove, Niles and the Commission who are working on the Project.  

SECTION 2.   TERM OF AGREEMENT.  
 
This Agreement shall be effective on the date that the last signatory executes this Agreement, which date shall be 
inserted on page 1 of this Agreement, and shall terminate upon the completion by the Contractor and acceptance 
by the MGNWC of the Services, which shall occur or before _____________, 2018 (the “Completion Date”), unless 
this Agreement is terminated earlier by any Party, or by agreement of the Parties, in writing, to extend the 
Completion Date. 

SECTION 3.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A. Services; Non-Exclusive Relationship. The Contractor agrees to perform the Services to complete the Scope 
of Work in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The MGNWC, in its collective 
discretion, is also free to assign all or any portion of the Services to other vendors or Contractors, upon ten 
(10) calendar days written notice to the Contractor’s Primary Representative, and the Compensation of the 
Contractor shall be reduced on an equitable basis. Unless otherwise indicated by the MGNWC, the primary 
contact point for the MGNWC and the MGNWC Working Group (“MGNWC Representative”) to provide 
direction to the Contractor under this Agreement shall be: 

Bill Balling 
WRB, LLC 
Cellular Phone: (847) 863-7101 
Office Phone: (847) 398-8399 
Email: bill@wrbllc.com   

 
The Contractor is directed to address all technical questions to the MGNWC’s Technical Representative who shall be: 

Ryan M. LaDieu, P.E. 
True North Consultants, Inc.  
P: (630) 717-2880 M: (224) 387-6063 F: (630) 689-5881 
Email: rladieu@consulttruenorth.com 

B. Mutual Cooperation. The MGNWC agrees to cooperate with the Contractor in the performance of the 
Services, including meeting with the Contractor on an as-needed basis and providing the Contractor 
with such “Confidential Information” (as defined in Section 10 below) and non-confidential 
information that the MGNWC may have that may be relevant and helpful to the Contractor's 
performance of the Services. These documents shall be furnished to the Contractor without cost or 
expense to the Contractor. The Contractor agrees to cooperate with the MGNWC in the performance 
and completion of the Services, including meeting with the MGNWC, the MGNWC Representative 
and/or the MGNWC Working Group on an as-needed basis, and with any other Contractors engaged 
by the MGNWC.  

C. Contractor's Personnel and Representative.  
 
(1) Primary Representative. The Contractor shall designate ___________, who shall be available 

during normal business hours (Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. CST to 5:00 p.m. CST) and 
who shall serve as the Contractor's primary authorized representative throughout the Term of this 
Agreement. This “Primary Representative” shall be readily available to respond to communications 
from the MGNWC and shall be primarily responsible for performing the Services as requested by 
the MGNWC. The Primary Representative shall receive requests from the MGNWC to perform the 
Services and shall have full authority to execute the directions of the MGNWC, without delay, and 
promptly supply any necessary labor, equipment or incidentals to do so. The Primary 

mailto:bill@wrbllc.com


 3 

Representative shall, in the case of any off-hours emergency, be readily accessible and available for 
a quick response. The Contractor shall immediately notify the MGNWC in writing of any change in 
the identity and telephone number of the Contractor’s Primary Representative. The Primary 
Representative shall not be changed by the Contractor without the MGNWC's prior written 
approval. If the Primary Representative fails to perform the Services to the satisfaction of the 
MGNWC, then the Contractor shall immediately replace the Primary Representative with a new 
person with comparable experience and knowledge. 

 
(2) Availability of Personnel. The Contractor shall provide adequate personnel necessary to complete 

the Services. The Contractor shall notify the MGNWC as soon as practicable prior to terminating 
the employment of, reassigning or receiving notice of the resignation of any personnel assigned to 
regularly perform the Services. The Contractor shall have no claim for damages and shall not bill 
the MGNWC for additional time and materials charges as the result of any portion of the Services 
which must be duplicated or redone due to such termination or for any delay or extension of time 
in performing the Services as a result of any such termination, reassignment or resignation. 

 
(3) Approval and Use of Sub-consultants / Sub-contractors. The Contractor shall perform the Services 

with its own personnel and under the management, supervision and control of its own 
organization, unless otherwise approved in advance and in writing by the MGNWC. All sub-
consultants and sub-contractors used by the Contractor shall be acceptable to and approved in 
advance by the MGNWC. The MGNWC's approval of any sub-consultant or sub-contractor shall not 
relieve the Contractor of full responsibility and liability for the provision, performance and 
completion of the Services as required by this Agreement, including the agreed upon compensation 
for the Services. All Services performed under any sub-contract shall be subject to each of the terms 
of this Agreement, in the same manner as if performed by employees of the Contractor. Every 
subcontract that the Contractor enters into in regard to the performance of the Services under this 
Agreement shall include an express provision binding the sub-consultant or sub-contractor to all of 
the terms of this Agreement, and specifically noting the obligations in this Section 3.C(3).  

 
(4) Removal of Personnel and Sub-consultants / Sub-contractors. If any of Contractor’s personnel 

or any sub-consultant or sub-contractor fails to perform the Services in a manner satisfactory 
to the MGNWC and consistent with commonly accepted industry standards and professional 
practices, the Contractor shall immediately, upon notice from the MGNWC, remove and 
replace such personnel or sub-consultant or sub-contractor. The Contractor shall have no 
claim for damages, for compensation more than the amount contained in this Agreement, or 
for a delay or extension of time of performance because of any such removal or replacement. 

 
(5) Financial Ability to Perform. The Contractor states that it is financially solvent, has the financial 

resources necessary, has sufficient experience and competence, and has the necessary capital, 
facilities, organization and staff necessary to provide, perform and complete the Services set 
forth in this Agreement. 

D. PROJECT TIMING.  Work shall begin and shall be completed as specified in the Scope of Services. Time is 
of the essence to the contract.  

E. Notice to Proceed with Services. The Contractor shall commence the Services immediately upon 
execution of this Agreement.  (“Commencement Date”). The Contractor shall diligently and 
continuously work on the Services until the completion of the Services or upon the termination of this 
Agreement, but in no event later than the Completion Date. The Parties may mutually agree in writing 
to modify the Completion Date. Delays caused by the MGNWC shall extend the Completion Date in 
equal proportion to the delay caused by the MGNWC. If the Contractor performs any Services and 
incurs any expenses in furtherance of Scope of Services prior to receiving a written notice to proceed 
from the MGNWC, the Services are performed and the expenses are incurred at the Contractor’s sole 
risk, and such Services and expenses are not authorized for payment or reimbursement, unless and 
until a written notice to proceed is issued by the MGNWC. Upon authorization, the actual, 



 4 

documented approved Services performed prior to the issuance of the MGNWC notice to proceed 
shall be paid by the MGNWC as part of the “not to exceed” Fee provided by this Agreement. 

F. Suspension of Services. The MGNWC, at any time and for any reason, may suspend work on any or all 
Services by issuing a written work suspension notice to the Contractor. The Contractor must stop the 
performance of all Services within the scope of the suspension notice until the MGNWC directs the 
Contractor in writing to resume performance of the Services. 

G. Termination before Completion of Services. If the MGNWC decides not to proceed with the Project or 
any phase of the Project for any reason, this Agreement shall terminate upon written notice to the 
Contractor issued by the MGNWC advising of the termination of this Agreement. In such case, the 
MGNWC shall be liable to the Contractor only for payment of all actual, completed, documented 
Services through the date of termination. The Contractor agrees to waive any and all claims and causes 
of action for any other damages or losses of any kind that could be brought relative to the termination 
of this Agreement by the MGNWC based on the MGNWC’s decision not to proceed with any part of 
the Scope of Services.  

H. Final Acceptance.  The Services shall be considered complete on the date of final written acceptance 
by the MGNWC Representative, which acceptance shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

I. Sub-consultant/Sub-contractor List. The Contractor shall maintain an updated list of sub-consultant/sub-
contractors who are working on the Project and shall provide the list and any updates to the list to the 
MGNWC Representative. A copy of the initial sub-consultant/sub-contractor list shall be attached hereto as 
Exhibit B and made a part hereof; and any updated version(s) of the list shall be incorporated herein by 
reference. 

 
 SECTION 4.   EXHIBITS.  
 

The following exhibits are either incorporated by reference or attached to and made part of this Agreement 
as noted.  In the event of a conflict between an Exhibit and the text of this Agreement, the text of this Agreement 
shall control. 

Exhibit A  Scope of Services 

Exhibit B  Sub-consultant/Sub-contractor List 

Exhibit C  Compensation and Fee Schedule for Services (“Fee Schedule”) 

Exhibit D   Services Change Order (Form) 

Exhibit E   Performance and Payment Bond (Form) 

Exhibit F  Insurance Requirements for the Contractors, Sub-consultants and Sub-contractors  
 Exhibit G Contract Clauses Required by the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 

(“IEPA”) for Incorporation into this Agreement 

SECTION 5.   INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS. 

A. Relationship of the Parties. The Contractor's role, and the role of its employees and its sub-consultants 
and sub-contractors, with respect to the performance of the Services, is solely that of an independent 
contractor. The following terms and conditions are operative and applicable to the Parties under this 
Agreement: 

(1) Non-Exclusive Contractual Arrangement. The Contractor and its employees and its sub-
consultants and sub-contractors are retained under a non-exclusive contractual arrangement 
to perform the Services only for the limited purposes set forth in this Agreement. No 



 5 

provision of this Agreement or subsequent conduct between the Parties shall be construed to 
create a relationship between the Parties as that of “employer-employee,” “principal and 
agent,” “partners” or “participants in a joint venture.” 

(2) No Authority to Bind. The Contractor and its employees and its sub-consultants and sub-
contractors shall have no authority or right to enter into any contract or incur any debt or 
liability of any nature in the name of, or on behalf of the MGNWC or Morton Grove or Niles. 
 

(3) Not Employees of MGNWC, Morton Grove or Niles. The Contractor and its employees and its 
sub-consultants and sub-contractors serve only as independent contractors of the MGNWC, 
and not as employees of the MGNWC, Morton Grove or Niles, for all purposes, including, but 
not limited to, the application of the Fair Labors Standards Act minimum wage and overtime 
payments, including any similar Illinois wage laws, the Federal Insurance Contribution Act, 
the Social Security Act, the Federal Unemployment Tax Act, the Illinois Unemployment 
Insurance Act (820 ILCS 405/1 et seq.), and the Illinois Worker’s Compensation and 
Occupational Diseases Act (820 ILCS 305/1, et seq.). Therefore, neither federal nor state nor 
local income tax nor payroll tax of any kind, nor any other withholding, shall be withheld or 
paid by the MGNWC, Morton Grove, Niles or Cook County on behalf of the Contractor, and 
its employees and its sub-consultants and sub-contractors. Nothing in this Agreement shall be 
construed as MGNWC, Morton Grove or Niles requiring or acquiring or incurring any liability for 
Worker's Compensation, FICA, withholding tax, unemployment compensation or any other 
payment which would be required to be paid by the MGNWC, Morton Grove or Niles if the 
MGNWC and the Contractor, and its employees and its sub-consultants and sub-contractors, 
were engaged in an “employer-employee” relationship. 

(4)  Payment of Taxes. The Contractor and its employees and its sub-consultants and sub-
contractors are responsible, pursuant to applicable law, for payment of any income and 
employment taxes or any other taxes of any kind arising from their receipt of compensation 
under this Agreement.  

(5) Ineligible for MGNWC/Village Employment Benefits. The Contractor and its employees and 
its sub-consultants and sub-contractors agree that they shall not be entitled to receive or to 
participate in any employee benefits or health, life or professional liability insurance 
programs or other employee benefit programs or pension plans or retirement plans available 
to part-time or full-time MGNWC, Morton Grove or Niles or employees, and agree that they 
are ineligible to file a claim for unemployment compensation benefits or for Worker’s 
Compensation benefits against MGNWC, Morton Grove or Niles. The Contractor and its 
employees and its sub-consultants and sub-contractors agree not to file any such claims in 
the event this Agreement is terminated or if they are injured or become ill as a result of 
performing any Services under this Agreement.  

(6) Autonomy. The Contractor and its employees and its sub-consultants and sub-contractors 
are free to use their time, energy and skill when they are not performing the Services for the 
MGNWC on other endeavors, as they deem appropriate and advisable. 

(7) Discretion Over Performance and Delivery of Services.  The MGNWC shall have no control 
over the timing, means and way the Services are to be performed by the Contractor, and its 
employees or its sub-consultants and sub-contractors. The Contractor is responsible for 
directing and controlling the performance and completion of the Services in a timely manner 
that meets MGNWC’s requested schedule and the Completion Date.  

(8) Certification, Training and Licensing. The Contractor represents that its employees, sub-
consultants and sub-contractors: (a) are fully qualified, licensed, registered, trained and 
capable within their respective disciplines in accordance with applicable laws, regulations 
and industry standards, and (b) currently hold, and shall maintain throughout the Term of 
this Agreement, all required licenses, registrations, permits and certificates applicable to 



 6 

their performance of the Services. To the extent that equipment is being utilized in the 
providing of the Services, the Contractor and its employees and its sub-consultants and sub-
contractors shall use their own equipment and tools of the trade, and be qualified and 
authorized to operate same.  

(9) Applicable Regulations. The Contractor, and its employees and its sub-consultants and sub-
contractors, shall be familiar with and comply with the applicable Federal, State, County and 
local codes, ordinances and regulations, and shall use, apply and enforce the same when 
performing the Services.   

(10) Injury to Reputation. The Contractor, and its employees and its sub-consultants and sub-
contractors, shall not act in a manner that might injure the reputation of MGNWC Affiliates. 

 
 

SECTION 6.  COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 

A. Fee Amount. 

(1) Fee Schedule.  The MGNWC agrees to pay for any requested, fully completed and accepted 
Services rendered by the Contractor in accordance with and not to exceed the Compensation 
and Fee Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit C of this Agreement.  The “not to exceed” Fee for 
the Basic Services shall be $_________ (the “Not-To-Exceed Fee”). 

(2) Out-of-Pocket Costs. The Contractor, at its sole cost, shall pay all other expenses related to 
the performance of this Agreement including, but not limited to, travel, printing, 
reproduction, mailing, insurance premiums, licensing fees, fuel, overhead, administrative 
costs, delivery charges, and all costs associated with the acquisition and maintenance of 
vehicles and equipment. The Contractor may request reimbursement of these out-of-pocket 
costs, including the Reimbursable Costs shown in Exhibit C, upon proper documentation, but 
such reimbursement shall be paid as part of the payment of and within the dollar amount of 
the Not-To-Exceed Fee.  

(3) Scope of Fees. Except for the Cook County Notification of Asbestos Abatement Activities filing 
fee of $_________ which shall be paid by the MGNWC, the amounts set forth in the 
Compensation and Fee Schedule include all applicable Federal, State, County and Village taxes of 
every kind and nature applicable to the Services, as well as all taxes, contributions and premiums 
for unemployment insurance, old age or retirement benefits, pensions, annuities or similar 
benefits, and all costs, royalties and fees arising from the use on, or the incorporation into, the 
Services, of patented or copyrighted equipment, materials, supplies, tools, appliances, 
devices, processes or inventions. All claims or rights to claim additional compensation due to 
the payment by the Contractor of any such tax, contribution, premium, cost, royalty or fee 
are the sole responsibility of the Contractor, and any claim or demand from any person that 
the MGNWC or Morton Grove or Niles pay such taxes, contributions, premiums, costs, 
royalties or fees are waived and released and shall be indemnified by the Contractor. 

B. Invoices and Payment. 

(1) Frequency and Content. The Contractor shall submit invoices to the MGNWC monthly to the 
MGNWC Representative. Each invoice must be accompanied by receipts, vouchers and other 
documents as necessary to reasonably establish the Contractor’s right to payment of the 
Compensation stated in the invoice. In addition, each invoice must include employee 
classifications and employee designations (e.g., initials), rates per hour, and hours worked by 
each employee classification. If the Services are to be performed in separate phases, then, 
for each phase, the invoice must also include: the total amount billed in the current phase(s), 



 7 

the total amount billed to date including each completed phase and any current phase(s), 
and the estimated percent completion of the Services for each phase and on an overall basis. 

(2) Invoice Payment. The MGNWC agrees to make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) 
calendar days of receipt of the invoice, unless there is a dispute regarding the invoice, and to 
pay interest on unpaid balances under the provisions of the Local Government Prompt 
Payment Act (50 ILCS 505/1, et seq.), unless the Parties mutually agree to waive the interest 
payment. If there is a dispute regarding any invoice, the MGNWC shall make payment for 
that portion of the invoice not in dispute and the Parties shall cooperate to resolve the 
dispute as soon as possible in accordance with Subsection 6.G below, but any such dispute 
shall not cause the Contractor to stop performing Services or delay in its completion of the 
Scope of Work. The MGNWC’s failure to object to any monthly invoices and payment by the 
MGNWC for Services related to any monthly invoice or other periodic progress payment shall 
not be an acceptance by the MGNWC of such Services that are incomplete and in progress. 

(3) Final Payment. The Services will be considered complete on the date of final written 
acceptance by the MGNWC after completion of all the Services for the entire Scope of 
Services.  After delivery of the final report and completion of the Services, the Contractor 
shall request in writing a confirmation of acceptance of the Services by the MGNWC and shall 
also deliver an invoice for final acceptance and payment. The MGNWC will make final 
payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) calendar days after final written acceptance of 
the Services to be delivered under this Agreement, after deducting therefrom charges, if any, 
as provided in this Agreement (“Final Payment”). The acceptance by the Contractor of Final 
Payment will operate as a full and complete release of the MGNWC by the Contractor of and 
from all lawsuits, claims or demands for further payment of any kind for the Services 
performed by the Contractor.  

(4) Deductions. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the MGNWC may 
deduct and withhold from any payment or from Final Payment such amounts as may 
reasonably appear necessary to compensate the MGNWC for any loss due to: (1) Services 
that are defective, nonconforming or incomplete, (2)  liens or claims of lien, (3) claims against 
the Contractor or the MGNWC made by any of the Contractor’s sub-consultants, sub-
contractors or suppliers or by other persons about the Services, (4) delay by the Contractor in 
the completion of the Services, (5) the cost to the MGNWC, including without limitation 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, of correcting any of the matters stated in this Section or 
exercising any one or more of the MGNWC’s remedies set forth in Section 6.G. (Informal 
Dispute Resolution) or Section 13.O. (Cumulative Rights and Remedies) below. The MGNWC 
will notify the Contractor in writing, in accordance with Section 13.D. below, of the 
MGNWC’s determination to deduct and withhold funds, which notice will state with 
specificity the amount of, and reason or reasons for, such deduction and withholding. 

(5) Use of Deducted Funds.  The MGNWC will be entitled to retain all amounts withheld, pursuant 
to Section 6.B.(4) (Deductions) above, until the Contractor either has performed the 
obligations in question or has furnished security for that performance satisfactory to the 
MGNWC. The MGNWC will be entitled to apply any money withheld or any other money due 
to the Contractor to reimburse itself for all costs, expenses, losses, damages, liabilities, suits, 
judgments, awards and reasonable attorneys’ fees (collectively “Costs”) incurred, suffered or 
sustained by the MGNWC and chargeable to the Contractor under this Agreement. 

C. Records; Audit. The Contractor shall maintain records showing the Services performed and a record 
of additional services performed, and shall permit the MGNWC to inspect and audit all data and 
records of the Contractor for Services performed pursuant to this Agreement. The records shall 
include all billable charges and costs, descriptions and time entries by personnel (in minutes/hours 
increments) incurred in performing the Services in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practices, consistently applied, and in such manner as to permit verification of all entries. Upon 



 8 

written request by the MGNWC, the records shall promptly be made available to the MGNWC or its 
auditors during normal business hours during the Term of this Agreement, and for three (3) 
consecutive calendar years after the termination of this Agreement. Copies of such records shall be 
promptly furnished by the Contractor to the MGNWC at a reasonable per page photocopy expense or 
in an electronic or digital format at no charge. 

D.   Claim in Addition to Agreement Amount. 

(1) The Contractor shall provide written notice to the MGNWC of any claim for additional 
Compensation because of any action taken by the MGNWC, within fifteen (15) calendar days 
after the occurrence of such action. 

(2) The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that written notice pursuant to this Section shall not be 
deemed or interpreted as entitling the Contractor to any additional compensation; and that any 
changes in the Agreement Amount shall be valid only upon written amendment signed by all 
Parties pursuant to Section 6F. (Service Change Orders; Delays) below. 

(3) Regardless of the decision of the MGNWC relative to a claim submitted by the Contractor, 
the Contractor shall proceed with all of the Services required to complete the Services under 
this Agreement, as determined by the MGNWC, without interruption. 

E.   Additional Services. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that in no event shall the MGNWC or 
Morton Grove or Niles be liable for any additional Compensation or fees or costs incurred by the 
Contractor or any sub-consultant or sub-contractor in connection with any Services provided by the 
Contractor or any sub-consultant or sub-contractor that are outside of, or exceed, the scope of this 
Agreement ("Additional Services"), regardless of whether such Additional Services are requested or 
directed by the MGNWC or Morton Grove or Niles, except upon the prior written consent of the MGNWC 
provided under Section 6.F. (Service Change Orders; Delays) below. 

F.  Services Change Orders; Delays. 

(1)  Services Change Orders. The MGNWC, from time to time, may issue a written order 
modifying or otherwise changing the scope of the Services included in a Services Change 
Order (a “Services Change Order”). Copies of all Services Change Orders will be sent to the 
MGNWC Board by the MGNWC Representative upon receipt from the Contractor. The 
Services Change Order will be generally in the form attached to and by this reference 
incorporated into this Agreement as Exhibit D. The MGNWC or the Contractor may request a 
Services Change Order based on new or different information or changes in conditions or 
circumstances that were not known or not anticipated at the time of approval of this 
Agreement that results in change in the scope of any Services to be performed under this 
Agreement. A Services Change Order may include additions to and deletions from the 
Services and will include any equitable increases or decreases to the Compensation as 
mutually agreed to by the Parties. 

(2)  Revision Notices.  Within five (5) calendar days of receipt of a MGNWC-approved Services 
Change Order, the Contractor must notify the MGNWC Representative and the MGNWC 
Board in writing if the Contractor desires a revision to the Services Change Order (a “Revision 
Notice”). The Revision Notice must clearly state the Contractor’s requested revisions and the 
reasons for the revisions. If the MGNWC Board agrees to any revision, then the MGNWC 
Representative will issue a revised Services Change Order in a form acceptable to the Parties. 
If the Contractor does not submit a Revision Notice within the 5-calendar day period, then 
the Contractor will be deemed to have accepted the Services Change Order and the Services 
Change Order will be final. 

 
(3) Disagreements over Services Change Order Terms. If the MGNWC and the Contractor cannot 

agree on the proposed revisions to the Compensation or the Schedule terms of a Services 



 9 

Change Order, then the Parties will apply the dispute resolution provisions of this Agreement 
to reach agreement. In that event, the Contractor must proceed diligently with the revised 
Services as directed by the MGNWC Board pending resolution of the disagreement. The 
Contractor will be compensated equitably for the work the Contractor undertakes during the 
informal dispute resolution process. 

(4) No Change in Absence of a Services Change Order. No claim for an adjustment in 
Compensation or Project Schedule will be made or allowed unless it is embodied in a Services 
Change Order signed by the MGNWC Representative and the Contractor. If the Contractor 
believes it is entitled to an adjustment in the Compensation or Project Schedule terms that has 
not been included, or fully included, in a Services Change Order, then the Contractor may 
submit to the MGNWC a written request for the issuance of, or revision of, a Services Change 
Order including the desired adjustment. The Contractor’s request must be submitted before 
the Contractor proceeds with any Services for which an adjustment is desired. 

(5) Delays. If a delay in providing Services results from one or more causes that could not be avoided 
or controlled by the Contractor, then the Contractor may be entitled to an extension of the Project 
Schedule for a period equal to that delay. The Contractor must notify the MGNWC in writing within 
ten (10) calendar days after the start of the delay and again in writing within ten (10) calendar days 
after the delay has ended (the “Delay Period”). The first notice must state the cause or causes of 
the delay and the impact of the delay on providing Services. The second notice must state the 
cause or causes of the delay, the length of the delay, the reasons why the delay disrupted 
performance of the Services, and the Contractor’s request, if any, for a change in the Completion 
Date.  If the Contractor fails to submit notices as provided for in this Section, then the Contractor 
will be deemed to have waived any right to an adjustment.  

G. Informal Dispute Resolution. 
 
(1) Dispute Resolution. If a dispute arises between any of the Parties concerning this Agreement, the 

Parties will first attempt to resolve the dispute by negotiation. Each Party will designate persons to 
negotiate on their behalf. The Party contending that a dispute exists must specifically identify in 
writing all issues and present it to the other Parties. The Parties will meet and negotiate to resolve 
the matter. If the dispute is resolved because of such negotiation, there must be a written 
determination of such resolution, and ratified by the corporate authorities of each Party, which 
will be binding upon the Parties. If necessary, the Parties will execute an addendum to this 
Agreement. Each Party will bear its own costs, including attorneys’ fees, incurred in all proceedings 
in this Section. If the Parties do not resolve the dispute through negotiation, any Party to this 
Agreement may pursue other remedies under Section 13.O. (Cumulative Rights and Remedies) 
below to enforce the provisions of this Agreement. 

 (2)  Performance of Services. During the dispute resolution process, the Contractor must proceed 
diligently with the performance of Services. 

SECTION 7.  PERFORMANCE AND STANDARD OF SERVICES.  

A. Contractor Responsibilities. The Contractor, at its sole cost, agrees as follows:  
 

(1) Standard of Performance. The Contractor shall perform the Services in a manner consistent 
with the degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession 
currently practicing under similar circumstances in the Chicago Metropolitan Region (the 
“Standard of Performance”). All Services must be free from defects and flaws, must conform 
to the requirements of this Agreement, and must be performed in accordance with the 
Standard of Performance. The Contractor is fully and solely responsible for the quality, 



 10 

technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of all Services. Such performance shall be 
to the satisfaction of the MGNWC. All Services shall be performed in a reasonably prompt 
manner.  

(2)  Corrections of Defects, Errors and Omissions. If any errors, omissions or acts, intentional or 
negligent, are made by the Contractor and/or its employees, its sub-consultants and sub-
contractors in providing the Services, the correction of which requires additional Services, 
the Contractor shall be required to perform such additional Services as may be necessary to 
remedy same without undue delay and without any charge or cost to the MGNWC. The 
Contractor must provide, for no additional Compensation and at no separate expense to the 
MGNWC, all work required to correct any defects or deficiencies in the performance of 
Services, regardless of whether the defect or deficiency relates to the work of the Contractor 
or of the Contractor’s sub-consultants or suppliers. 

 
(3)  Risk of Loss. The Contractor bears the risk of loss in providing all Services. The Contractor is 

responsible for all damages to property or persons arising from any Contractor negligent or 
intentional error, omission or act and for any losses or costs to repair or remedy any work 
undertaken by the MGNWC based on the Services because of any such error, omission or act. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Contractor’s obligations under this 
Section 7 exist without regard to, and may not be construed to be waived by, the availability or 
unavailability of any insurance, either of the MGNWC or the Contractor, to indemnify, hold 
harmless or reimburse the Contractor for damages, losses or costs. 

(4) Communications with Regulators. The Contractor must comply with all statutes, ordinances, 
codes and regulations applicable to the Services. Except to the extent expressly set forth in this 
Agreement, the Contractor may not communicate directly with applicable governmental 
regulatory agencies about the Services without prior express authorization from the MGNWC 
Board or the MGNWC Representative. The Contractor must either direct inquiries from 
governmental regulatory agencies to the MGNWC Board for appropriate response or respond 
on behalf of the MGNWC as directed by the MGNWC Representative. To the extent that the 
Contractor communicates directly with applicable governmental regulatory agencies with 
regard to Services, it shall promptly (same day or within twenty-four (24) hours) inform the 
MGNWC Representative of such communications, provide copies to the MGNWC 
Representative of any such written communications (e.g., letters, emails, etc.) and shall copy 
the MGNWC Representative or the MGNWC Working Group on its own communications to the 
governmental regulatory agencies, as requested by the MGNWC. In those cases that the 
MGNWC will be either responding directly to the regulatory agencies, or providing information 
to the Contractor to allow the Contractor to respond, the response must be made within five 
(5) calendar days so as not to delay the Project. 

(5)  Contractor Payments; Waivers of Liens. The Contractor must pay promptly for all services, 

labor, materials and equipment used or employed by the Contractor in the performance of any 
Services and must not cause any materials, equipment, structures, buildings, premises and 
property of the MGNWC to be impressed with any mechanic’s lien or other liens. The 
Contractor, if requested, must provide the MGNWC with reasonable evidence that all services, 
labor, materials and equipment have been paid in full and with waivers of lien as appropriate. 

(8)  Safety; Hazardous Materials. 

i. Protection of Health, Environment. The Contractor’s personnel must be experienced 
and properly trained to perform the Services and must take adequate precautions to 
protect human health and the environment in the performance of Services. 



 11 

ii. Notice of Hazardous Conditions. If the Contractor observes a potentially hazardous 
condition relating to the Services, the Contractor must immediately bring that 
condition to the attention of the MGNWC Board, the MGNWC Representative and the 
MGNWC Working Group. 

iii. Hazardous Materials. The Contractor acknowledges that there may be hazardous 
substances, wastes or materials as defined by applicable Law (“Hazardous Materials”) 
within the proposed Project area or otherwise associated with Services, and the 
Contractor under those circumstances must take appropriate precautions to protect 
its employees, sub-consultants and suppliers, and shall advise in writing the MGNWC 
Board, the MGNWC Representative and the MGNWC Working Group of the presence 
or suspected presence and location of such Hazardous Materials. 
 

(9) Performance Bond and a Payment Bond.   

i. The Contractor shall provide a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond in the full 
amount of the Agreement. The bonds shall be in form and substance satisfactory to the 
MGNWC, consistent with Exhibit E.  The Contractor shall pay the cost of premiums for 
said bonds. The bonds shall be signed and sealed by an authorized representative of the 
bonding company and an authorized officer or representative of the Contractor, and a 
certificate of the authority of those signing the bonds, if not officers, shall be attached 
thereto. 

ii. The Performance Bond and the Payment Bond shall guarantee the performance of the 
duties placed on the Contractor by the Prevailing Wage Act, as well as all other duties 
undertaken by the Contractor pursuant to the Agreement and shall indemnity the 
MGNWC from any liability or loss resulting to the MGNWC from any failure of the 
Contractor to fully to perform each all said duties.  The Performance Bond and the 
Payment Bond shall be deemed to cover all such duties. 

iii. The Performance Bond and the Payment Bond herein provided shall be placed with a 
surety company or companies having a policyholders' rating not lower than "A" and a 
financial rating not lower than "X" in Best's Insurance Guide (current edition).  Company 
must be licensed in the State of Illinois and shall show evidence of same. 

iv. The bond furnished by the Contractor shall fully comply with the Illinois Public 
Construction Bond Act (30 ILCS550/0.01 et seq.) including the provisions as found in 
section 30 ILCS 550/1., entitled, Bond Required- Provisions required in bond as 
amended.  

v. The bond shall include a provision stating that no modification of any provision of any 
Contract Document, including, without limitation, a change in the contract time, 
Compensation or other condition of payment, will release the surety either in part or in 
whole. If from time to time the Compensation is increased by $10,000.00 or more, then 
the bond thereto shall be increased by the amount which the contract sum was 
increased. 

B. MGNWC Responsibilities. The MGNWC, at its collective cost, agrees as follows: 

(1)  To designate in writing a person with authority to act on behalf of the MGNWC with respect to 
the Services. The MGNWC Representative will have the authority to act on behalf of the 
MGNWC, except on matters that require approval of the respective governing authorities of 
the MGNWC or the input of the MGNWC Working Group. 



 12 

(2)  To provide to the Contractor all criteria and information about the requirements for the 
Services, including, as relevant, the MGNWC’s objectives and constraints, schedule, space, 
capacity and performance requirements, and budgetary limitations. 

(3)  To provide to the Contractor existing studies, reports and other available data relevant to the 
Services. 

(4)  To arrange for access to, and make provisions for the Contractor (and its employees, sub-
consultants and sub-contractors) to enter on, public and private property as reasonably 
required for the Services. 

(5)  To provide, as relevant, existing surveys and GIS data describing physical characteristics, legal 
limitations and utility locations for the Services and the services of other Contractors when the 
services of other Contractors are requested by the Contractor and are necessary for the 
performance of the Services.  

(6)  To provide structural, mechanical, chemical, air and water tests, tests for hazardous materials, 
and other laboratory and environmental tests, inspections and reports required by law to be 
provided by the MGNWC in connection with the Services, except to the extent such tests, 
inspections or reports are part of the Services. 

(7) To review reports, documents, data and all other information presented by the Contractor as 
appropriate and to provide responses in a timely manner.  

(8)  To provide approvals from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Services 
when requested by the Contractor, except to the extent such approvals are part of the 
Services. 

(9) To attend meetings related to the Services. 

(10) To give prompt written notice to the Contractor whenever the MGNWC or one of the MGNWC 
Affiliates observes or otherwise becomes aware of any development that affects the scope or 
timing of Services, except that the inability or failure of the MGNWC or one of the MGNWC 
Affiliates to give any such a notice will not relieve the Contractor of any of its responsibilities 
under this Agreement. 

SECTION 8. INDEMNIFICATION  

A.   To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify the 
MGNWC and the MGNWC Affiliates from and against any and all injury, death, loss, property damage, 
judgments, liens, claims, suits, liabilities, actions, causes of action, demands, expenses, costs or other 
liabilities of any character (including reasonable attorney fees and litigation costs) to the extent arising in 
whole or in part, relating to or resulting from the performance under this Agreement by the Contractor 
and/or its employees and its sub-consultants and sub-contractors, or others performing or furnishing 
any Services directly or indirectly on the Contractor's behalf, including but not limited to: (a) failure to 
comply with, or violation of, any federal, state or local law, statute, regulation, rule, ordinance, order or 
governmental directive; (b) negligent acts, omissions or willful misconduct; and (c) failure to comply with 
the terms, conditions, representations or warranties contained in this Agreement. In connection with 
any such liabilities, the MGNWC and the MGNWC Affiliates shall have the right to defense counsel of 
their choice and the Contractor shall be solely liable for all reasonable costs, fees and expenses of such 
defense. Any insurance policies required to be maintained pursuant to this Agreement shall in no way 
limit the extent of the Contractor's responsibility to indemnify as herein provided. The terms of this 
indemnity shall survive the suspension, expiration or termination of this Agreement. 



 13 

B. If the MGNWC or the MGNWC Affiliates permits the Contractor to use any of the MGNWC or the 
MGNWC Affiliates’ equipment, tools or facilities, such use will be gratuitous and the Contractor shall 
release the MGNWC or the MGNWC Affiliates’ from any responsibility arising from claims for personal 
injuries, including death arising out of the use of such equipment, tools, facilities irrespective of the 
condition thereof or any negligence on the part of the MGNWC or the MGNWC Affiliates in permitting 
their use.  

C. Kotecki Waiver. The Contractor (and all sub-consultants and sub-contractors into whose subcontract 
this clause is incorporated) agrees to assume the entire liability for all personal injury claims suffered by its 
own employees and waives any limitation of liability defense based upon the Worker's Compensation Act 
and cases decided thereunder. The Contractor agrees to indemnify and defend MGNWC and the MGNWC 
Affiliates from and against all such loss, expense, damage or injury, including reasonable attorney fees, 
which MGNWC and the MGNWC Affiliates, may sustain as a result of personal injury claims by the 
Contractor's employees and by the sub-consultants and sub-contractors and their respective 
employees, except to the extent those claims arise as a result of MGNWC’s and the MGNWC Affiliates’ 
own negligence. 

D. No Personal Liability.  No elected or appointed official or employee of the MGNWC and the MGNWC 
Affiliates shall be personally liable, in law or in contract, to the Contractor as the result of the 
execution of this Agreement. No employee of the Contractor, sub-consultants, and sub-contractors 
shall be personally liable, in law or in contract, to the MGNWC as the result of the execution of this 
Agreement. 

SECTION 9.  INSURANCE. 

A.  During the Term of this Agreement, or any extended term, the Contractor shall procure and maintain 
the insurance coverages set forth in Exhibit F.    

SECTION_10. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. 

A. No Disclosure of Confidential Information. The Contractor acknowledges that it shall, in performing the 
Services for the MGNWC under this Agreement, have access, or be directly or indirectly exposed, to 
Confidential Information, as defined below. The Contractor shall hold confidential all Confidential 
Information of the MGNWC and Morton Grove and Niles and shall not disclose or use such Confidential 
Information without the express prior written consent of the MGNWC, Morton Grove or Niles, 
depending on whose Confidential Information is at issue. The Contractor shall use reasonable measures 
at least as strict as those the Contractor uses to protect its own confidential information. Such 
measures shall include, without limitation, requiring its employees and sub-consultants and sub-
contractors of the Contractor to execute a non-disclosure agreement (in a format approved by the 
MGNWC) before obtaining access to Confidential Information. 

 
(1) Confidential Information. All confidential information and data disclosed by the MGNWC and 

developed or obtained from the MGNWC under this Agreement must be treated by the 
Contractor as proprietary and confidential information (“Confidential Information”). Based on 
whose Confidential Information is at issue, the Contractor must not disclose Confidential 
Information without the MGNWC’s or Morton Grove’s or Niles’ prior written consent. No 
person may use Confidential Information for any purpose other than for the proper 
performance of the Services. The obligations under this Section  do not apply to Confidential 
Information that is (i) in the public domain without breach of this Agreement, (ii) developed by 
the Contractor independently from this Agreement, (iii) received by the Contractor on a non-
confidential basis from others who had a right to disclose the information, or (iv) required by 
law to be disclosed, but only after prior written notice has been received by the MGNWC or 
Morton Grove or Niles and the MGNWC or Morton Grove or Niles has had a reasonable 
opportunity to protect disclosure of the Confidential Information. The Contractor must ensure 



 14 

that the foregoing obligations of confidentiality and use extend to and bind the Contractor’s 
employees, sub-consultants and sub-contractors. 

 
B. Ownership of Data and Documents. The Parties expressly agree that all data, documents, records, studies 

or other information (collectively “Data”) provided by the MGNWC to the Contractor or generated, 
created, found or otherwise completed by the Contractor, and its employees, sub-consultants and sub-
contractors, in the performance of Contractor's Services under the terms of this Agreement shall at all 
times remain the proprietary information of and under the ownership of the MGNWC and shall be 
provided to the MGNWC by the Contractor upon request of the MGNWC, or at the termination of this 
Agreement. All Data, regardless of its format, developed or obtained under this Agreement, other than 
the Contractor’s confidential information, will be and remain the sole property of the MGNWC, unless the 
MGNWC agree that certain portions of the Data is the sole property of either Morton Grove or Niles. The 
Contractor must promptly deliver all Data to the MGNWC at the MGNWC’s request. The Contractor is 
responsible for the care and protection of the Data until that delivery. The Contractor may retain one or 
more copies of the Data. Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon request of the MGNWC at any time, or at 
the termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall promptly return to the MGNWC all documents 
provided to the Contractor by the MGNWC during the Term of this Agreement.  

C. Intellectual Property. The Contractor may not infringe on any intellectual property (including but not 
limited to patents, trademarks, or copyrights) (collectively “Intellectual Property”) in the performance 
of Services. If ever the Contractor is alleged to have infringed on any Intellectual Property, then, in 
addition to the Contractor’s obligations to indemnify the MGNWC under this Agreement, the 
Contractor also, at the sole discretion of the MGNWC and at the Contractor’s sole expense (a) procure 
for the MGNWC the right to continue using the infringing subject matter, or (b) replace or modify the 
infringing subject matter so that it becomes non-infringing but still complies with the requirements of 
this Agreement, or (c) reimburse the MGNWC for all payments made to the Contractor relating to or 
impacted by the infringing material and all costs incurred by the MGNWC resulting from such 
infringement. 

D.  Copyrights and Patents. The Contractor agrees not to assert, or to allow persons performing under the 
Contractor’s control to assert, any rights to Data or establish any claim under design, patent, or copyright laws. 
It is expressly agreed that all copyrightable or patentable Data produced as part of Services has been 
specifically commissioned by the MGNWC and is considered “work for hire,” and that all copyrightable and 
other proprietary rights in that Data will vest solely in the MGNWC.  Further, the Contractor agrees that all 
rights under copyright and patent laws under this Agreement belong to the MGNWC. The Contractor assigns 
any and all rights, title, and interests under copyright, trademark, and patent law to the MGNWC and agrees to 
assist the MGNWC in perfecting the same at the MGNWC’s expense. 

E.  Advertisements; Media / News Releases; Use of Letterhead or Logo.  The Contractor, and its 
employees, sub-consultants and sub-contractors, shall not issue any media news releases, 
advertisements, promotional materials or other public statements regarding the Services without the 
prior written consent of the MGNWC Working Group. The Contractor shall not use the letterhead or 
logo or any service mark or trademark of Morton Grove without the prior written consent of the 
Village Administrator of Morton Grove and shall not use the letterhead or logo or any servicemark or 
trademark of Niles without the prior written consent of the Village Manager of Niles. 

SECTION 11.   COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. 

A. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor, and its employees, sub-consultants and sub-contractors, shall 
comply with all applicable laws, regulations and rules promulgated by any Federal, State, County, 
local, or other governmental authority or regulatory body pertaining to all aspects of the Services, 
now in effect, or which may become in effect during the performance of the Services. The scope of 
the laws, regulations and rules referred to in this paragraph includes, but is in no way limited to, the 
Occupational Safety and Health Act standards, the Illinois Human Rights Act, the Illinois Equal Pay Act 



 15 

of 2003, along with the standards and regulations promulgated pursuant thereto (including but not 
limited to those safety requirements involving work on elevated platforms), all forms of traffic 
regulations, public utility, Interstate and Intrastate Commerce Commission regulations, Workers' 
Compensation Laws, the Substance Abuse Prevention on Public Works Projects Act, Prevailing Wage 
Laws, the Smoke Free Illinois Act, the USA Security Act, the Federal Social Security Act (and any of its 
titles), and any other law, rule or regulation of the Illinois Department of Labor, Illinois Department 
of Transportation, Illinois Environmental Protection Act, Illinois Department of Human Rights, Human 
Rights Commission, EEOC, Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago, the Village of 
Morton Grove and the Village of Niles. If the Contractor, or its employees, sub-consultants and sub-
contractors, in performing the Services are found to have not complied with any of the applicable 
laws and regulations as required by this Agreement, then the Contractor shall indemnify and hold the 
MGNWC harmless, and pay all amounts determined to be due from the MGNWC for such non-
compliance by the Contractor, including, but not limited to fines, costs, attorneys’ fees and penalties. 
 
(1)  Employment of Illinois Workers on Public Works Act Compliance. To the extent required by 

law, the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of the Employment of Illinois 
Workers on Public Works Act (30 ILCS 570/0.01 et seq.).  

 
(2)  Preference to Veterans Act Compliance. The Contractor will comply with the Preference to 

Veterans Act (330 ILCS 55). 
 
(4) Patriot Act Compliance. The Contractor represents and warrants to the Villages that neither it 

nor any of its principals, shareholders, members, partners, or affiliates, as applicable, is a 
person or entity named as a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person (as defined in 
Presidential Executive Order 13224) and that it is not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on 
behalf of a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person. The Contractor further 
represents and warrants to the Villages that the Contractor and its principals, shareholders, 
members, partners, or affiliates, as applicable, are not, directly or indirectly, engaged in, and 
are not facilitating, the transactions contemplated by this Agreement on behalf of any person 
or entity named as a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person. The Contractor hereby 
agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Villages, their respective corporate 
authorities, and all of each Village's elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents, 
representatives, engineers, and attorneys, from and against any and all claims, damages, 
losses, risks, liabilities, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs) arising 
from or related to any breach of the representations and warranties in this subsection. 

 
B. The Parties to this Agreement shall further comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, 

rules and regulations in carrying out the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including the 
following:   
 
(1) Certification. Each Party and its officers, corporate authorities, employees and agents certify 

that they are not barred from entering into this Agreement as a result of a violation of either 
720 ILCS 5/33E-3 or 5/33E-4 (bid rigging or bid rotating) or 5/33E-6 (interference with contract 
submission and award by public official) or as a result of a violation of 820 ILCS 130/1 et seq. 
(the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act) or as a result of: (1) a delinquency in the payment of any tax 
administered by the Illinois Department of Revenue or any fee required by any unit of local 
government or the State, unless the Party is contesting, in accordance with the procedures 
established by the appropriate revenue act, its liability for the tax or the amount of the tax or the 
fee, as set forth in Section 11-42.1-1 et seq. of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-42.1-1 et seq. 
Each Party and its officers, corporate authorities, employees and agents further certify by 
signing this Agreement that the Party and its officers, corporate authorities, employees and 
agents have not been convicted of, or are not barred for attempting to rig bids, price-fixing or 
attempting to fix prices as defined in the Sherman Anti-Trust Act and Clayton Act. 15 U.S.C. § 1 



 16 

et seq.; and has not been convicted of or barred for bribery or attempting to bribe an officer or 
employee of a unit of state or local government or school district in the State of Illinois in that 
officer’s or employee’s official capacity. Nor has any of the Parties and their officers, corporate 
authorities, employees and agents made admission of guilt of such conduct which is a matter 
of record, nor has any official, officer, agent or employee of the Parties been so convicted nor 
made such an admission. 
 

(2) Non-Discrimination. Each Party and its officers, corporate authorities, employees and agents 
agree not to commit unlawful discrimination and agree to comply with all applicable provisions 
of the Illinois Human Rights Act, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, Section 504 of the 
Federal Rehabilitation Act, and all applicable rules and regulations. Each Party maintains a 
written Sexual Harassment Policy in compliance with Section 2-105 of the Illinois Human Rights 
Act (775 ILCS 5/2-105(A)(4)). Each Party certifies that it is an "Equal Opportunity Employer" as 
defined by federal and State laws and regulations, and agrees to comply with the Illinois 
Department of Human Rights (“IDHR”) Equal Opportunity Employment clause as required by 
the IDHR's Regulations (44 III. Adm. Code, Part 750, Appendix A). As required by Illinois law 
and IDHR Regulation, the Equal Opportunity Employment clause is incorporated by reference 
in its entirety as though fully set forth herein. Each Party certifies that it agrees to comply with 
the Prohibition of Segregated Facilities clause, which is incorporated by reference in its 
entirety as though fully set forth herein. See, Illinois Human Rights Act (775 ILCS 5/2-105). See 
also, Illinois Department of Human Rights Rules and Regulations, Title 44, Part 750. 
Administrative Code, Title 44: Government Contracts, Procurement and Property Management, 
Subtitle B: Supplemental Procurement Rules, Chapter X: Department of Human Rights, Part 
750: Procedures Applicable to All Agencies, Section 750.160: Segregated Facilities (44 Ill. Adm. 
Code 750.160) 

 
(3) Illinois Freedom of Information Act. The definition of a public record in the Freedom of 

Information Act (5 ILCS 140/1 et seq.) (“FOIA”) includes a “public record that is not in the 
possession of a public body but is in the possession of a party with whom the agency has 
contracted to perform a governmental function on behalf of the public body and that directly 
relates to the governmental function and is not otherwise exempt under this Act.” (5 ILCS 
140/7(2). Consequently, the Parties must maintain and make available to the other Parties, 
upon request, their public records relating to the performance of this Agreement in 
compliance with the requirements of the Local Records Act (50 ILCS 205/1 et seq.) and FOIA. 
To facilitate a response by the MGNWC to any FOIA request, the Contractor agrees to provide all 
requested public records within five (5) business days of a request being made by MGNWC. The 
Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless MGNWC and the MGNWC Affiliates, 
and agrees to pay all reasonable costs connected therewith (including, but not limited to, 
reasonable attorney and witness fees, filing fees and any other expenses) for the MGNWC, Morton 
Grove and/or Niles to defend any and all causes, actions, causes of action, disputes, prosecutions 
or conflicts arising from the Contractor's actual or alleged violation of the FOIA or the Contractor's 
failure to furnish all public records as requested by the MGNWC. Furthermore, should the 
Contractor request that the MGNWC utilize a lawful exemption under FOIA in relation to any FOIA 
request thereby denying that request, the Contractor agrees to pay all costs connected therewith 
(such as reasonable attorney and witness fees, filing fees and any other expenses) to defend the 
denial of the request. The defense shall include, but not be limited to, challenged or appealed 
denials of FOIA requests to either the Illinois Attorney General or a court of competent jurisdiction. 
The Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless MGNWC and the MGNWC 
Affiliates, and agrees to pay all costs incurred by the MGNWC, Morton Grove and/or Niles 
connected therewith (such as reasonable attorney and witness fees, filing fees, penalties, fines, and 
any other expenses) to defend any denial of a FOIA request pursuant to the Contractor's request to 
utilize a lawful exemption. 



 17 

C. Contractor Representations. 
 
(1) No Collusion. The Contractor represents and certifies that the Contractor is not barred from 

contracting with a unit of State or local government as a result of: (1) a delinquency in the 
payment of any tax administered by the Illinois Department of Revenue or any fee required by the 
Village of Morton Grove and the Village of Niles, unless the Contractor is contesting, in accordance 
with the procedures established by the appropriate revenue act, its liability for the tax or the 
amount of the tax or the fee, as set forth in Section 11-42.1-1 et seq. of the Illinois Municipal Code, 
65 ILCS 5/11-42.1-1 et seq.; or (2) a violation of either Section 33E-3 or Section 33E-4 of Article 33E 
of the Criminal Code of 1961, 720 ILCS 5/33E-1 et seq. The Contractor represents that the only 
persons, firms or corporations interested in this Agreement as principals are those disclosed to the 
MGNWC prior to the execution of this Agreement, and that this Agreement is made without 
collusion with any other person, firm or corporation. If at any time, it shall be found that the 
Contractor has, in procuring this Agreement, colluded with any other person, firm or 
corporation, then the Contractor shall be liable to the MGNWC, the Village of Morton Grove 
and/or the Village of Niles for any loss or damage that the MGNWC, the Village of Morton 
Grove and/or the Village of Niles may suffer, and this Agreement shall, at the MGNWC's 
option, be null and void. 

(2) Conflict of Interest. 

(a) The Contractor represents and certifies that, to the best of its knowledge: (1) no 
MGNWC, Morton Grove or Niles employee or agent is interested in the business of the 
Contractor or this Agreement; (2) as of the date of this Agreement, neither the 
Contractor nor any person employed or associated with the Contractor has any interest 
that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the obligations 
under this Agreement; and (3) neither the Contractor nor any person employed by or 
associated with the Contractor shall at any time during the Term of this Agreement 
obtain or acquire any interest that would conflict in any manner or degree with the 
performance of the obligations under this Agreement. 

 
(3) Compliance with Laws, Grant Regulations. All Services must be provided, performed, and 

completed in accordance with all required governmental permits, licenses, or other approvals 
and authorizations, and with applicable statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations. The 
Contractor also must comply with applicable conditions of any federal, state, or local grant 
received by the MGNWC with respect to this Agreement. The Contractor will be solely 
responsible for any fines or penalties that may be imposed or incurred by a governmental 
agency with jurisdiction over the Services because of the Contractor’s improper performance 
of, or failure to properly perform, any Services. 

SECTION 12.  DEFAULT AND TERMINATION OF SERVICES. 

A. This Agreement is at-will and may be terminated by the MGNWC at any time at MGNWC’S 
convenience, without reason or cause. If the MGNWC terminates this Agreement without reason or 
cause, then the MGNWC will liable to the Contractor only for payment of all actual, completed, 
documented Services through the date of termination. The Contractor shall not be entitled to 
Compensation of any kind, including without limitation for lost profit, for any Services not performed 
by the Contractor. 

B.  Termination by MGNWC for Breach. MGNWC at any time, by written notice, may terminate this 
Agreement because breach by the Contractor and failure of the Contractor to cure the breach within 
ten (10) calendar days after that written notice or such further time as the MGNWC may agree, in the 
MGNWC’s sole discretion, in response to a written notice from the Contractor seeking additional time 
to cure. “Breach” by the Contractor includes (a) failure of the Contractor to adhere to any terms or 



 18 

conditions of this Agreement, (b) failure of the Contractor to properly perform Services, (c) failure of 
the Contractor to maintain progress in the performance of Services to endanger proper performance 
of the Services within the Project Schedule, or (d) failure of the Contractor to have or maintain 
adequate financial or legal capacity to properly complete any Services. 

C.  MGNWC Remedies. If t MGNWC terminates this Agreement for Breach by the Contractor, then the 
MGNWC will have the right, at its election and without prejudice to any other remedies provided by 
law or equity, to pursue any one or more of the following remedies: 

(1)  MGNWC may recover from the Contractor any and all costs, including without limitation 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by the MGNWC as the result of any Breach or as a result 
of actions taken by MGNWC in response to any Breach. 

(2)  MGNWC may withhold any or all outstanding Compensation to reimburse itself or pay for any 
and all costs, including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by the MGNWC 
as the result of any Breach or as a result of actions taken by the MGNWC in response to any 
Breach.  In that event, the MGNWC will pay any excess funds to the Contractor, if any, after all 
of the MGNWC’s costs are reimbursed or paid. If the Compensation withheld by the MGNWC 
is insufficient to reimburse the MGNWC for, or pay, all costs, then the MGNWC will has the 
right to recover directly from the Contractor a sum of money sufficient to reimburse itself, or 
pay, all remaining costs. 

D. Termination for Convenience. If, after termination of this Agreement by the MGNWC for breach, it is 
determined that the Contractor was not in breach or that the termination otherwise was irregular or 
improper, then the termination shall be deemed to have been made for the convenience of the 
MGNWC under this Section 12.   

E.  Termination by Contractor for Breach. The Contractor at any time, by written notice, terminate this 
Agreement because a failure by the MGNWC to adhere to any terms or conditions of this Agreement 
and a failure of the MGNWC to cure the breach within ten (10) calendar days after that written notice 
or such further time as the Contractor may agree, in the Contractor’s sole discretion, in response to a 
written notice from the MGNWC seeking additional time to cure. 

F.  Termination by Contractor without Cause. The Contractor shall not terminate this Agreement without 
cause. 

SECTION 13.   GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

A. Amendment. No amendment or modification to this Agreement shall be effective until it is reduced to 
writing and approved by the MGNWC Board and executed by the MGNWC Chair and the Contractor. 

B. Assignment. The Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or any portion thereof without the prior 
written approval of the MGNWC Board, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. The merger, 
consolidation or liquidation of the Contractor or any change in the ownership of or power to vote equal 
to twenty percent (20%) or more of the Contractor's capital stock, as held as of the date of execution of 
this Agreement, shall be deemed an assignment; provided, however, that the transfer of ownership of 
shares of capital stock between persons who, on the date of this Agreement, are owners of the 
Contractor's capital stock or who are employees of Contractor, shall not constitute an assignment. As 
part of the written notice of assignment sent to the Contractor, an addendum to this Agreement that 
memorializes the assignment shall be prepared and sent to the Contractor for execution. 

C. Binding Effect. The terms of this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the MGNWC and 
the Contractor, and their agents, successors and assigns. 



 19 

D. Notice. All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall 
be delivered: (1) by personal delivery; (2) by a reputable overnight courier; (3) by certified mail, return 
receipt requested, and deposited in the U.S. Mail, postage prepaid; or (4) by email delivery to the Party’s 
business email address set forth below. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, notices 
shall be deemed received upon the earlier of: (a) actual receipt; (b) one (1) business day after deposit 
with an overnight courier, as evidenced by a receipt of deposit; (c) four (4) business days following 
deposit in the U.S. mail, as evidenced by a return receipt; or (d) date of delivery of the email. By notice 
complying with the requirements of this Section 13.D., each Party shall have the right to change the 
address or the addressee, or both, for all future notices and communications to the other Party, but no 
notice of a change of addressee or address shall be effective until actually received. 

 
Notices and communications to the MGNWC shall be addressed to, and delivered at, the following 
addresses: 

 
Steven Vinezeano, Chair 
Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission    
1000 Civic Center Drive    
Niles, Illinois 60714     
Phone: (847) 588-8010 
Fax:  (847) 588-8051      
Email:  scv@niles.com or TBD 
 
With a copy to: 
Teresa Hoffman Liston, General Counsel 
Morton Grove Water Commission 
6101 Capulina Avenue 
Morton Grove, IL, 60053 
Fax: 847-965-4162 
Email: tliston@mortongroveil.org 

Notices and communications to the Contractor shall be addressed delivered to the following address: 
 

Attn: XXX 
XXX 
XXX 
XXX, Illinois XXX 
Phone:  XXX and Cellular Phone: (XXX 
Fax:  (XXX 
Email: XXX 
With a copy to: XXX 

E. Third Party Beneficiary.  No claim as a third-party beneficiary under this Agreement by any person, firm 
or corporation shall be made or be valid against MGNWC and the MGNWC Affiliates. 

F. Provisions Severable. If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions 
shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated. 

G. Time. Time is of the essence in the performance of all terms and provisions of this Agreement. 

H. Calendar Days and Time. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, any reference in this 
Agreement to "day" or "days" shall mean calendar days and not business days. If the date for giving 
of any notice required to be given, or the performance of any obligation, under this Agreement falls 

mailto:scv@niles.com
mailto:tliston@mortongroveil.org


 20 

on a Saturday, Sunday or federal holiday, then the notice or obligation may be given or performed on 
the next business day after that Saturday, Sunday or federal holiday. 

I. Venue and Governing Law. All questions of interpretation, construction and enforcement, and all 
controversies with respect to this Agreement, shall be governed by the applicable constitutional, 
statutory and common law of the State of Illinois. The Parties agree that, for the purpose of any 
litigation relative to this Agreement and its enforcement, venue shall be in the Circuit Court of Cook 
County, Illinois or the Northern District of the United States District Court, Chicago, Illinois, and the 
Parties consent to the jurisdiction of said Courts for any such action or proceeding. 

J. Authority to Execute. 

(1) MGNWC Water Commission. The MGNWC warrants and represents to the Contractor that the 
persons executing this Agreement on its behalf have been properly authorized to do so by its 
corporate authorities.  

(2) The Contractor. The Contractor warrants and represents to the MGNWC that  
the persons executing this Agreement on its behalf have the full and complete right, power and 
authority to enter into this Agreement and to agree to the terms, provisions and conditions set 
forth in this Agreement, and that all legal actions needed to authorize the execution, delivery 
and performance of this Agreement have been taken. 

K. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties to this 
Agreement and supersedes all prior agreements and negotiations between the Parties, whether 
written or oral, relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.  

L.  Waiver. The failure of either Party to enforce any term, condition or covenant (herein referred to as 
"provision") of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver or limitation of that Party's right to 
subsequently enforce and compel strict compliance with such provision and every other provision of this 
Agreement. No provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been waived by either Party unless 
such waiver is in writing by said Party. 

M.  Survival. The aforesaid covenants, agreements, representations and warranties shall survive the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

N.  Counterpart Execution. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which, when 
executed, shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the 
same instrument. 

O.  Cumulative Rights and Remedies.  Unless expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement, every 
one of the rights, remedies, and benefits provided by this Agreement shall be cumulative and shall 
not be exclusive of any other rights, remedies, and benefits allowed by law. 

 
P.  Effective Date.  This Agreement shall become effective on the date the last signatory signs this 

Agreement. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement was executed on behalf of the Parties through their authorized 
representatives, after all duly required corporate action was taken, as set forth below on the signature pages.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGES AND EXHIBITS TO FOLLOW  



 21 

 
 
 
 
SIGNATURE PAGE FOR CONTRACTOR 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the below authorized corporate officer of ________________. signed 
this Agreement pursuant to legal authority and direction granted to him/her by the required 
corporate action. 
 

 
_________________________ 
 
By: ______________________________ 

             
Name: ___________________________ 

 
       Title: ____________________________ 

 
Date: ______________________, 2018 

 
 
Attest:  
 
 
By: _______________________________ 
 
Name: ____________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________    
 
Date: ______________________, 2018 

 
 

 
 
 
 
  



 22 

 
 
 
SIGNATURE PAGE FOR 
MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the below authorized officials of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission 
have signed this Agreement pursuant to legal authorization granted to him/her under Article VII, Section 10 of 
the 1970 Illinois Constitution, the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.) and Division 135 of 
Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-135-1, et seq.) (“Division 135”) and the corporate 
approval granted by passage of a Resolution by the Corporate Authorities of the Morton Grove-Niles Water 
Commission. 

 
 
Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 

       Steven Vinezeano, Chair  
 
 
Date: ______________________, 2018. 

 
 
 
Attest:  
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
John Pietron, Clerk 
Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission 
  
 
Date: ______________________, 2018 

 
 
Approved as to form and legality: 
 
 
By: ____________________________________  
Teresa Hoffman Liston, MGNWC General Counsel  

  



 23 

 

Exhibit: A 

Scope of Services 
  



 24 

 
 
 

Exhibit: B 

Sub-consultant/Sub-contractor List 
  



 25 

Exhibit: C 
Compensation and Fee Schedule  

See Attached 
 

 
 
 
 

  



 26 

Exhibit D 
 

SERVICES CHANGE ORDER 
(FORM) 

 
 
SERVICES CHANGE ORDER NUMBER ____ 
 
In accordance with Section ___ of the Agreement dated _______________, 2018 between the MGNWC and 
the Contractor, the Parties agree to the following Services Change Order: 
 
1. Change in Services: ______________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Change in Schedule (attach schedule if appropriate):  ____________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3. Change in Completion Date:  All Services must be completed on or before: _____________, 20___ 
 
4. Change in Compensation:  ________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE AGREEMENT REMAIN UNCHANGED. 
 
MGNWC      CONTRACTOR 
 
__________________________________  __________________________________ 
MGNWC Representative    Signature 

       __________________________________ 
       Name (Printed or Typed) 

__________________________________  __________________________________ 
Date       Date 
 
 
If compensation change is greater than $20,000 (individual request or in the aggregate) then Chair and 
Secretary of the MGNWC’s signatures are required. 
 
 
__________________________________  ___________________________, 20____. 
Village President     Date 
 
__________________________________  ___________________________, 20____. 
Village President     Date 
 

 
  



 27 

Exhibit E 
 

PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND 
Work: DEMOLITION, ASBESTOS ABATEMENT & REMOVAL-7900 NAGLE, MORTON GROVE, IL 

Contract dated _______ by and between Morton Grove- Niles Water Commission, Cook County, Illinois 
(“Local Agency”) and ______________.  (Principal) 

 
We, ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

a/an     Individual       Co-partnership       Corporation organized under the laws of the state _______,   

as PRINCIPAL, and ____________________________________________________________________ SURETY, 

are held and firmly bound unto the above Local Agency (herein referred to as “LA”) in the penal sum of -

________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________ Dollars (_____________________ ), lawful money of United 
States, well and truly to be paid unto said LA, for the payment of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, jointly to pay to the LA this sum under the conditions of this instrument. 
 
WHEREAS THE CONDITION OF THE FOREGOING OBLIGATION IS SUCH that, the said Principal has entered into a 
written contract with the LA acting through its awarding authority for the construction of work on the above 
named Work, which contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof, as if written herein at length, and 
whereby the said Principal has promised and agreed to perform said work in accordance with the terms of said 
contract, and has promised to pay all sums of money due for any labor, materials, apparatus, fixtures or 
machinery furnished to such Principal for the purpose of performing such work and has further agreed to pay all 
direct and indirect damages to any person, firm, company or corporation suffered or sustained on account of 
the performance of such work during the time thereof and until such work is completed and accepted and during 
the one year guaranty period; and has further agreed that this bond shall inure to the benefit of any person, 
firm, company or corporation to whom any money may be due from the Principal, subcontractor or otherwise 
for any such labor, materials, apparatus, fixtures or machinery so furnished and that suit may be maintained on 
such bond by any such person, firm, company or corporation for the recovery of any such money. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, if the said Principal shall well and truly perform said work in accordance with the terms of 
said contract, and shall pay all sums of money due or to become due for any labor, materials, apparatus, fixtures 
or machinery furnished to him for the purpose of constructing such work, and shall commence and complete 
the work within the time prescribed in said contract, and shall pay and discharge all damages, direct and indirect, 
that may be suffered or sustained on account of such work during the time of the performance thereof and until 
the said work shall have been accepted, and shall hold the LA and its awarding authority harmless on account of 
any such damages and shall in all respects fully and faithfully comply with all the provisions, conditions and 
requirements of said contract, and shall promptly pay for all laborers, workers and mechanics engaged in the 
work under the Contract, and not less than the general prevailing rate of hourly wages of a similar character in 
the locality in which the work is performed, as determined by the State of Illinois Department of Labor pursuant 
to the Illinois Compiled Statutes 820 ILCS 130 / 1-12 et. seq. and for all material used or reasonably required for 
use in the performance of the Contract, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise it shall remain in full force 
and effect, then this obligation to be void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect. 
 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the said PRINCIPAL and the said SURETY have caused this instrument to be signed by 
their respective officers this ____________ day of ________________________ A.D. _________ 

 

 
 
  



 28 

PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND – PAGE 2 of 2 
 

PRINCIPAL 

_________________________________________           ________________________________________ 
                        (Company Name)                                                                            (Company Name) 

By: ______________________________________          By: _____________________________________ 
                        (Signature & Title)                                                                            (Signature & Title) 

Attest: ___________________________________           Attest: ___________________________________ 
                                (Signature & Title)                                                                         (Signature & Title) 

 
STATE OF ILLINOIS, 
COUNTY OF ___________________________ I, _____________________________________________ 

a Notary Public in and for said county, do hereby certify that 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                              (Insert names of individuals signing on behalf of PRINCIPAL) 

Who are each personally known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed to the foregoing 
instrument on behalf of PRINCIPAL, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged respectively, that 
they signed and delivered said instrument as their free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes therein set 
forth. 

Given under my hand and notarial seal this __________ day of _____________________ A.D. __________ 

My Commission expires ______________       _________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                          (Notary Public)                            (SEAL)       

 

SURETY 

___________________________________________   By: _______________________________________ 
                   (Name of Surety)                                                              (Signature of Attorney-in-Fact) 

STATE OF ILLINOIS, 

COUNTY OF ___________________________ I, _____________________________________________ 

a Notary Public in and for said county, do hereby certify that 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                              (Insert names of individuals signing on behalf of SURETY) 

Who are each personally known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed to the foregoing 
instrument on behalf of SURETY, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged respectively, that 
they signed and delivered said instrument as their free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes therein set 
forth. 

Given under my hand and notarial seal this __________ day of _____________________ A.D. __________ 

My Commission expires ______________       _________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                          (Notary Public)                            (SEAL)       
 

Approved this __________ day of _____________________ A.D. __________ 

___________________________________________           ________________________________________ 

Steven Vinezeano, Chair,      John Pietron, Clerk 

Morton Grove-Water Commission    Morton Grove-Water Commission 



 29 

Exhibit F 

Insurance Requirements for the Contractor, Sub-consultants and Sub-contractors 
 

A. Before any Work at the Site is initiated, the Contractor, Sub-consultants and Sub-contractors shall 
supply the MGNWC with a valid Certificate of Insurance. 

 
B. The Certificate shall identify the MGNWC and the MGNWC Affiliates and Agents, the Village of 

Morton Grove, the Village of Niles, and True North Contractors, Inc. as additionally insured parties.  
Copies of the certificates shall be supplied to each of the additionally insured parties. 

 
C. The Contractor, Sub-consultants and Sub-contractors shall maintain Comprehensive General Liability 

including coverage for Premises-Operations, Blanket Contractual Liability, Products/Completed 
Operations, Independent Contractors, Personal Injury, and Broad Form Property Damage (including 
coverage for Explosion, Collapse, and Underground Hazard) in the following amounts. 

 
1. $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
2. $2,000,000 General Aggregate 
3. $2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
4. $1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury 

 
D. Commercial General Liability Coverage must provide: 

 
1. General Aggregate Limit must apply per project. 
2. Premises and Operations 
3. Contractor’s Protective Liability (“Independent Contractors’ Coverage) 
4. Products Liability/Completed Operations – to continue in force for two (2) years from 

 Substantial Completion. 
5. Blanket Contractual Liability assumed in this Agreement including indemnification of the 

 Additional Insured. 
6. XCU Coverage 
7. Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
8. Host Liquor Liability 
9. Broad Form Property Damage including Completed Operations 

 
E. Comprehensive Automobile Liability (owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles) for bodily injury and 

property damage shall be maintained in the amount of $500,000 for each accident. 
 

1. $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit, Each Occurrence  
OR 

2. Bodily Injury $1,000,000 Each Person $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
3. Property Damage $1,000,000 Each 

 
F. Umbrella liability coverage shall be maintained for the following: 

1. The Contractor, Sub-consultants and Sub-contractors shall maintain an Umbrella Liability policy 
with the following coverage, which shall include, but not be limited to, excess coverage for the 
Workers’ Compensation, General Liability, and Automobile Liability policies: 
a. $5,000,000 Each Occurrence 
b. $5,000,000 Aggregate 

 
G. Workers Compensation Coverage including Occupational Disease and Employer’s Liability Insurance 

 



 30 

1. Statutory amounts and coverages as required by the Workers’ compensation laws of the state in 
which the Work is performed: 

 
2. Employer’s Liability: 

a. Bodily Injury by Accident:     $1,000,000 each accident 
b. Bodily Injury by Disease:   $1,000,000 policy limit 
c. Bodily Injury by Disease:   $1,000,000 each employee 

 
H. All other insurance coverage not specified shall meet the minimum requirements of the State of 

Illinois for which the Contractor, Sub-consultants and Sub-contractors is required to purchase and 
maintain for the Work to be performed.  The MGNWC may request additional insurance coverage 
later at the expense of the MGNWC. 

 
I. To the fullest extent permitted by Federal, State, and local Laws and Regulations, Contractor, Sub-

consultants and Sub-contractors shall indemnify and hold harmless the MGNWC and the MGNWC 
Affiliates from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees 
and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or 
other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to an conditions created by Contractor, Sub-
consultants and Sub-contractors or by anyone for whom Contractor, Sub-consultants and Sub-
contractors is responsible. Nothing in this paragraph shall obligate the Contractor, Sub-consultants or 
Sub-contractors to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that 
individual’s or entity’s own negligence. 

 
J. The Contractor, Sub-consultants and Sub-contract shall provide the MGNWC with a thirty (30) day 

notice, in writing, of insurance cancellation or material change.  In addition, the Contractor, Sub-
consultants and Sub-contract shall provide the MGNWC and the MGNWC Affiliates with evidence of 
renewals or replacements of required policies fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration or cancellation 
of any such policies. 

 
K. Umbrella Policy. The required coverages may be in any combination of primary, excess, and umbrella 

policies. Any excess or umbrella policy must provide excess coverage over underlying insurance on a 
following-form basis such that when any loss covered by the primary policy exceeds the limits under 
the primary policy, the excess or umbrella policy becomes effective to cover such loss. 

 
L. Primary Coverage.  The insurance coverage must be primary with respect to the MGNWC and the 

MGNWC Affiliates. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Village of Morton Grove, the 
Village of Niles and the MGNWC will be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and will not contribute 
with it.  

 
M. Reporting Failures.  Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of any policy must not affect 

coverage provided to the MGNWC and the MGNWC Affiliates. 
 

N.  Severability of Interests/Cross Liability.  The insurance must contain a Severability of Interests/Cross 
Liability clause or language stating that the insurance will apply separately to each insured against 
whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s ability. 

 
O. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best’s rating of no less than A-

, VII and licensed to do business in the State of Illinois. 
 
  



 31 

 

Exhibit G 
 

Contract Clauses Required by the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (“IEPA”) 
for Incorporation into this Agreement 

 
The IEPA Public Water Supply Loan Program required clauses are as follows: 
 
Audit and Access to Records Clause 
 

a. “Books, records, documents and other evidence directly pertinent to performance of PWSLP/WPCLP 
loan work under this agreement shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted Accounting 
Principles. The Agency or any of its authorized representatives shall have access to the books, records, 
documents and other evidence for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying. Facilities shall be 
provided for access and inspection.” 

b. “Audits conducted pursuant to this provision shall be in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America.” 

c. “All information and reports resulting from access to records pursuant to the above shall be disclosed 
to the Agency. The auditing agency shall afford the engineer an opportunity for an audit exit 
conference and an opportunity to comment on the pertinent portions of the draft audit report.”  

d. “The final audit report shall include the written comments, if any, of the audited parties.”  
e. “Records shall be maintained and made available during performance of project services under this 

agreement and for three years after the final loan closing. In addition, those records that relate to any 
dispute pursuant to the Loan Rules Section 365/662.650 (Disputes) or litigation or the settlement of 
claims arising out of project performance or costs or items to which an audit exception has been taken, 
shall be maintained and made available for three years after the resolution of the appeal, litigation, 
claim or exception.” 

 
Covenant against Contingent Fees Clause 
 
“The contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure 
this contract upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee, excepting bonafide employees. For breach or violation of this warranty, the loan recipient shall have the 
right to annul this agreement without liability or in its discretion to deduct from the contract price or 
consideration or otherwise recover, the full amount such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee. 
 
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters1 
 
“The prospective participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: (a) Are 
not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
covered transactions by any federal department or agency; (b) Have not within a three year period preceding 
this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a 
criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or 
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false 
statements, or receiving stolen property. (c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly 
charged by a government entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (b) of this certification; and (d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this 

                                                      
1: This requirement may be met through the inclusion of the following language in the contract, or through submitting a 
signed Form EPA 5700-49 to IEPA.  



 32 

application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or 
default. I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal 
or termination of the award. In addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in fine of up to 
$10,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both.” 
 
USEPA Nondiscrimination Clause 
 
“The contractor (engineer) shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the 
performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 40 CFR Part 33 in the 
award and administration of contracts awarded under EPA financial assistance agreements. Failure by the 
contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract which may result in the 
termination of this contract or other legally available remedies” 
 
USEPA Fair Share Percentage Clause 
 
“The engineer agrees to take affirmative steps to assure that disadvantaged business enterprises are utilized 
when possible as sources of supplies, equipment, construction and services in accordance with the Public 
Water Supply Loan Program rules. As required by the award conditions of USEPA’s Assistance Agreement with 
Illinois EPA, the engineer acknowledges that the fair share percentages are %5 for MBEs & 12% for WBEs” 

 
 

 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-46 
Agreement w/ ________ for Asbestos Removal & Demolition  2525 Church  
 

5 

STATE OF ILLINOIS )       
   )  SS 
COUNTY OF COOK ) 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATE 
 
I, John Pietron, Clerk of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission, Cook County, State of 

Illinois, certify that the attached and foregoing is a true and correct copy of that certain Resolution 

now on file in my office, entitled: 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-46 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION AND ____________ FOR 

DEMOLITION AND ASBESTOS ABATEMENT AND REMOVAL SERVICES FOR STRUCTURES LOCATED 
AT 2525 CHURCH EVANSTON, IL 

 
which Resolution was passed by the Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water 

Commission at a Regular Meeting held on the 27th day of April 2018, at which meeting a quorum 

was present. 

I further certify that the vote on the question of the passage of said Resolution by the Board 

of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission was taken by Ayes and Nays and 

recorded in the minutes of the Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water 

Commission, and that the result of said vote was as follows, to-wit:  

 
AYES:  John Pietron and Steven Vinezeano 

  
NAYS:  None 

 
ABSENT: None (Cook County Appointee not appointed yet) 

I do further certify that the original Resolution, of which the foregoing is a true copy, is 

entrusted to my care for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful keeper of the same. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 27th day of April 2018. 

 

       _____________________________ 
                            John Pietron, Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO 18-47 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION AND TRUE NORTH 
CONSULTANTS, INC. TO PREPARE A BASELINE STUDY REQUIRED BY THE MWRD FOR THE 
MGNWC EASEMENT PREMISES LOCATED IN SKOKIE AND EVANSTON, ILLINOIS  

 
 

WHEREAS, in 2017, the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission (“MGNWC” or 
“Commission”) was established by the Village of Morton Grove, a home rule Illinois municipal 
corporation (“Morton Grove”), and the Village of Niles, a home rule Illinois municipal corporation 
(“Niles”), by the adoption of ordinances pursuant to Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois 
Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-135-1, et seq.) (“Division 135”). The establishing ordinances are 
Morton Grove Ordinance 17-5, which was adopted on March 13, 2017, and Niles Ordinance No. 
2017-19, which was adopted on March 14, 2017; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the MGNWC was established for purposes of constructing and operating a public 
water supply system consisting of water transmission mains, pumping, storage, and other related 
water delivery and receiving infrastructure between a connection point on the Evanston water 
system and existing water receiving points of Niles and Morton Grove and 

 
WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago (“MWRD”) is the 

fee simple owner of real estate located within the North Shore Channel Park Area (“the Property”). 
The MWRD and the MGNWC  have entered into an Easement Agreements for the purposes of 
granting certain temporary construction easement rights and permanent easement rights to allow 
the MGNWC to construct and operate a water distribution system pump station and related 
infrastructure improvements on the Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Easement Agreement requires the MGNWC, upon termination of the 
Easement Agreement, to restore the Property to its original condition as described in a  report to be 
prepared by MGNWC and approved by MWRD (the “Baseline Report”); and 

 
 WHEREAS the MGNWC Superintendent solicited and obtained proposals from True North 

Consultants, Inc. of Naperville, Illinois, to conduct baseline testing on the Property and prepare a 
Baseline Report for the purposes of satisfying the requirements of the  Easement Agreement, and 
the Superintendent has negotiated a Professional Service Agreement with True North Consultants, 
Inc. based on its proposal attached hereto as Exhibit A; and  

 
WHEREAS, True North Consultants, Inc. has satisfactorily provided engineering and 

consulting services for the MGNWC in the past and is qualified and capable of providing these 
services in a timely manner, and the Superintendent recommends that the MGNWC Board enter 
into an agreement with True North Consultants, Inc., based on its proposal (the Agreement); and 

 
WHEREAS, the MGNWC Board has the authority to enter into the Agreement pursuant to 

Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, the Illinois Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1, et seq.) and the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/1, et seq., including 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-47 
Agreement w/ True North for MWRD Baseline Study 
 

2 

65 ILCS 5/11-135-1, et seq.), and finds that entering into the Agreement is in the best interests of 
MGNWC, the Village of Morton Grove and the Village of Niles. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE MORTON 

GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:  Each Whereas paragraph above is incorporated by reference into this Section 1 

and made a part hereof as material and operative provisions of this Resolution. 
 
SECTION 2: The Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission 

(“MGNWC Board”) authorizes the approval of the economic terms and the attached form of the 
Agreement entitled “Professional Services Agreement Between the Morton Grove-Niles Water 
Commission and True North Consultants, Inc. to Prepare a Baseline Study Required by the MWRD 
for the MGNWC Easement Premises Located in Skokie and Evanston, Illinois” for the purposes set 
forth in the Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit A. The MGNWC Board authorize and direct the 
Chair, or his/her designee, and the Clerk to execute the final version of the Agreement, which may 
contain certain non-substantive and non-financial modifications that are approved by the Village 
Manager of Niles and the Village Administrator of Morton Grove, and to execute and deliver all 
other instruments and documents and pay all costs that are necessary to fulfill MGNWC’S 
obligations under the Agreement. 

  
SECTION 3:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 

approval as provided by law.  
 
ADOPTED this 27th day of April 2018, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 
 

AYES:  John Pietron and Steven Vinezeano 
  

NAYS:  None 
 

ABSENT: None (Cook County Appointee not appointed yet) 
 

PASSED by the Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission, Cook 
County, Illinois on a roll call vote at a Regular Meeting thereof held on the 27th day of April 2018, 
and approved by the Chair, and attested by the Clerk on the same day. 

 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Steven Vinezeano, Chair 
 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       John Pietron, Clerk  



RESOLUTION NO. 18-47 
Agreement w/ True North for MWRD Baseline Study 
 

3 

Exhibit A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER 

COMMISSION AND TRUE NORTH CONSULTANTS, INC. TO PREPARE A BASELINE STUDY REQUIRED 
BY THE MWRD FOR THE MGNWC EASEMENT PREMISES LOCATED IN SKOKIE AND EVANSTON, 

ILLINOIS 
 (attached) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 1 of 17 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER 
COMMISSION AND TRUE NORTH CONSULTANTS, INC. TO PREPARE A BASELINE STUDY 

REQUIRED BY THE MWRD FOR THE MGNWC EASEMENT PREMISES LOCATED IN SKOKIE AND 
EVANSTON, ILLINOIS 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is dated as of the ___ day of April 2018 (“Agreement”) by and between the 
MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION, an Illinois municipal corporation (“MGNWC”) 
and True North Consultants, Inc.,  (“Consultant”). 
 
IN CONSIDERATION OF the recitals and the mutual covenants and agreements set forth in the 
Agreement, and pursuant to the MGNWC’s statutory and home rule powers, the parties agree 
as follows: 
 
1 PARTIES:  

The parties to this Agreement and the address and contact information for each is as 
follows: 

MGNWC:  Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission 
   6101 Capulina Avenue 
   Morton Grove, IL 60053 
 
 Contact: William Balling,  

MGNWC Superintendent (“MGNWC Representative”) 
   847-863-7101 
   bill@wrbllc.com 
 

Consultant: True North Consultants, Inc.   
1000 East Warrenville Road,  Suite 140  
Naperville, IL 60563 
 

 Contact: Ryan M Ladieu 
(630) 717-2880  or  (224) 387-6063  
rladieu@consulttruenorth.com 

 
2 PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES 

2.1. Project Description.  Consultant will provide all necessary services to perform the work 
in connection with the project identified in and consistent with the Proposal dated April 
24, 2018, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit A to this agreement (hereafter referred 
to as “services”). In the event of an inconsistency between the Schedule of Terms & 
Conditions appended to the Consultant’s proposal and this Agreement, this Agreement 
shall be controlling. The Consultant represents that it is financially solvent, has the 



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 2 of 17 

necessary financial resources, and is sufficiently experienced and competent to perform 
and complete the services set forth in Exhibit A in a manner consistent with the 
standards of professional practice recognized by the industry providing services of a 
similar nature. 

 
2.2 Time of Performance. The Consultant’s provision of Services shall commence on upon 

execution of this Agreement (the “Commencement Date”). The Consultant shall 
diligently and continuously prosecute the Services until the completion of the work in 
accordance with deadlines established for particular tasks from time to time (“Time of 
Performance”) The Time of Performance of this Agreement, unless terminated pursuant 
to the terms of this Agreement, shall expire on August 31, 2019. A determination of 
completion shall not constitute a waiver of any rights or claims the MGNWC may have 
or thereafter acquire with respect to any breach hereof by the Consultant or any right of 
indemnification of the MGNWC by the Consultant.  

 
2.3 Early Termination. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the MGNWC may 

terminate this agreement at any time upon 14 days prior written notice to the 
Consultant. In the event that this agreement is so terminated, the Consultant shall be 
paid for services satisfactorily performed and reimbursable expenses actually incurred, if 
any, prior to termination, not exceeding the value of the services completed as 
determined as provided in this agreement. 

2.4 Suspension of Services. MGNWC may, at any time, with or without cause, suspend all or 
any portion of services for a period of up to 90 days (“suspended services”).  Consultant 
shall immediately stop the performance of the suspended services, until such time as 
MGNWC issues direction to Consultant to resume the suspended services.  Consultant 
shall take such action as is reasonably necessary to protect the suspended services and 
take such additional action as directed by MGNWC. 

2.5 Force Majeure. MGNWC shall not be responsible for delay in the performance of its 
obligations under this agreement caused by a force majeure event.  To the extent that 
Contracted Services are delayed by a force majeure event, Consultant will be entitled to 
an equitable adjustment of the time for performance.  For purposes of this agreement, a 
“force majeure event” is an occurrence or circumstance beyond the control of the 
claiming party and may include, but is not limited to extraordinary weather conditions, or 
other natural catastrophes, war, riots, strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances.  

2.6 Assignments; Coordination; Reporting. Assignments and tasks will be assigned to the 
Consultant by MGNWC Representative. Consultant shall regularly report to and will 
coordinate all work through MGNWC Representative or his designee.  



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 3 of 17 

2.7 Quality Control Plans. When required by the Exhibit A, Consultant shall execute a quality 
control plan acceptable to MGNWC that ensures the quality of its work products and 
activities.  Prior to starting the performance of the services, Consultant shall submit its 
quality control plan for the services.  Submission of the quality control plan to MGNWC 
will not replace in any way Consultant’s responsibility for quality control or for its work 
products and activities.  Notwithstanding any review by MGNWC, Consultant shall be 
responsible for the quality of the Services. 

2.8 Warranty of Services. The Consultant warrants that the services shall be performed in 
accordance with the highest standards of professional practice, care, and diligence 
practiced by recognized consulting firms in performing services of a similar nature in 
existence at the Time of Performance. The warranty expressed shall be in addition to any 
other warranties expressed in this agreement, or expressed or implied by law, which are 
hereby reserved unto the MGNWC. 

2.9 Mutual Cooperation. The MGNWC agrees to cooperate with the Consultant in the 
performance of the services, including meeting with the Consultant and providing the 
Consultant with such non-confidential information that the MGNWC may have that may 
be relevant and helpful to the Consultant’s performance of the services. The Consultant 
agrees to cooperate with the MGNWC in the performance of the services and with any 
other Consultants engaged by the MGNWC. 

2.10 Amendment. No amendment or modification to this agreement shall be effective unless 
and until such amendment or modification is approved in writing by the MGNWC 
Administrator and the Consultant. 

2.11 No Additional Obligation. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the MGNWC is under 
no obligation under this agreement or otherwise to negotiate or enter into any other or 
additional contracts or agreements with the Consultant, or with any vendor solicited or 
recommended by the Consultant. 

 
3 COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT  

3.1 Agreement Amount. The total amount billed by the Consultant for the Services under this 
Agreement shall not exceed nine thousand five hundred and fourteen dollars ($9,514.00) 
in total without the prior express written authorization of the Village Manager of Niles 
and the Village Administrator of Morton Grove. Said amount includes reimbursable 
expenses.  

3.2 Invoices and Payment. The Consultant shall submit invoices to the MGNWC in an 
approved format for those portions of the Services performed and completed by the 
Consultant. The MGNWC shall pay to the Consultant the amount billed for completed and 
approved work within 30 days after its receipt and approval of an invoice for same. 



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 4 of 17 

3.3 Records. The Consultant shall maintain records showing actual time devoted and costs 
incurred, and shall permit the authorized representative of the MGNWC to inspect and 
audit all data and records of the Consultant for work done under the Agreement. The 
records shall be made available to the MGNWC at reasonable times during the 
Agreement period, and for three years after the termination of the Agreement. 

3.4 Claim For Additional Compensation. If the Consultant wishes to make a claim for 
additional compensation as a result of action taken by the MGNWC, the Consultant shall 
provide written notice to the MGNWC of such claim within 7 days after occurrence of 
such action, and no claim for additional compensation shall be valid unless made in 
accordance with this Subsection. Any changes in the agreement amount shall be valid 
only upon written amendment of this agreement approved by the MGNWC 
Administrator. Regardless of the decision of the MGNWC relative to a claim submitted by 
the Consultant, the Consultant shall proceed with all of the services required to complete 
the services under this agreement as determined by the MGNWC without interruption. 

3.5 Taxes, Benefits and Royalties. The agreement amount includes all applicable federal, 
state, and local taxes of every kind and nature applicable to the services as well as all 
taxes, contributions, and premiums for unemployment insurance, old age or retirement 
benefits, pensions, annuities, or similar benefits and all costs, royalties and fees arising 
from the use on, or the incorporation into, the services, of patented or copyrighted 
equipment, materials, supplies, tools, appliances, devices, processes, or inventions. All 
claim or right to claim additional compensation by reason of the payment of any such tax, 
contribution, premium, costs, royalties, or fees is hereby waived and released by 
Consultant. 

 
4 PERSONNEL AND SUBCONTRACTORS 

4.1 Key Project Personnel. Key Project Personnel identified in Exhibit A shall be Ryan M 
Ladieu  who shall be primarily responsible for carrying out the Services on behalf of the 
Consultant. The key project personnel shall not be changed without the MGNWC’s prior 
written approval. 

4.2 Availability of Personnel. The Consultant shall provide all personnel necessary to 
complete the Services including, without limitation, any Key Project Personnel identified 
in this Agreement. The Consultant shall notify the MGNWC as soon as practicable prior to 
terminating the employment of, reassigning, or after receiving notice of the resignation 
of, any key project personnel. The Consultant shall have no claim for damages and shall 
not bill the MGNWC for additional time and materials charges as the result of any portion 
of the Services which must be duplicated or redone due to such termination or for any 
delay or extension of the Time of Performance as a result of any such termination, 
reassigning, or resignation. 



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 5 of 17 

4.3 Approval and Use of Subcontractors. The Consultant shall perform the services with its 
own personnel and under the management, supervision, and control of its own 
organization unless otherwise approved by the MGNWC in writing. All subcontractors and 
subcontracts used by the Consultant shall be acceptable to, and approved in advance by, 
the MGNWC. If any personnel or subcontractor fails to perform the services in a manner 
satisfactory to the MGNWC, the Consultant shall immediately upon notice from the 
MGNWC remove and replace such personnel or subcontractor. The Consultant shall have 
no claim for damages, for compensation in excess of the amount contained in this 
agreement or for a delay or extension of the time of performance as a result of any such 
removal or replacement. The MGNWC’s approval of any subcontractor or subcontract 
shall not relieve the Consultant of full responsibility and liability for the provision, 
performance, and completion of the services as required by the agreement. All services 
performed under any subcontract shall be subject to all of the provisions of this 
agreement in the same manner as if performed by employees of the Consultant. For 
purposes of this agreement, the term “Consultant” shall be deemed also to refer to all 
subcontractors of the Consultant, and every subcontract shall include a provision binding 
the subcontractor to all provisions of this agreement.  

 
4.4 MGNWC Authority. Notwithstanding any provision of this agreement, any negotiations or 

agreements with, or representations by the Consultant to any subcontractor, vendor or 
third party shall be subject to the approval of the MGNWC. The MGNWC shall not be 
liable to any subcontractor, vendor or other third party for any agreements made by the 
Consultant, purportedly on behalf of the MGNWC, without the knowledge and approval 
of the MGNWC. 

4.5 Lien Waiver. Consultant shall promptly pay for all services, labor, materials and 
equipment used or employed by Consultant in the performance of the services and shall 
maintain all materials, equipment, structures, buildings, premises and property of 
MGNWC free and clear of mechanic’s or other liens.  Consultant shall, if requested, 
provide MGNWC with reasonable evidence that all services, labor, materials and 
equipment have been paid in full. 

4.6 Safety and Hazardous Materials.  
A. Consultant acknowledges that there may be hazardous substances, wastes, or 

materials as defined by applicable law (“Hazardous Materials”) at the project site or 
otherwise associated with the services. In such cases, Consultant shall take 
appropriate precautions to protect and shall be solely and continuously responsible 
for the health, safety and welfare associated with its employees, subcontractors, 
agents and those people under the supervision and control of the Consultant with 
the performance of the services.  
 



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 6 of 17 

B. Consultant’s employees, agents, subcontractors and all employees of Consultant’s 
employees, agents, subcontractors who perform the services shall be experienced 
and properly trained to perform the services under such conditions and shall take 
adequate precautions to protect human health and the environment in the 
performance of the services. 

 
C. In the event that Consultant observes a potentially hazardous condition relating to 

the services, Consultant shall bring such condition to the attention of MGNWC. 
 
5 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES 

5.1 Independent Contractor. The Consultant shall act as an independent contractor in 
providing and performing the services. Nothing in, nor done pursuant to, this Agreement 
shall be construed: 

A. To create the relationship of principal and agent, employer and employee, partners, 
or joint venturers between the MGNWC and Consultant; or  

B. To create any relationship between the MGNWC and any subcontractor of the 
Consultant. 

5.2 Conflict of Interest. The Consultant represents and certifies that, to the best of its 
knowledge: 

A. No employee or agent of the MGNWC is interested in the business of the 
Consultant or this agreement;  

B. Neither the Consultant nor any person employed or associated with the Consultant 
has any interest that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance 
of the obligations under this agreement; and  

C. Neither the Consultant nor any person employed by or associated with the 
Consultant shall at any time during the term of this agreement obtain or acquire 
any interest that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of 
the obligations under this agreement. 

5.3 No Collusion. The Consultant represents and certifies that the Consultant is not barred 
from contracting with a unit of federal, state or local government as a result of: 

A. A delinquency in the payment of any tax administered by the Illinois Department of 
Revenue unless the Consultant is contesting, in accordance with the procedures 
established by the appropriate revenue act, its liability for the tax or the amount of 
the tax; or  



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 7 of 17 

B. A violation of either Section 33E-3 or Section 33E-4 of Article 33E of the Criminal 
Code of 1961, 720 ILCS 5/33E-1 et. seq.  

C. The Consultant represents that the only persons, firms, or corporations interested 
in this agreement as principals are those disclosed to the MGNWC prior to the 
execution of this agreement, and that this agreement is made without collusion 
with any other person, firm, or corporation. If at any time it shall be found that the 
Consultant has, in procuring this agreement, colluded with any other person, firm, 
or corporation, then the Consultant shall be liable to the MGNWC for all loss or 
damage that the MGNWC may suffer, and this agreement shall, at the MGNWC’s 
option, be null and void. 

5.4 No Personal Liability. No elected or appointed official or employee of the MGNWC shall 
be personally liable, in law or in contract, to the Consultant as the result of the execution 
of this agreement. 
 

6 INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

6.1 Insurance. Contemporaneous with the Consultant’s execution of this agreement, the 
Consultant shall provide certificates and policies of insurance, all with coverage and limits 
acceptable to the MGNWC, and evidencing at least the minimum insurance coverage and 
limits as set forth in Exhibit B to this agreement. For good cause shown, the MGNWC 
Administrator may extend the time for submission of the required policies of insurance 
upon such terms, and with such assurances of complete and prompt performance, as the 
MGNWC Administrator may impose in the exercise of his sole discretion. Such certificates 
and policies shall be in a form acceptable to the MGNWC and from companies with a 
general rating of A-, and a financial size category of Class X or better, in Best's Insurance 
expenses, that arise, or may be alleged to have arisen, out of or in connection with, the 
Consultant’s performance of, or failure to perform, the services or any part thereof, 
whether or not due or claimed to be due in whole or in part to the active, passive, or 
concurrent negligence or fault of the Consultant, except to the extent caused by the sole 
negligence of the MGNWC. The Consultant further agrees that to the extent that money 
is due the Consultant by virtue of this contract as shall be considered necessary in the 
judgment of the MGNWC, may be retained by the MGNWC to protect itself against said 
loss until such claims, suits, or judgments shall have been settled or discharged and/or 
evidence to that effect shall have been furnished to the satisfaction of the MGNWC. 
Guide. Such insurance policies shall provide that no change, modification in, or 
cancellation of, any insurance shall become effective until the expiration of 30 days after 
written notice thereof shall have been given by the insurance company to the MGNWC. 
The Consultant shall at all times during the term of this agreement, maintain and keep 
the insurance coverage provided above in force, at the Consultant's expense.  



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 8 of 17 

6.2 Indemnification. The Consultant shall, without regard to the availability or unavailability 
of any insurance, either of the MGNWC or the Consultant, indemnify, save harmless, and 
defend the MGNWC, and its respective officials, employees, agents, volunteers and 
attorneys against any and all lawsuits, claims, demands, damages, liabilities, losses, and 
expenses, including attorneys' fees and administrative 

7 USE AND DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION 

7.1 Confidential Information. The term “confidential Information” shall mean information in 
the possession or under the control of the MGNWC relating to the technical, business or 
corporate affairs of the MGNWC; property of the MGNWC; user information, including, 
without limitation, any information pertaining to usage of the MGNWC’s computer 
systems, including and without limitation, any information obtained from server logs or 
other records of electronic or machine readable form; and the existence of, and terms 
and conditions of, this agreement. MGNWC confidential information shall not include 
information that can be demonstrated: (i) to have been rightfully in the possession of the 
Consultant from a source other than the MGNWC prior to the time the MGNWC disclosed 
said information to the Consultant under this agreement (“time of disclosure”); (ii) to 
have been in the public domain prior to the time of disclosure; or (iii) to have become 
part of the public domain after the Time of Disclosure by a publication or by any other 
means except an unauthorized act or omission or breach of this agreement on the part of 
the Consultant.  

7.2 No Disclosure of Confidential Information by the Consultant. The Consultant 
acknowledges that it shall, in performing the services for the MGNWC under this 
agreement, have access to or be directly or indirectly exposed to confidential 
information. To the extent allowed by law, the Consultant shall hold confidential all 
confidential information and shall not disclose or use such Confidential Information 
without express prior written consent of the MGNWC. The Consultant shall use 
reasonable measures at least as strict as those the Consultant uses to protect its own 
confidential information. Such measures shall include, without limitation, requiring 
employees and subcontractors of the Consultant to execute a non-disclosure agreement 
before obtaining access to confidential information. 



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 9 of 17 

7.3 Illinois Freedom of Information Act (FOIA). FOIA applies to public records in the 
possession of a party with whom the MGNWC has contracted.  The MGNWC will have 
only a very short period of time from receipt of a FOIA request to comply with the 
request, and there is a significant amount of work required to process a request including 
collating and reviewing the information.  Consultant will comply with all requests made 
by the MGNWC for public records (as that term is defined by Section 2(c) of FOIA) in the 
Consultant’s possession and will provide the requested public records to the MGNWC 
within two (2) business days of the request being made by the MGNWC. The undersigned 
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the MGNWC from all claims, costs, penalty, losses 
and injuries (including but not limited to, attorney’s fees, other professional fees, court 
costs and/or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to its 
failure to provide the public records to the MGNWC under this agreement. 

7.4 GIS Data. The MGNWC has developed digital map information through Geographic 
Information Systems Technology (“GIS data”) concerning the real property located within 
the MGNWC. If necessary to the performance of the services and if requested to do so by 
the Consultant, the MGNWC may supply the Consultant with access to the GIS data. In 
such case the Consultant agrees as follows:  

A. Limited Access to and use of GIS data. The GIS data provided by a MGNWC shall be 
limited to the scope of the work that the Consultant is to provide for the MGNWC, 
and the Consultant shall limit its use of the GIS data to its intended purpose of 
furtherance of the work;  

B. Trade Secrets of the MGNWC. The GIS data constitutes proprietary materials and 
trade secrets of the MGNWC and, shall remain the property of the MGNWC;  

C. Consent of the MGNWC Required. The Consultant will not provide or make 
available GIS data in any form to anyone without the prior written consent of the 
MGNWC Administrator;  

D. Supply to MGNWC. At the request of  the MGNWC, the Consultant shall supply the 
MGNWC with any and all information that may have been developed by the 
Consultant based on the GIS data; 

E. No Guarantee of Accuracy. The MGNWC make no guarantee as to the accuracy, 
completeness, or suitability of the GIS data in regard to the Consultant’s intended 
use thereof; and 



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 10 of 17 

F. Discontinuation of Use. At such time as the Services have been completed to the 
satisfaction of or terminated by the MGNWC, the Consultant shall cease its use of 
the GIS data for any purpose whatsoever; and, upon request, an authorized 
representative of the MGNWC shall be afforded sufficient access to the 
Consultant’s premises and data processing equipment to verify that all use of the 
GIS data has been discontinued. 

7.5 Ownership. Designs, drawings, plans, specifications, photos, reports, information, 
observations, calculations, notes, and any other documents, data, or information, in any 
form, prepared, collected, or received by the Consultant in connection with any or all of 
the services to be performed under this agreement (“documents”) shall be and remain 
the exclusive property of the MGNWC. At the MGNWC’s request, or upon termination of 
this Agreement, the Consultant shall cause the documents to be promptly delivered to 
the MGNWC. 

7.6 News Releases. The Consultant shall not issue any news releases or other public 
statements regarding the Services without prior approval from the MGNWC 
Administrator.  

8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND GRANTS  

8.1 General Compliance. Consultant shall give all notices, pay all fees, and take all other 
action that may be necessary to ensure that the services are provided, performed, and 
completed in accordance with all required governmental permits, licenses, or other 
approvals and authorizations that may be required in connection with providing, 
performing, and completing the services, and with all applicable statutes, ordinances, 
rules, and regulations, including without limitation the Fair Labor Standards Act; any 
statutes regarding qualification to do business; any statutes prohibiting discrimination 
because of, or requiring affirmative action based on, race, creed, color, national origin, 
age, sex, or other prohibited classification, including, without limitation, the Americans 
with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., and the Illinois Human Rights Act, 
775 ILCS 5/1-101 et seq. Consultant shall be solely liable for any fines or civil penalties 
that are imposed by any governmental or quasi-governmental agency or body that may 
arise, or be alleged to have arisen, out of or in connection with Consultant’s, or its 
subcontractors’ performance of, or failure to perform, the services or any part thereof. 
Every provision required by law to be inserted into this agreement shall be deemed to be 
inserted herein. 

8.2 Grant Compliance. Consultant shall also comply with all conditions of any federal, state, 
or local grant received by the MGNWC or consultant with respect to this agreement or 
the services.  



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 11 of 17 

8.3 Sexual Harassment Policy. The Consultant represents and warrants  that it has and follows 
a written sexual harassment policy in full compliance with Section 2-105(A)(4) of the 
Illinois Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/2-105(A)(4). 

8.4 Patriot Act Compliance. The Consultant represents and warrants that neither it nor any of 
its principals, shareholders, members, partners, or affiliates, as applicable, is a person or 
entity named as a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person (as defined in 
Presidential Executive Order 13224) and that it is not acting, directly or indirectly, for or 
on behalf of a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person. The Consultant further 
represents and warrants that the Consultant and its principals, shareholders, members, 
partners, or affiliates, as applicable, are not, directly or indirectly, engaged in, and are not 
facilitating, the transactions contemplated by this agreement on behalf of any person or 
entity named as a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person. The Consultant 
hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the MGNWC, its respective 
corporate authorities, and elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents, 
representatives, engineers, volunteers, and attorneys, from and against any and all 
claims, damages, losses, risks, liabilities, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' 
fees and costs) arising from or related to any breach of the representations and 
warranties in this subsection.  

8.5 Equal Employment Opportunity Compliance.  During the performance of this agreement, 
Consultant as follows: 

A. That it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment on 
the basis of race, age, marital status, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, physical 
or mental handicap unrelated to ability, national origin or ancestry or an 
unfavorable discharge from military service; and further that it will examine all job 
classifications to determine if minorities or women are underutilized and shall take 
appropriate affirmative action to rectify any such underutilization. 

B. That, if it hires additional employees in order to perform the services or any portion 
hereof, it shall determine the availability (in accordance with the MGNWC’s rules) of 
minorities and women in the area(s) from which they may reasonably recruit, and it 
will hire for each applicable job classification for which employees are hired in such 
manner that minorities and women are not underutilized. 

C. That, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by it or on its behalf, 
it will state that all applicants will be afforded equal opportunity without 
discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin or 
ancestry, marital status, age physical or mental handicap unrelated to ability or an 
unfavorable discharge from the military. 



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 12 of 17 

D. That it shall submit reports as required by the MGNWC’s rules and furnish all relevant 
information as may from time to time be requested by the MGNWC or the MGNWC, 
and in all respects comply with the Illinois Human Rights Act and the MGNWC's Rules. 

E. That it shall permit access to all relevant books, records, accounts and work sites by 
personnel of the MGNWC and the MGNWC for purposes of investigation to ascertain 
compliance with the Illinois Human Rights Act and the MGNWC’s rules. 

F. That it shall include verbatim or by reference the provisions of this clause in every 
subcontract it awards under which any portion of the contract obligations are 
undertaken or assumed so that such provisions will be binding upon such 
subcontractor.  In the same manner as with other provisions of this agreement, the 
Consultant will be liable for compliance with applicable provisions of this clause by 
such subcontractors; and further it will promptly notify the MGNWC or the MGNWC 
in the event any subcontractor fails or refuses to comply therewith.  In addition, no 
Consultant shall utilize any subcontractor declared by the Illinois Human Rights 
Commission to be ineligible for contracts or subcontracts with the State of Illinois or 
any of its political subdivisions or municipal corporations. 

G. If the Consultant has not complied with all provisions of the Illinois Human Rights 
Act, or the Rules and Regulations of the Illinois Department of Human Rights 
“MGNWC”, the Consultant may be declared ineligible for future contracts or 
subcontracts with the MGNWC and this agreement may be cancelled or voided in 
whole or in part, and such other sanctions or penalties may be imposed or remedies 
invoked as provided by statute or regulation. 

 
9 DEFAULT AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

9.1 Default. If it should appear at any time that the consultant has failed, refused or delayed 
to perform, the services any other requirement of this agreement with diligence at a rate 
that assures completion of the services and full compliance of this agreement, (“event of 
default”), and fails to cure any such event of default within ten business days after the 
Consultant’s receipt of written notice of such event of default from the MGNWC, then the 
MGNWC shall have the right, without prejudice to any other remedies provided by law or 
equity, to pursue any one or more of the following remedies:  

A. Cure by Consultant. The MGNWC may require the Consultant, within a reasonable 
time, to complete or correct all or any part of the services that are the subject of 
the event of default; and to take any or all other action necessary to bring the 
Consultant and the services into compliance with this agreement. 



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 13 of 17 

B. Termination of Agreement by MGNWC. The MGNWC may terminate this agreement 
without liability for further payment of amounts due or to become due under this 
agreement. 

C. Withholding of Payment by MGNWC. The MGNWC may withhold from any 
payment, whether or not previously approved, or may recover from the Consultant, 
any and all costs, including attorneys’ fees and administrative expenses, incurred by 
the MGNWC as the result of any event of default by the Consultant or as a result of 
actions taken by the MGNWC in response to any event of default by the Consultant. 

9.2 Dispute Resolution. Any dispute related to this Agreement shall, upon request by either 
party, be submitted to a panel consisting of at least one representative of each party who 
shall have the authority to enter into an agreement to resolve the dispute.  In the event 
that the panel is unable to reach a mutual resolution of the dispute, or has failed to 
convene within two weeks of the request of either party, either party may refer the 
matter to a court of appropriate jurisdiction. All communications between the parties or 
their representatives in connection with the attempted resolution of any dispute shall be 
confidential and deemed to have been delivered in furtherance of dispute settlement and 
shall be exempt from discovery and production, and shall not be admissible in evidence 
whether as an admission or otherwise, in any arbitration, judicial or other proceeding for 
the resolution of the dispute. 

9.3  During the dispute resolution period, or if litigation ensues, pending any final judicial 
decision or settlement, Consultant shall proceed diligently with the services. 

 
10 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

10.1 Notice.  

A. Any notice or communication required or permitted to be given under this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered (i) personally to an authorized 
representative of the party; (ii) by certified mail addressed to the contact person 
listed in Section 1 of this agreement, return receipt requested, and deposited in the 
U.S. Mail, postage prepaid; (iii) by facsimile to a number provided by the contact 
person listed in Section 1 of this agreement, and deposited in the U.S. Mail, postage 
prepaid the recipient; or (iv) by electronic internet mail (“e-mail”) addressed to the 
contact person listed in Section 1 of this agreement, and deposited in the U.S. Mail, 
postage prepaid.  

B. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, notices shall be deemed 
received upon the earlier of actual receipt or three business days following deposit 
in the U.S. mail.   



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 14 of 17 

C. By notice complying with the requirements of this Subsection, each Party shall have 
the right to change the address or the addressee, or both, for all future notices and 
communications to such party, but no notice of a change of addressee or address 
shall be effective until actually received. Notices and communications to the 
MGNWC shall be addressed to the party listed in Section 1 of this agreement.  

10.2 Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by the MGNWC or by the Consultant 
without the prior written consent of the other party. 

10.3 Third Party Beneficiary. No claim as a third party beneficiary under this agreement by 
any person, firm, or corporation other than the Consultant shall be made or be valid 
against the MGNWC. 

10.4 Provisions Severable. If any term, covenant, condition, or provision of this agreement is 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the 
remainder of the provisions shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be 
affected, impaired or invalidated. 

10.5 Time. Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. 

10.6 Governing Laws. This agreement shall be interpreted according to the laws of the State 
of Illinois. 

10.7 Binding Effect. The terms of this agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the 
Parties hereto and their agents, successors, and assigns. 

10.8 Entire Agreement. This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties and supersedes any and all previous or contemporaneous oral or written 
agreements and negotiations between either of the MGNWC and the CONSULTANT with 
respect to the Proposal and the Services. 

10.9 Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this agreement shall be deemed to or constitute a 
waiver of any other provision of this agreement (whether or not similar) nor shall any 
such waiver be deemed to or constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly 
provided in this Agreement. 

10.10 Remedies. No remedies or rights conferred upon MGNWC by this agreement are 
intended to be exclusive of any remedy or right provided by law or equity, but each shall 
be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy or right given herein or 
now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. 

10.11 Survival of Terms. Articles on Indemnity, Confidential Information and Rights in Data 
shall survive termination of this agreement.  



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 15 of 17 

10.12 Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this 
agreement shall not affect the other provisions, and this agreement shall be construed 
in all respects as if any invalid or unenforceable provision were omitted.  

10.13 Exhibit. Exhibits A (Consultant’s proposal dated January 8, 2016) and B (insurance 
requirements) are attached hereto, and by this reference incorporated in and made a 
part of this agreement. In the event of a conflict between the Exhibit and the text of this 
agreement, the text of this agreement shall control. 

10.14 Rights Cumulative. Unless expressly provided to the contrary in this agreement, each 
and every one of the rights, remedies, and benefits provided by this agreement shall be 
cumulative and shall not be exclusive of any other such rights, remedies, and benefits 
allowed by law. 

10.15 Counterpart Execution. This agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of 
which, when executed, shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

_________________________________ 
MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION 
By: Steven Vinezeano, Chair  

 
_________________________________ 
True North Consultants, Inc.,   
By: Ryan M Ladieu, its President  



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 16 of 17 

Exhibit A 
PROPOSAL OF TRUE NORTH CONSULTANTS, INC DATED APRIL 24, 2018   

TO CONDUCT BASELINE TESTING ON THE MWRD EASEMENT PROPERTY AND PREPARE A 
BASELINE REPORT FOR THE PURPOSES OF SATISFYING THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE  MGNWC-

MWRD EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
  



1000 East Warrenville Road DATE: 4/24/2018
Naperville, Illinois 60563 Proposal # T18-225
Phone: 630-717-2880 Customer ID MGNW
Fax: 630-689-5881 Valid Until: 6/8/2018
rladieu@consulttruenorth.com

CLIENT
William Balling Soil Management Consulting & Basline Testing
Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission MWRD Easement Area
1000 Civic Center Drive
Niles, Illinois 60714 Evanston, Illinois 60201
847-398-8399
bill@wrbllc.com

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT RATE AMOUNT
PIP Evaluation 1 LS $500.00 500.00$            
Soil Sampling Labor (4 hr min)(est.) 8 HR $90.00 720.00$             
Soil Sampling Equipment, Materials and Vehicle 1 LS $300.00 300.00$            
Environmental Drilling Contractor 1 LS $2,705.00 2,705.00$          

CCDD Soil Analytical
      pH 7 EA 15.00$                  105.00$              
      BETX 4 EA 150.00$               600.00$            
      PNAs 7 EA 125.00$               875.00$             
      RCRA Metals 7 EA 85.00$                595.00$             
      TCLP Extraction (if necessary)(estimated) 7 EA 65.00$                455.00$             
      TCLP One Metal (if necessary)(estimated) 7 EA 12.00$                  84.00$               

LPC #663 Certification 1 LS 750.00$              750.00$             
Project Management & Administration 1 HR 125.00$               125.00$              

Baseline Report Preparation 1 REPORT 1,700.00$            1,700.00$           

Waste Characterization Disposal Analytical (if necessary TBD EA 1,200.00$            TBD
Waste Profile Preparation (if necessary) TBD HR 125.00$               TBD

4 Day RUSH Analysis Surcharge 25 %
3 Day RUSH Analysis Surcharge 50 %
2 Day RUSH Analysis Surcharge 75 %

Subtotal 9,514.00$           

Other -$                   
TOTAL Due 9,514.00$          

3. Please fax, mail, or e-mail the signed price quote to the address above.
Client Acceptance (sign below):

QUOTATION

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1. The attached terms and conditions shall apply to this scope of work.

PROJECT

x ___________________________________________

Thank You For Your Business!

True North appreciates the opportunity to offer this proposal for environmental consulting and testing services. If you 
have any questions, please contact me at 224.387.6063

Ryan M. LaDieu, P.E.

2525 Church Street & West Side Park Area

2. Payment will be due upon receipt of invoicing.

Comments: True North has assumed the collection of up to seven (7) soil samples from select watermain excavation 
locations within the project area, to a maximum of 12' below ground surface. True North has assumed 
subcontracting a non-union, prevailing wage environmental drilling contractor to complete the proposed soil 
borings. The selected analytical parameters are based on True North's preliminary evaluation of limited historical 
records and environmental database information. The proposed analytical meets requirements at most CCDD 
facilities. True North has assumed a standard turn-around-time of five to seven days (does not include day of 
sampling). The laboratory analysis can be expedited if necessary for a surcharge, as identified. True North has also 
included unit rates for waste characterization services in the event non-CCDD soils are encountered. This estimate 
does not include delineation sampling activities.  True North shall prepare a Baseline Report for the purposes of 
satifying the MWRD Easement Agreement.  The report shall incorporate all sampling data and field documentaiton 
necessary to document the existing easement conditions prior to MGNWC watermain installation.

Print Name: 



SCHEDULE OF TERMS & CONDITIONS 
 
1.0 PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE 
 

The following terms and conditions ("Terms") shall apply to and are an 
integral part of the attached proposal between True North Consultants, 
Inc. (True North) and the Client named in the attached proposal 
("Client"). Client's acceptance of the proposal includes acceptance of 
the Terms and any terms and conditions proposed by the Client will be 
deemed to materially alter the Terms and are hereby objected to and 
rejected by True North. Acceptance of this proposal, including 
acceptance of the Terms, shall occur upon the notification of True North 
by Client, in writing or orally, to commence performance in 
accordance with the proposal and the Terms. 
 
2.0   WARRANTY 
 

The Client recognizes that subsurface conditions may vary from those 
observed at locations where borings, surveys or explorations are made, 
and that site conditions may change with time.  Data, interpretation, 
and recommendations by True North will be based solely on information 
available to True North. True North is responsible for those data, 
interpretations, and recommendations, but will not be responsible for 
other parties' interpretations or use of the information developed.  Client 
acknowledges that whenever a Project involves hazardous or toxic 
materials and/or investigations of chemicals in the environment, there 
are inherent uncertainties involved (such as limitations on laboratory 
analytical methods, variations in subsurface conditions and the like) 
that may adversely affect the results of the Project, even though the 
services are performed with skill and care. True North shall perform the 
services consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by 
other professional consultants under similar circumstances at the same 
time the services are performed. No other warranty, expressed or 
implied, is made. 
 
3.0   SUBCONTRACTED AND OTHER SERVICES 
 

3.1 True North will select reputable subcontractors for test borings 
and/or other explorations or services based on oral or written 
competitive prices. The contractor's invoices shall be billed in 
accordance with our proposal. Nothing in this paragraph shall 
require that services or equipment be obtained through 
competitive bidding or be available from multiple sources. 

3.2 On occasion, True North engages the specialized services of 
individual consultants or other companies to participate in a 
project. When considered necessary, the cost of such services 
will be billed in accordance with our proposal. 

 
4.0   SITE ACCESS AND SITE CONDITIONS 
 

Client will grant or obtain free access to the site for all equipment and 
personnel for True North to perform the work set forth in this Agreement. 
The Client will notify any and all possessors of the project site that Client 
has granted True North free access to the site. True North will take 
reasonable precautions to limit damage to the site, but it is understood 
by Client that, in the normal course of work, some damage may occur 
and the correction of such damage is not part of this Agreement unless 
so specified in the Proposal.  The Client is responsible for the accuracy 
of locations for all subterranean structures and utilities. True North will 
take reasonable precautions to avoid known subterranean structures, 
and the Client waives any claim against True North, and agrees to 
defend, indemnify, and hold True North harmless from any claim or 
liability for injury or loss, including costs of defense, arising from damage 
done to subterranean structures and utilities not identified or accurately 
located. In addition, Client agrees to compensate True North for any 
time spent or expenses incurred by True North in defense of any such 
claim with compensation to be based upon True North's prevailing fee 
schedule/expense reimbursement policy. 
 
5.0   BILLING AND PAYMENT 
 

Invoices shall generally be submitted every four weeks for services 
performed during the previous four weeks. Payment shall be due within 
30 days of invoice date. If Client objects to all or any portion of any 
invoice, Client will so notify True North in writing within fourteen (14) 

calendar days of invoice receipt, identify the cause of disagreement, 
and pay within thirty (30) days that portion of the invoice, if any, not in 
dispute. The parties will immediately make every effort to settle the 
disputed portion of the invoice. In the absence of written notification 
described above, the balance as stated on the invoice will be paid. 
Invoices are delinquent if payment has not been received within thirty 
(30) days from date of invoice. Client will pay an additional charge of 
1-1/2 (1.5) percent per month (or the maximum percentage allowed by 
law, whichever is lower) on any delinquent amount, excepting any 
portion of the invoiced amount in dispute and resolved in favor of 
Client. Payment thereafter will first be applied to accrued interest and 
then to the principal unpaid amount. All time spent and expenses 
incurred (including any attorney's fees) in connection with collection of 
any delinquent amount will be paid by the Client to True North per True 
North's current fee schedules. In the event Client fails to pay True North 
within thirty (30) days after invoices are rendered, Client agrees that True 
North has the right to suspend this Agreement, without incurring liability 
to Client, after giving seven (7) days written notice to Client. 
 
6.0   DOCUMENTS AND ELECTRONIC FILES 
 

6.1 Written Documents:  Any letters, reports, or documents prepared 
by us for Client, are the instruments of our consulting and 
engineering services. These services provided by us are solely for 
Client's use for the project and site described in our proposal.  
Any documents prepared by us for the client shall not, in whole 
or in part, be disseminated or conveyed to another party, nor 
used by another party in whole or in part, without prior written 
consent from True North.  The Client shall, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, waive any claim against True North, and 
indemnify, defend, and hold True North harmless for any claim or 
liability for injury or loss allegedly arising from any third-party 
reliance on True North’s instruments of service without True 
North’s specific authorization to do so.   

6.2 Electronic Files:  The Client hereby grants permission for True North 
to use information and data provided by the Client, including 
electronic records produced or provided by the Client in the 
completion of the project.  The Client also grants permission to 
True North to release True North documents electronically to 
Consultants, Contractors, and Vendors as required in the 
execution of the project.   

 
7.0   INSURANCE 
 

True North maintains Workmen's Compensation Insurance as required 
by State law and General Liability Insurance for bodily injury and 
property damage with an aggregate limit of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence. True North will furnish certificates of such insurance upon 
request. In the event the Client desires additional coverage of this type, 
True North will, upon the Client's written request, obtain additional 
insurance (if possible) at the Client's expense. Our liability to the Client 
for bodily injury or property damage arising out of work performed for 
the Client for which legal liability may be found to rest upon us, other 
than for professional errors or omissions, shall be limited to our General 
Liability Insurance coverage. 
 
8.0   ALLOCATION OF RISK 
 

8.1  Limitation of Liability: Client agrees to limit True North's liability to 
Client, and to any other person or entity, for any claim arising 
from, or alleged to arise from any acts, errors or omissions in the 
performance of services under this Agreement whether such 
claim sounds in negligence, breach of contract, strict liability, or 
other legal theory, except for willful misconduct or gross 
negligence and including any legal fees or costs awarded under 
this Agreement, to an aggregate limit of the amount of fees paid 
to True North under this Agreement, or $50,000, whichever is 
greater. If Client prefers not to limit our professional liability to this 
sum, we shall waive this limitation upon Client’s written request, 
provided that Client agrees to pay for this waiver at a negotiated 
fee. Client’s request for this option must be made at the time 
Client accepts our proposal. In the event Client makes a claim 

Page 1 of 2 
 



SCHEDULE OF TERMS & CONDITIONS 
 

against us for any act arising out of the performance of our 
professional services, and fails to prove such claim, then Client 
agrees to pay all legal and other costs incurred by us in defense 
of such claim. 

8.2  Waiver of Consequential Damages: True North and Client agree 
to waive any claim against each other for consequential 
damages. 

8.3  Indemnification: True North shall indemnify and hold harmless 
Client from and against any and all claims, damages, or liability 
arising from the negligent performance of services under this 
Agreement by True North, including injuries to employees of True 
North. Client shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless True 
North from and against any and all claims, damages, or liability 
arising from or related to Hazardous Materials existing at the 
Project Site prior to the commencement of True North’s services 
under this Agreement, unless caused by the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of True North. 

8.4  Continuing Agreement: The obligations of this section shall 
survive notwithstanding termination of this agreement. In the 
event that Client requests that True North provide additional 
services, Client's obligations under this section shall apply to such 
additional services as if such additional services had to be 
performed as part of this Agreement. 

 
9.0   CHANGES 
 

9.1  Unforeseen Site Conditions: Client reserves the right to make 
reasonable changes in the work to be performed after 
acceptance of this Agreement. Client understands that 
unforeseen site conditions may require changes in the Scope of 
Work to be performed. 

9.2  Unauthorized Changes: If changes are made in True North’s work 
products by Client or persons other than True North, and these 
changes affect our work, any and all liability against True North 
arising out of such changes is waived and Client assumes full 
responsibility for such changes unless Client has given us prior 
notice and have received from us written consent for such 
changes. 

9.3  Client Requested Changes: Upon receipt of a change 
requested by Client, True North will obtain price quotations from 
our subcontractors and shall provide Client with a quotation of 
the cost of having the change performed, and any increase in 
contract time caused by the change. Client shall authorize the 
requested change by amending the contract price and 
contract time. 

 
10.0   NOTIFICATION OF HAZARDS 
 

It is Client’s duty to notify True North of any information Client has with 
respect to the existence or suspected existence of Biological Pollutants, 
Hazardous Materials, oil, or asbestos in the environment, including but 
not limited to the air, soil, and water at the site. Client will advise True 
North immediately of any information which Client receives regarding 
the existence of any such Hazardous Materials or conditions at the site 
which might present a threat to human health and safety or the 
environment or impact True North's work products. 
 
11.0   BIOLOGICAL POLLUTANTS 
 

True North’s scope of work, unless specifically outlined in our written 
scope of services, does not include the investigation or detection of the 
presence of any Biological Pollutants in or around any structure. Client 
agrees that True North will have no liability for any claim regarding 
bodily injury or property damage alleged to arise from or be caused by 
the presence of or exposure to any Biological Pollutants, in or around 
any structure. In addition, Client will defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless Consultant from any third party claim for damages alleged to 
arise from or be caused by the presence of or exposure to Biological 
Pollutants in or around any structure, except for damages arising from 
or caused by True North’s sole negligence. 
 
 
 

12.0   SITE CONTROL, CONFIDENTIALITY AND DISCLOSURE 
 

True North does not assume, by virtue of performing work on or near the 
site, the responsibility or liability for any aspect or condition of the site 
that may now or later exist to be discovered. In particular, we do not 
assume the responsibility to report to any governmental or regulatory 
agency the existence of any conditions of the site that may present a 
threat to human health, safety or the environment. True North will not 
intentionally divulge information regarding the proposal, our services or 
the report, and which is not in the public domain, except to Client or 
those whom Client designates. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Client 
understands that we will comply with judicial orders and applicable 
laws and regulations regarding the reporting to the appropriate public 
agencies of potential dangers to the public health, safety or the 
environment. 
 
13.0   RCRA COMPLIANCE 
 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted 
as requiring True North to assume the status of a generator, storer, 
treater, transporter, or disposal facility within the meaning of the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended, or 
within the meaning of any similar Federal, State, or local regulation or 
law. 
 
14.0   DELAYS 
 

Delays not the fault of True North or contractors shall result in an 
extension of the schedule equivalent to the length of delay. If such 
delays result in additional costs to True North, the total project cost shall 
be equitably adjusted by the amount of such additional costs. 
 
15.0   DISPUTE RESOLUTIONS 
 

Any claims or disputes between the Client and True North arising out of 
the services provided by True North or out of this Agreement shall be 
submitted to non-binding mediation as a condition precedent to 
arbitration or the institution of legal or equitable proceedings by either 
party.  The Client and True North agree to include a similar mediation 
agreement with all contractors, subconsultants, subcontractors, 
suppliers and fabricators, providing for mediation as the primary 
method of dispute resolution among all parties.  The laws of the State of 
Illinois will govern the validity of this Agreement, its interpretation and 
performance.  
 
16.0   MISCELLANEOUS 
 

16.1  Controlling Law: The law of the State of Illinois will govern the 
validity of these Terms, their interpretation and performance, as 
well as the contract entered into between the parties to which 
these Terms relate. If any part of this Agreement shall be held 
illegal, unenforceable, void, or voidable by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, each of the remainder of the provisions 
shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect as a separate 
contract and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or 
invalidated. 

 
16.2  Severability/Integration/Modification: This Agreement, including 

attachments incorporated herein by reference, represents the 
entire Agreement and understanding between the parties, and 
any negotiations, proposals, or oral agreements are intended to 
be integrated herein and to be superseded by this Agreement. 
This Agreement may not be modified or altered, except by an 
Agreement in writing and signed by authorized representatives 
of both parties hereto, which specifically refers to this 
Agreement. 

 
16.3  Waste Manifests: If during remedial construction activities waste 

manifests are required, Client shall provide an authorized person 
to sign manifests or agrees to provide True North with a written 
limited power of attorney to sign manifests. 

 
END OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
REVISED: January 19, 2015 

Page 2 of 2 
 



PSA MGNWC & True North 
MWRD Baseline Study 

Page 17 of 17 

EXHIBIT B 
INSURANCE COVERAGES 
 
A. Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability with limits not less than: 

(1) Worker’s Compensation: Statutory; 
(2) Employer’s Liability: 
$500,000 injury-per occurrence 
$500,000 disease-per employee 
$500,000 disease-policy limit 
Such insurance shall evidence that coverage applies in the State of Illinois. 

 
B. Comprehensive Motor Vehicle Liability with a combined single limit of liability for bodily 
injury and property damage of not less than $1,000,000 for vehicles owned, non-owned, or 
rented. All CONSULTANT employees shall be included as insureds. 
 
C. Comprehensive General Liability with coverage written on an “occurrence” basis and with 
limits no less than: 

$2,000,000 Bodily Injury and Property Damage Combined Single Limit Coverage is to be 
written on an “occurrence” bases. 
Coverages shall include:  
- Broad Form Property Damage Endorsement 
- Blanket Contractual Liability (must expressly cover the indemnity provisions of the 
Contract) 

 
D. Professional Liability Insurance. With a limit of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate and covering CONSULTANT against all sums that 
CONSULTANT may be obligated to pay on account of any liability arising out of the Contract. 
 
E. Umbrella Policy. The required coverages may be in any combination of primary, excess, and 
umbrella policies. Any excess or umbrella policy must provide excess coverage over underlying 
insurance on a following-form basis such that when any loss covered by the primary policy 
exceeds the limits under the primary policy, the excess or umbrella policy becomes effective to 
cover such loss. 
 
F. MGNWC as Additional Insured. The MGNWC shall be named as an Additional Insured on all 
policies except for: Worker’s Compensation and Professional Liability. Each such additional 
Insured endorsement shall identify the MGNWC as follows: Morton Grove-Niles Water 
Commission, including its Board members and elected and appointed officials, its officers, 
employees, agents, attorneys, CONSULTANTs, and representatives 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-47 
Agreement w/ True North for MWRD Baseline Study 
 

4 

STATE OF ILLINOIS )       
   )  SS 
COUNTY OF COOK ) 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATE 
 
I, John Pietron, Clerk of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission, Cook County, State of 

Illinois, certify that the attached and foregoing is a true and correct copy of that certain Resolution 

now on file in my office, entitled: 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-47 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION AND TRUE NORTH 

CONSULTANTS, INC. TO PREPARE A BASELINE STUDY REQUIRED BY THE MWRD FOR THE 
MGNWC EASEMENT PREMISES LOCATED IN SKOKIE AND EVANSTON, ILLINOIS 

 
which Resolution was passed by the Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water 

Commission at a Regular Meeting held on the 27th day of April 2018, at which meeting a quorum 

was present. 

I further certify that the vote on the question of the passage of said Resolution by the Board 

of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission was taken by Ayes and Nays and 

recorded in the minutes of the Board of Commissioners of the Morton Grove-Niles Water 

Commission, and that the result of said vote was as follows, to-wit:  

 
AYES:  John Pietron and Steven Vinezeano 

  
NAYS:  None 

 
ABSENT: None (Cook County Appointee not appointed yet) 

 
I do further certify that the original Resolution, of which the foregoing is a true copy, is 

entrusted to my care for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful keeper of the same. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 27th day of April 2018. 

 

       _____________________________ 
                            John Pietron, Clerk 
 


	Agenda Packet April 27, 2018.pdf
	Agenda Packet April 27, 2018
	Agenda MGNWC Special Meeting April 27 2018 
	MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA

	DRAFT_MGNWC_REGULAR MEETING_3.22.2018_Minutes
	MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION HELD IN THE VILLAGE OF NILES VILLAGE HALL ADMININSTRATION BUILDING 1000 CIVIC CENTER DRIVE, NILES, ILLINOIS 60714 THURSDAY, MARCH 22, 2018


	Agenda Packet April 27, 2018.pdf
	MGNWCWarrant 04272018

	Agenda Packet April 27, 2018.pdf
	Agenda Packet April 27, 2018
	Resolution 18-44 APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDERS FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
	RESOLUTION 18-44
	A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF CHANGE ORDERS FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS FOR THE MORTON GROVE NILES WATER COMMISSION
	WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN AND FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT
	AYES:  John Pietron and Steven Vinezeano
	Steven Vinezeano, Chair
	ATTEST:
	John Pietron, Clerk
	CLERK’S CERTIFICATE
	RESOLUTION 18-44
	A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF CHANGE ORDERS FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS FOR THE MORTON GROVE NILES WATER COMMISSION
	WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN AND FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 27th day of April.
	John Pietron, Clerk

	Resolution 18-45 APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT WITH TRUE NORTH CONSULTANTS INC  Demolition and Asbestos Removal 2525 Church 
	RESOLUTION NO 18-45
	AYES:  John Pietron and Steven Vinezeano
	Steven Vinezeano, Chair
	ATTEST:
	John Pietron, Clerk
	Exhibit A

	Professional Services Agreement- True North  Oversite of 2525 Church Demolition
	1 PARTIES:
	The parties to this Agreement and the address and contact information for each is as follows:

	2 PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES
	2.3 Early Termination. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the MGNWC may terminate this agreement at any time upon 14 days prior written notice to the Consultant. In the event that this agreement is so terminated, the Consultant shall be paid ...
	2.4 Suspension of Services. MGNWC may, at any time, with or without cause, suspend all or any portion of services for a period of up to 90 days (“suspended services”).  Consultant shall immediately stop the performance of the suspended services, until...
	2.5 Force Majeure. MGNWC shall not be responsible for delay in the performance of its obligations under this agreement caused by a force majeure event.  To the extent that Contracted Services are delayed by a force majeure event, Consultant will be en...
	2.6 Assignments; Coordination; Reporting. Assignments and tasks will be assigned to the Consultant by MGNWC Representative. Consultant shall regularly report to and will coordinate all work through MGNWC Representative or his designee.
	2.7 Quality Control Plans. When required by the Exhibit A, Consultant shall execute a quality control plan acceptable to MGNWC that ensures the quality of its work products and activities.  Prior to starting the performance of the services, Consultant...
	2.8 Warranty of Services. The Consultant warrants that the services shall be performed in accordance with the highest standards of professional practice, care, and diligence practiced by recognized consulting firms in performing services of a similar ...
	2.9 Mutual Cooperation. The MGNWC agrees to cooperate with the Consultant in the performance of the services, including meeting with the Consultant and providing the Consultant with such non-confidential information that the MGNWC may have that may be...
	2.10 Amendment. No amendment or modification to this agreement shall be effective unless and until such amendment or modification is approved in writing by the MGNWC Administrator and the Consultant.
	2.11 No Additional Obligation. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the MGNWC is under no obligation under this agreement or otherwise to negotiate or enter into any other or additional contracts or agreements with the Consultant, or with any vendor...

	3 COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT
	3.1 Agreement Amount. The total amount billed by the Consultant for the Services under this Agreement shall not exceed fifteen thousand six hundred and seventy-five dollars $15,675.00) in total without the prior express written authorization of the Vi...
	3.2 Invoices and Payment. The Consultant shall submit invoices to the MGNWC in an approved format for those portions of the Services performed and completed by the Consultant. The MGNWC shall pay to the Consultant the amount billed for completed and a...
	3.3 Records. The Consultant shall maintain records showing actual time devoted and costs incurred, and shall permit the authorized representative of the MGNWC to inspect and audit all data and records of the Consultant for work done under the Agreemen...
	3.4 Claim For Additional Compensation. If the Consultant wishes to make a claim for additional compensation as a result of action taken by the MGNWC, the Consultant shall provide written notice to the MGNWC of such claim within 7 days after occurrence...
	3.5 Taxes, Benefits and Royalties. The agreement amount includes all applicable federal, state, and local taxes of every kind and nature applicable to the services as well as all taxes, contributions, and premiums for unemployment insurance, old age o...

	4 PERSONNEL AND SUBCONTRACTORS
	4.1 Key Project Personnel. Key Project Personnel identified in Exhibit A shall be Ryan M Ladieu  who shall be primarily responsible for carrying out the Services on behalf of the Consultant. The key project personnel shall not be changed without the M...
	4.2 Availability of Personnel. The Consultant shall provide all personnel necessary to complete the Services including, without limitation, any Key Project Personnel identified in this Agreement. The Consultant shall notify the MGNWC as soon as practi...
	4.3 Approval and Use of Subcontractors. The Consultant shall perform the services with its own personnel and under the management, supervision, and control of its own organization unless otherwise approved by the MGNWC in writing. All subcontractors a...
	4.4 MGNWC Authority. Notwithstanding any provision of this agreement, any negotiations or agreements with, or representations by the Consultant to any subcontractor, vendor or third party shall be subject to the approval of the MGNWC. The MGNWC shall ...
	4.5 Lien Waiver. Consultant shall promptly pay for all services, labor, materials and equipment used or employed by Consultant in the performance of the services and shall maintain all materials, equipment, structures, buildings, premises and property...

	5 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES
	5.1 Independent Contractor. The Consultant shall act as an independent contractor in providing and performing the services. Nothing in, nor done pursuant to, this Agreement shall be construed:
	A. To create the relationship of principal and agent, employer and employee, partners, or joint venturers between the MGNWC and Consultant; or
	B. To create any relationship between the MGNWC and any subcontractor of the Consultant.

	5.2 Conflict of Interest. The Consultant represents and certifies that, to the best of its knowledge:
	A. No employee or agent of the MGNWC is interested in the business of the Consultant or this agreement;
	B. Neither the Consultant nor any person employed or associated with the Consultant has any interest that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the obligations under this agreement; and
	C. Neither the Consultant nor any person employed by or associated with the Consultant shall at any time during the term of this agreement obtain or acquire any interest that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the obligatio...

	5.3 No Collusion. The Consultant represents and certifies that the Consultant is not barred from contracting with a unit of federal, state or local government as a result of:
	A. A delinquency in the payment of any tax administered by the Illinois Department of Revenue unless the Consultant is contesting, in accordance with the procedures established by the appropriate revenue act, its liability for the tax or the amount of...
	B. A violation of either Section 33E-3 or Section 33E-4 of Article 33E of the Criminal Code of 1961, 720 ILCS 5/33E-1 et. seq.
	C. The Consultant represents that the only persons, firms, or corporations interested in this agreement as principals are those disclosed to the MGNWC prior to the execution of this agreement, and that this agreement is made without collusion with any...


	6 INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION
	6.1 Insurance. Contemporaneous with the Consultant’s execution of this agreement, the Consultant shall provide certificates and policies of insurance, all with coverage and limits acceptable to the MGNWC, and evidencing at least the minimum insurance ...
	6.2 Indemnification. The Consultant shall, without regard to the availability or unavailability of any insurance, either of the MGNWC or the Consultant, indemnify, save harmless, and defend the MGNWC, and its respective officials, employees, agents, v...

	7 USE AND DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
	7.1 Confidential Information. The term “confidential Information” shall mean information in the possession or under the control of the MGNWC relating to the technical, business or corporate affairs of the MGNWC; property of the MGNWC; user information...
	7.2 No Disclosure of Confidential Information by the Consultant. The Consultant acknowledges that it shall, in performing the services for the MGNWC under this agreement, have access to or be directly or indirectly exposed to confidential information....
	7.3 Illinois Freedom of Information Act (FOIA). FOIA applies to public records in the possession of a party with whom the MGNWC has contracted.  The MGNWC will have only a very short period of time from receipt of a FOIA request to comply with the req...
	7.4 GIS Data. The MGNWC has developed digital map information through Geographic Information Systems Technology (“GIS data”) concerning the real property located within the MGNWC. If necessary to the performance of the services and if requested to do ...
	A. Limited Access to and use of GIS data. The GIS data provided by a MGNWC shall be limited to the scope of the work that the Consultant is to provide for the MGNWC, and the Consultant shall limit its use of the GIS data to its intended purpose of fur...
	B. Trade Secrets of the MGNWC. The GIS data constitutes proprietary materials and trade secrets of the MGNWC and, shall remain the property of the MGNWC;
	C. Consent of the MGNWC Required. The Consultant will not provide or make available GIS data in any form to anyone without the prior written consent of the MGNWC Administrator;
	D. Supply to MGNWC. At the request of  the MGNWC, the Consultant shall supply the MGNWC with any and all information that may have been developed by the Consultant based on the GIS data;
	E. No Guarantee of Accuracy. The MGNWC make no guarantee as to the accuracy, completeness, or suitability of the GIS data in regard to the Consultant’s intended use thereof; and
	F. Discontinuation of Use. At such time as the Services have been completed to the satisfaction of or terminated by the MGNWC, the Consultant shall cease its use of the GIS data for any purpose whatsoever; and, upon request, an authorized representati...

	7.5 Ownership. Designs, drawings, plans, specifications, photos, reports, information, observations, calculations, notes, and any other documents, data, or information, in any form, prepared, collected, or received by the Consultant in connection with...
	7.6 News Releases. The Consultant shall not issue any news releases or other public statements regarding the Services without prior approval from the MGNWC Administrator.

	8 Compliance with Laws and Grants
	8.1 General Compliance. Consultant shall give all notices, pay all fees, and take all other action that may be necessary to ensure that the services are provided, performed, and completed in accordance with all required governmental permits, licenses,...
	8.2 Grant Compliance. Consultant shall also comply with all conditions of any federal, state, or local grant received by the MGNWC or consultant with respect to this agreement or the services.
	8.3 Sexual Harassment Policy. The Consultant represents and warrants  that it has and follows a written sexual harassment policy in full compliance with Section 2-105(A)(4) of the Illinois Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/2-105(A)(4).
	8.4 Patriot Act Compliance. The Consultant represents and warrants that neither it nor any of its principals, shareholders, members, partners, or affiliates, as applicable, is a person or entity named as a Specially Designated National and Blocked Per...
	8.5 Equal Employment Opportunity Compliance.  During the performance of this agreement, Consultant as follows:
	A. That it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment on the basis of race, age, marital status, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, physical or mental handicap unrelated to ability, national origin or ancestry or an ...
	B. That, if it hires additional employees in order to perform the services or any portion hereof, it shall determine the availability (in accordance with the MGNWC’s rules) of minorities and women in the area(s) from which they may reasonably recruit,...
	C. That, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by it or on its behalf, it will state that all applicants will be afforded equal opportunity without discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national ...
	D. That it shall submit reports as required by the MGNWC’s rules and furnish all relevant information as may from time to time be requested by the MGNWC or the MGNWC, and in all respects comply with the Illinois Human Rights Act and the MGNWC's Rules.
	E. That it shall permit access to all relevant books, records, accounts and work sites by personnel of the MGNWC and the MGNWC for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with the Illinois Human Rights Act and the MGNWC’s rules.
	F. That it shall include verbatim or by reference the provisions of this clause in every subcontract it awards under which any portion of the contract obligations are undertaken or assumed so that such provisions will be binding upon such subcontracto...
	G. If the Consultant has not complied with all provisions of the Illinois Human Rights Act, or the Rules and Regulations of the Illinois Department of Human Rights “MGNWC”, the Consultant may be declared ineligible for future contracts or subcontracts...


	9 default AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	9.1 Default. If it should appear at any time that the consultant has failed, refused or delayed to perform, the services any other requirement of this agreement with diligence at a rate that assures completion of the services and full compliance of th...
	A. Cure by Consultant. The MGNWC may require the Consultant, within a reasonable time, to complete or correct all or any part of the services that are the subject of the event of default; and to take any or all other action necessary to bring the Cons...
	B. Termination of Agreement by MGNWC. The MGNWC may terminate this agreement without liability for further payment of amounts due or to become due under this agreement.
	C. Withholding of Payment by MGNWC. The MGNWC may withhold from any payment, whether or not previously approved, or may recover from the Consultant, any and all costs, including attorneys’ fees and administrative expenses, incurred by the MGNWC as the...

	9.2 Dispute Resolution. Any dispute related to this Agreement shall, upon request by either party, be submitted to a panel consisting of at least one representative of each party who shall have the authority to enter into an agreement to resolve the d...
	9.3  During the dispute resolution period, or if litigation ensues, pending any final judicial decision or settlement, Consultant shall proceed diligently with the services.

	10 General ProviSIONS
	10.1 Notice.
	A. Any notice or communication required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered (i) personally to an authorized representative of the party; (ii) by certified mail addressed to the contact person listed...
	B. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, notices shall be deemed received upon the earlier of actual receipt or three business days following deposit in the U.S. mail.
	C. By notice complying with the requirements of this Subsection, each Party shall have the right to change the address or the addressee, or both, for all future notices and communications to such party, but no notice of a change of addressee or addres...

	10.2 Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by the MGNWC or by the Consultant without the prior written consent of the other party.
	10.3 Third Party Beneficiary. No claim as a third party beneficiary under this agreement by any person, firm, or corporation other than the Consultant shall be made or be valid against the MGNWC.
	10.4 Provisions Severable. If any term, covenant, condition, or provision of this agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions shall remain in full force and effect and s...
	10.5 Time. Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement.
	10.6 Governing Laws. This agreement shall be interpreted according to the laws of the State of Illinois.
	10.7 Binding Effect. The terms of this agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their agents, successors, and assigns.
	10.8 Entire Agreement. This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes any and all previous or contemporaneous oral or written agreements and negotiations between either of the MGNWC and the CONSULTANT with respect t...
	10.9 Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this agreement shall be deemed to or constitute a waiver of any other provision of this agreement (whether or not similar) nor shall any such waiver be deemed to or constitute a continuing waiver unless other...
	10.10 Remedies. No remedies or rights conferred upon MGNWC by this agreement are intended to be exclusive of any remedy or right provided by law or equity, but each shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy or right given here...
	10.11 Survival of Terms. Articles on Indemnity, Confidential Information and Rights in Data shall survive termination of this agreement.
	10.12 Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this agreement shall not affect the other provisions, and this agreement shall be construed in all respects as if any invalid or unenforceable provision were omitted.
	10.13 Exhibit. Exhibits A (Consultant’s proposal dated January 8, 2016) and B (insurance requirements) are attached hereto, and by this reference incorporated in and made a part of this agreement. In the event of a conflict between the Exhibit and the...
	10.14 Rights Cumulative. Unless expressly provided to the contrary in this agreement, each and every one of the rights, remedies, and benefits provided by this agreement shall be cumulative and shall not be exclusive of any other such rights, remedies...
	10.15 Counterpart Execution. This agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which, when executed, shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
	_________________________________
	MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION
	By: Steven Vinezeano, Chair


	T18-172_MGNW_Demo Enviro Consulting Services_180427
	Resolution 18-45 APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT WITH TRUE NORTH CONSULTANTS INC  Demolition and Asbestos Removal 2525 Church 
	CLERK’S CERTIFICATE
	AYES:  John Pietron and Steven Vinezeano
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 27th day of April 2018.

	Resolution 18-46   AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT WITH  ____________ FOR DEMOLITION AND ASBESTOS ABATEMENT-2525 Church 
	RESOLUTION NO 18-46
	AYES:  John Pietron and Steven Vinezeano
	Steven Vinezeano, Chair
	ATTEST:
	John Pietron, Clerk
	Exhibit A
	CLERK’S CERTIFICATE
	AYES:  John Pietron and Steven Vinezeano
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 27th day of April 2018.

	 Demolition & Asbestos Removal Contract 2525 Church
	(3) Disagreements over Services Change Order Terms.
	(4) No Change in Absence of a Services Change Order.
	(5) Delays.
	(1) Dispute Resolution.
	(3)  Risk of Loss.
	i. Protection of Health, Environment. The Contractor’s personnel must be experienced and properly trained to perform the Services and must take adequate precautions to protect human health and the environment in the performance of Services.
	ii. Notice of Hazardous Conditions. If the Contractor observes a potentially hazardous condition relating to the Services, the Contractor must immediately bring that condition to the attention of the MGNWC Board, the MGNWC Representative and the MGNWC...
	iii. Hazardous Materials. The Contractor acknowledges that there may be hazardous substances, wastes or materials as defined by applicable Law (“Hazardous Materials”) within the proposed Project area or otherwise associated with Services, and the Cont...
	(9) Performance Bond and a Payment Bond.
	i. The Contractor shall provide a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond in the full amount of the Agreement. The bonds shall be in form and substance satisfactory to the MGNWC, consistent with Exhibit E.  The Contractor shall pay the cost of premiums fo...
	ii. The Performance Bond and the Payment Bond shall guarantee the performance of the duties placed on the Contractor by the Prevailing Wage Act, as well as all other duties undertaken by the Contractor pursuant to the Agreement and shall indemnity the...
	iii. The Performance Bond and the Payment Bond herein provided shall be placed with a surety company or companies having a policyholders' rating not lower than "A" and a financial rating not lower than "X" in Best's Insurance Guide (current edition). ...
	iv. The bond furnished by the Contractor shall fully comply with the Illinois Public Construction Bond Act (30 ILCS550/0.01 et seq.) including the provisions as found in section 30 ILCS 550/1., entitled, Bond Required- Provisions required in bond as a...
	v. The bond shall include a provision stating that no modification of any provision of any Contract Document, including, without limitation, a change in the contract time, Compensation or other condition of payment, will release the surety either in p...

	B. MGNWC Responsibilities.
	(1)  To designate in writing a person with authority to act on behalf of the MGNWC with respect to the Services. The MGNWC Representative will have the authority to act on behalf of the MGNWC, except on matters that require approval of the respective ...
	(2)  To provide to the Contractor all criteria and information about the requirements for the Services, including, as relevant, the MGNWC’s objectives and constraints, schedule, space, capacity and performance requirements, and budgetary limitations.
	(3)  To provide to the Contractor existing studies, reports and other available data relevant to the Services.
	(4)  To arrange for access to, and make provisions for the Contractor (and its employees, sub-consultants and sub-contractors) to enter on, public and private property as reasonably required for the Services.
	(5)  To provide, as relevant, existing surveys and GIS data describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for the Services and the services of other Contractors when the services of other Contractors are requested by the...
	(6)  To provide structural, mechanical, chemical, air and water tests, tests for hazardous materials, and other laboratory and environmental tests, inspections and reports required by law to be provided by the MGNWC in connection with the Services, ex...
	(7) To review reports, documents, data and all other information presented by the Contractor as appropriate and to provide responses in a timely manner.
	(8)  To provide approvals from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Services when requested by the Contractor, except to the extent such approvals are part of the Services.
	(9) To attend meetings related to the Services.
	(10) To give prompt written notice to the Contractor whenever the MGNWC or one of the MGNWC Affiliates observes or otherwise becomes aware of any development that affects the scope or timing of Services, except that the inability or failure of the MGN...

	C. Intellectual Property.
	D.  Copyrights and Patents.
	(3) Compliance with Laws, Grant Regulations.
	B.  Termination by MGNWC for Breach.
	(1)  MGNWC may recover from the Contractor any and all costs, including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by the MGNWC as the result of any Breach or as a result of actions taken by MGNWC in response to any Breach.
	(2)  MGNWC may withhold any or all outstanding Compensation to reimburse itself or pay for any and all costs, including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by the MGNWC as the result of any Breach or as a result of actions taken by...

	D. Termination for Convenience.
	E.  Termination by Contractor for Breach.
	F.  Termination by Contractor without Cause.

	Resolution 18-47 APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT WITH TRUE NORTH CONSULTANTS INC  MWRD Baseline Study
	RESOLUTION NO 18-47
	AYES:  John Pietron and Steven Vinezeano
	Steven Vinezeano, Chair
	ATTEST:
	John Pietron, Clerk
	Exhibit A

	Professional Services Agreement- True North  MWRD Baseline Study
	1 PARTIES:
	The parties to this Agreement and the address and contact information for each is as follows:

	2 PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES
	2.3 Early Termination. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the MGNWC may terminate this agreement at any time upon 14 days prior written notice to the Consultant. In the event that this agreement is so terminated, the Consultant shall be paid ...
	2.4 Suspension of Services. MGNWC may, at any time, with or without cause, suspend all or any portion of services for a period of up to 90 days (“suspended services”).  Consultant shall immediately stop the performance of the suspended services, until...
	2.5 Force Majeure. MGNWC shall not be responsible for delay in the performance of its obligations under this agreement caused by a force majeure event.  To the extent that Contracted Services are delayed by a force majeure event, Consultant will be en...
	2.6 Assignments; Coordination; Reporting. Assignments and tasks will be assigned to the Consultant by MGNWC Representative. Consultant shall regularly report to and will coordinate all work through MGNWC Representative or his designee.
	2.7 Quality Control Plans. When required by the Exhibit A, Consultant shall execute a quality control plan acceptable to MGNWC that ensures the quality of its work products and activities.  Prior to starting the performance of the services, Consultant...
	2.8 Warranty of Services. The Consultant warrants that the services shall be performed in accordance with the highest standards of professional practice, care, and diligence practiced by recognized consulting firms in performing services of a similar ...
	2.9 Mutual Cooperation. The MGNWC agrees to cooperate with the Consultant in the performance of the services, including meeting with the Consultant and providing the Consultant with such non-confidential information that the MGNWC may have that may be...
	2.10 Amendment. No amendment or modification to this agreement shall be effective unless and until such amendment or modification is approved in writing by the MGNWC Administrator and the Consultant.
	2.11 No Additional Obligation. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the MGNWC is under no obligation under this agreement or otherwise to negotiate or enter into any other or additional contracts or agreements with the Consultant, or with any vendor...

	3 COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT
	3.1 Agreement Amount. The total amount billed by the Consultant for the Services under this Agreement shall not exceed nine thousand five hundred and fourteen dollars ($9,514.00) in total without the prior express written authorization of the Village ...
	3.2 Invoices and Payment. The Consultant shall submit invoices to the MGNWC in an approved format for those portions of the Services performed and completed by the Consultant. The MGNWC shall pay to the Consultant the amount billed for completed and a...
	3.3 Records. The Consultant shall maintain records showing actual time devoted and costs incurred, and shall permit the authorized representative of the MGNWC to inspect and audit all data and records of the Consultant for work done under the Agreemen...
	3.4 Claim For Additional Compensation. If the Consultant wishes to make a claim for additional compensation as a result of action taken by the MGNWC, the Consultant shall provide written notice to the MGNWC of such claim within 7 days after occurrence...
	3.5 Taxes, Benefits and Royalties. The agreement amount includes all applicable federal, state, and local taxes of every kind and nature applicable to the services as well as all taxes, contributions, and premiums for unemployment insurance, old age o...

	4 PERSONNEL AND SUBCONTRACTORS
	4.1 Key Project Personnel. Key Project Personnel identified in Exhibit A shall be Ryan M Ladieu  who shall be primarily responsible for carrying out the Services on behalf of the Consultant. The key project personnel shall not be changed without the M...
	4.2 Availability of Personnel. The Consultant shall provide all personnel necessary to complete the Services including, without limitation, any Key Project Personnel identified in this Agreement. The Consultant shall notify the MGNWC as soon as practi...
	4.3 Approval and Use of Subcontractors. The Consultant shall perform the services with its own personnel and under the management, supervision, and control of its own organization unless otherwise approved by the MGNWC in writing. All subcontractors a...
	4.4 MGNWC Authority. Notwithstanding any provision of this agreement, any negotiations or agreements with, or representations by the Consultant to any subcontractor, vendor or third party shall be subject to the approval of the MGNWC. The MGNWC shall ...
	4.5 Lien Waiver. Consultant shall promptly pay for all services, labor, materials and equipment used or employed by Consultant in the performance of the services and shall maintain all materials, equipment, structures, buildings, premises and property...

	5 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES
	5.1 Independent Contractor. The Consultant shall act as an independent contractor in providing and performing the services. Nothing in, nor done pursuant to, this Agreement shall be construed:
	A. To create the relationship of principal and agent, employer and employee, partners, or joint venturers between the MGNWC and Consultant; or
	B. To create any relationship between the MGNWC and any subcontractor of the Consultant.

	5.2 Conflict of Interest. The Consultant represents and certifies that, to the best of its knowledge:
	A. No employee or agent of the MGNWC is interested in the business of the Consultant or this agreement;
	B. Neither the Consultant nor any person employed or associated with the Consultant has any interest that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the obligations under this agreement; and
	C. Neither the Consultant nor any person employed by or associated with the Consultant shall at any time during the term of this agreement obtain or acquire any interest that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the obligatio...

	5.3 No Collusion. The Consultant represents and certifies that the Consultant is not barred from contracting with a unit of federal, state or local government as a result of:
	A. A delinquency in the payment of any tax administered by the Illinois Department of Revenue unless the Consultant is contesting, in accordance with the procedures established by the appropriate revenue act, its liability for the tax or the amount of...
	B. A violation of either Section 33E-3 or Section 33E-4 of Article 33E of the Criminal Code of 1961, 720 ILCS 5/33E-1 et. seq.
	C. The Consultant represents that the only persons, firms, or corporations interested in this agreement as principals are those disclosed to the MGNWC prior to the execution of this agreement, and that this agreement is made without collusion with any...


	6 INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION
	6.1 Insurance. Contemporaneous with the Consultant’s execution of this agreement, the Consultant shall provide certificates and policies of insurance, all with coverage and limits acceptable to the MGNWC, and evidencing at least the minimum insurance ...
	6.2 Indemnification. The Consultant shall, without regard to the availability or unavailability of any insurance, either of the MGNWC or the Consultant, indemnify, save harmless, and defend the MGNWC, and its respective officials, employees, agents, v...

	7 USE AND DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
	7.1 Confidential Information. The term “confidential Information” shall mean information in the possession or under the control of the MGNWC relating to the technical, business or corporate affairs of the MGNWC; property of the MGNWC; user information...
	7.2 No Disclosure of Confidential Information by the Consultant. The Consultant acknowledges that it shall, in performing the services for the MGNWC under this agreement, have access to or be directly or indirectly exposed to confidential information....
	7.3 Illinois Freedom of Information Act (FOIA). FOIA applies to public records in the possession of a party with whom the MGNWC has contracted.  The MGNWC will have only a very short period of time from receipt of a FOIA request to comply with the req...
	7.4 GIS Data. The MGNWC has developed digital map information through Geographic Information Systems Technology (“GIS data”) concerning the real property located within the MGNWC. If necessary to the performance of the services and if requested to do ...
	A. Limited Access to and use of GIS data. The GIS data provided by a MGNWC shall be limited to the scope of the work that the Consultant is to provide for the MGNWC, and the Consultant shall limit its use of the GIS data to its intended purpose of fur...
	B. Trade Secrets of the MGNWC. The GIS data constitutes proprietary materials and trade secrets of the MGNWC and, shall remain the property of the MGNWC;
	C. Consent of the MGNWC Required. The Consultant will not provide or make available GIS data in any form to anyone without the prior written consent of the MGNWC Administrator;
	D. Supply to MGNWC. At the request of  the MGNWC, the Consultant shall supply the MGNWC with any and all information that may have been developed by the Consultant based on the GIS data;
	E. No Guarantee of Accuracy. The MGNWC make no guarantee as to the accuracy, completeness, or suitability of the GIS data in regard to the Consultant’s intended use thereof; and
	F. Discontinuation of Use. At such time as the Services have been completed to the satisfaction of or terminated by the MGNWC, the Consultant shall cease its use of the GIS data for any purpose whatsoever; and, upon request, an authorized representati...

	7.5 Ownership. Designs, drawings, plans, specifications, photos, reports, information, observations, calculations, notes, and any other documents, data, or information, in any form, prepared, collected, or received by the Consultant in connection with...
	7.6 News Releases. The Consultant shall not issue any news releases or other public statements regarding the Services without prior approval from the MGNWC Administrator.

	8 Compliance with Laws and Grants
	8.1 General Compliance. Consultant shall give all notices, pay all fees, and take all other action that may be necessary to ensure that the services are provided, performed, and completed in accordance with all required governmental permits, licenses,...
	8.2 Grant Compliance. Consultant shall also comply with all conditions of any federal, state, or local grant received by the MGNWC or consultant with respect to this agreement or the services.
	8.3 Sexual Harassment Policy. The Consultant represents and warrants  that it has and follows a written sexual harassment policy in full compliance with Section 2-105(A)(4) of the Illinois Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/2-105(A)(4).
	8.4 Patriot Act Compliance. The Consultant represents and warrants that neither it nor any of its principals, shareholders, members, partners, or affiliates, as applicable, is a person or entity named as a Specially Designated National and Blocked Per...
	8.5 Equal Employment Opportunity Compliance.  During the performance of this agreement, Consultant as follows:
	A. That it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment on the basis of race, age, marital status, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, physical or mental handicap unrelated to ability, national origin or ancestry or an ...
	B. That, if it hires additional employees in order to perform the services or any portion hereof, it shall determine the availability (in accordance with the MGNWC’s rules) of minorities and women in the area(s) from which they may reasonably recruit,...
	C. That, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by it or on its behalf, it will state that all applicants will be afforded equal opportunity without discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national ...
	D. That it shall submit reports as required by the MGNWC’s rules and furnish all relevant information as may from time to time be requested by the MGNWC or the MGNWC, and in all respects comply with the Illinois Human Rights Act and the MGNWC's Rules.
	E. That it shall permit access to all relevant books, records, accounts and work sites by personnel of the MGNWC and the MGNWC for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with the Illinois Human Rights Act and the MGNWC’s rules.
	F. That it shall include verbatim or by reference the provisions of this clause in every subcontract it awards under which any portion of the contract obligations are undertaken or assumed so that such provisions will be binding upon such subcontracto...
	G. If the Consultant has not complied with all provisions of the Illinois Human Rights Act, or the Rules and Regulations of the Illinois Department of Human Rights “MGNWC”, the Consultant may be declared ineligible for future contracts or subcontracts...


	9 default AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	9.1 Default. If it should appear at any time that the consultant has failed, refused or delayed to perform, the services any other requirement of this agreement with diligence at a rate that assures completion of the services and full compliance of th...
	A. Cure by Consultant. The MGNWC may require the Consultant, within a reasonable time, to complete or correct all or any part of the services that are the subject of the event of default; and to take any or all other action necessary to bring the Cons...
	B. Termination of Agreement by MGNWC. The MGNWC may terminate this agreement without liability for further payment of amounts due or to become due under this agreement.
	C. Withholding of Payment by MGNWC. The MGNWC may withhold from any payment, whether or not previously approved, or may recover from the Consultant, any and all costs, including attorneys’ fees and administrative expenses, incurred by the MGNWC as the...

	9.2 Dispute Resolution. Any dispute related to this Agreement shall, upon request by either party, be submitted to a panel consisting of at least one representative of each party who shall have the authority to enter into an agreement to resolve the d...
	9.3  During the dispute resolution period, or if litigation ensues, pending any final judicial decision or settlement, Consultant shall proceed diligently with the services.

	10 General ProviSIONS
	10.1 Notice.
	A. Any notice or communication required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered (i) personally to an authorized representative of the party; (ii) by certified mail addressed to the contact person listed...
	B. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, notices shall be deemed received upon the earlier of actual receipt or three business days following deposit in the U.S. mail.
	C. By notice complying with the requirements of this Subsection, each Party shall have the right to change the address or the addressee, or both, for all future notices and communications to such party, but no notice of a change of addressee or addres...

	10.2 Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by the MGNWC or by the Consultant without the prior written consent of the other party.
	10.3 Third Party Beneficiary. No claim as a third party beneficiary under this agreement by any person, firm, or corporation other than the Consultant shall be made or be valid against the MGNWC.
	10.4 Provisions Severable. If any term, covenant, condition, or provision of this agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions shall remain in full force and effect and s...
	10.5 Time. Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement.
	10.6 Governing Laws. This agreement shall be interpreted according to the laws of the State of Illinois.
	10.7 Binding Effect. The terms of this agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their agents, successors, and assigns.
	10.8 Entire Agreement. This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes any and all previous or contemporaneous oral or written agreements and negotiations between either of the MGNWC and the CONSULTANT with respect t...
	10.9 Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this agreement shall be deemed to or constitute a waiver of any other provision of this agreement (whether or not similar) nor shall any such waiver be deemed to or constitute a continuing waiver unless other...
	10.10 Remedies. No remedies or rights conferred upon MGNWC by this agreement are intended to be exclusive of any remedy or right provided by law or equity, but each shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy or right given here...
	10.11 Survival of Terms. Articles on Indemnity, Confidential Information and Rights in Data shall survive termination of this agreement.
	10.12 Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this agreement shall not affect the other provisions, and this agreement shall be construed in all respects as if any invalid or unenforceable provision were omitted.
	10.13 Exhibit. Exhibits A (Consultant’s proposal dated January 8, 2016) and B (insurance requirements) are attached hereto, and by this reference incorporated in and made a part of this agreement. In the event of a conflict between the Exhibit and the...
	10.14 Rights Cumulative. Unless expressly provided to the contrary in this agreement, each and every one of the rights, remedies, and benefits provided by this agreement shall be cumulative and shall not be exclusive of any other such rights, remedies...
	10.15 Counterpart Execution. This agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which, when executed, shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
	_________________________________
	MORTON GROVE-NILES WATER COMMISSION
	By: Steven Vinezeano, Chair


	T18-225_MGNW_MWRD Easement_Baseline & CCDD Soil Assessment
	Resolution 18-47 APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT WITH TRUE NORTH CONSULTANTS INC  MWRD Baseline Study
	CLERK’S CERTIFICATE
	AYES:  John Pietron and Steven Vinezeano
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 27th day of April 2018.







